
 
 

 
7275 W. MAIN STREET, KALAMAZOO, MI 49009-9334 

269-216-5220           Fax 375-7180          
www.oshtemo.org 

 
 

 
NOTICE 

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING 

 
MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON 

AT OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HALL 
7275 W MAIN STREET 

Masks Are Optional in Oshtemo Township Buildings 
 

(Meeting will be available for viewing through https://www.publicmedianet.org/gavel-to-gavel/oshtemo-township) 
 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Welcome and Call to Order  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 

5. Approval of Minutes:  November 27, 2023 
 

6. Public Hearing – Rezoning – 9177 West G Avenue 
James and Robert Endres, on behalf of the James A and Marilyn C Endres Trust, are requesting to rezone 
approximately 15 acres of 9177 West G Avenue from AG: Agricultural District to RR: Rural Residential 
District. 
 

7. Public Hearing – Special Use and Site Plan – Long John Silvers 
Long John Silvers is requesting site plan and special exception use approval to redevelop 5481 W Main 
Street with one 2,288 square foot building to serve as a fast food restaurant with drive-through. 
 

8. Public Hearing – Ordinance Amendment – Keeping of Livestock and Honeybees 
Consideration to adopt amendments to 57.80 - Keeping of Livestock and Honey Bees for 
recommendation to the Township Board. 
 

9. Work Session:  
a. Continued Discussion: Private Street Ordinance (Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance) 

 

10. Other Updates and Business 
 

11. Adjournment 

1

https://www.publicmedianet.org/gavel-to-gavel/oshtemo-township


Oshtemo Township Board of Trustees 

Supervisor 

Cheri Bell 
Clerk 

Dusty Farmer 

Treasurer 

Clare Buszka 

Trustees 

Kristin Cole 

Zak Ford 

Michael Chapman

216-5220 cbell@oshtemo.org

216-5224 dfarmer@oshtemo.org 

216-5260 cbuszka@oshtemo.org 

760-6769
375-4260

271-5513

Township Department Information 

Assessor: 

Kristine Biddle 

Fire Chief: 

Greg McComb 

Ordinance Enforcement: 

Rick Suwarsky 

Parks Director: 

Vanessa Street
Rental Info 

Planning Director: 

Iris Lubbert 

Public Works Director: 

Anna Horner 

216-5225 assessor@oshtemo.org 

375-0487 gmccomb@oshtemo.org 

216-5227 rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org 

216-5233 
216-5224 

vstreet@oshtemo.org 
oshtemo@oshtemo.org 

216-5223 ilubbert@oshtemo.org 

216-5228 ahorner@oshtemo.org 

Policy for Public Comment 
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings 

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting: 

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda Items or Public Comment – while this is not intended to be a forum for

dialogue and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may

be delegated to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated

questions can be answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email

(oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited. At the close of
public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. While comments that include questions
are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further research,
and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board deliberation
which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual 
capabilities of the meeting room. Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required. 

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on 
which the public hearing is being conducted. Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be 
directed to any issue. 

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in 
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting. 

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to the orderly 
conduct of business. The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which 
does not follow these guidelines. 

(adopted 5/9/2000) 
(revised 5/14/2013) 
(revised 1/8/2018) 

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone calls, 
stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from Monday- 
Thursday, 8 a.m.-1 p.m. and 2-5 p.m., and on Friday, 8 a.m.–1 p.m. Additionally, questions and concerns are 
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and 
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to 
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person. 

Neil Sikora nsikora@oshtemo.org

kcole@oshtemo.org 

zford@oshtemo.org 

375-4260 mchapman@oshtemo.org

2

mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbuszka@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbell@oshtemo.org
mailto:kcole@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:kbradford@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:gmccomb@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:ilubbert@oshtemo.org
mailto:ahorner@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org


 

1 
 

OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
DRAFT MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 27, 2023 

 
Agenda  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HOUSING PLAN 2023 
Consideration to approve the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023 for incorporation 
into the Township’s Master Plan, for recommendation to the Township Board. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
A special meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission was held Monday, 
November 27, 2023, commencing at approximately 6:00 p.m. at the Oshtemo Township Hall, 
7275 West Main Street.  
 
ALL MEMBERS  
WERE PRESENT:  Phil Doorlag, Chair 
    Deb Everett 
    Zak Ford, Board Liaison 
    Scot Jefferies      
    Micki Maxwell, Vice Chair 
    Scott Makohn 
    Alistair Smith  
  
Also present: Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Jim Porter, Township Attorney, and Emily Petz of 
the W.E. Upjohn Company. 
 
Curt Aardema of AVB and another guest were also present. 
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Chairperson Doorlag called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and invited those present 
to join in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
  
 Chairperson Doorlag determined there were no changes to the agenda and asked for a 
motion. 
  

Mr. Ford made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented.  Mr. Jefferies seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
 There were no comments on non-agenda items.  
 
Approval of Minutes: November 16, 2023 

 
Chairperson Doorlag asked if there were additions, deletions, or corrections to the 

Minutes of the Meeting of November 16, 2023. 
 

3



 

2 
 

Hearing none, he asked for a motion. 
  

  Mr. Ford made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Meeting of November 16, 2023 
as presented. Ms. Maxwell seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 Chairperson Doorlag moved to the next agenda item on the agenda. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP HOUSING PLAN 2023 
Consideration to approve the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023 for incorporation 
into the Township’s Master Plan, for recommendation to the Township Board. 
 

 Ms. Emily Petz of the W.E. Upjohn Institute for Employment Research reviewed the final 

draft of the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023 for consideration of approval. The housing 

plan addressed existing housing conditions within the community, as well as suggested 

strategies to improve current conditions and address future housing needs.  The project 

consisted of four phases: project initiation and establishment of baseline data, building 

alignment, plan research and design, and lastly plan delivery and dissemination.  

 

She distributed and reviewed for Commissioners the final draft of the Oshtemo Township 

Housing Plan 2023, which covers a housing needs assessment, market demands, results from 

the Oshtemo Township Housing Survey, and the Oshtemo portion of the countywide housing 

survey, and goals and objectives. She noted community and committee engagement helped to 

guide the direction and focus.  

In order to ensure the Housing Plan is supported to the fullest extent, it will be 
incorporated as part of the Township’s Master Plan.  To accomplish this goal, the plan must go 
through the state mandated public hearing process for community master plans, which includes 
a public hearing before both the Planning Commission and Township Board. 
 

Per state regulations, neighboring jurisdictions were notified of the Township’s intent to 
create and adopt a housing plan.  When the draft plan was completed, they were provided a 63-
day opportunity to provide input on the plan.  No letters or emails with feedback were received 
during the comment period.  
 
 Chairperson Doorlag thanked Ms. Petz for her presentation and asked whether 
Commissioners had any questions or comments. 
 
 Mr. Smith asked if the final draft was any different than the draft that was sent out for the 
63 day opportunity for input. 
 
 Ms. Lubbert said it was the same document, with the exception of minor changes which 
were mostly the correction of typographical errors. 
 
 Ms. Everett commented the goals and objectives of the plan are good, but some seem to 
imply we can accomplish all of them now. As that can’t be done, she wondered if there should 
be a disclaimer to that effect. 
 
 Ms. Lubbert indicated a disclaimer that addresses her concern was added at the 
beginning of the “Goals” section. 

4



 

3 
 

 Attorney Porter said it will take multiple steps to implement the goals of the Plan over a 
substantial period of time. Some goals and objectives can be addressed within the next five 
years; changing the zoning ordinance will achieve a great deal. 
 
 Chairperson Doorlag thanked Ms. Petz for her presentation, opened the meeting for a 
public hearing and asked if any member of the public wished to comment. 
 
 Mr. Curt Aardema, AVB, congratulated the Commission on their long journey to produce 
a great document and felt it represented a good approach. He appreciated the opportunity to 
participate during the process and agreed the zoning component will be important in order to 
meet many of the objectives of the Plan. He would like to see the Township move forward and 
noted AVB has some great models that could be used in Oshtemo Township. 
 
 Hearing no further comments, the Chair closed the public hearing and asked for a 
motion. 
 

Mr. Ford made a motion to approve the Oshtemo Township Housing Plan 2023 as 
presented for incorporation into the Township’s Master Plan, and to forward it with a 
recommendation for approval to the Township Board. Ms. Maxwell seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
OTHER UPDATES AND BUSINESS 
 
 There were no other updates or business to be considered.  
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 With there being no further business to consider, Chairperson Doorlag adjourned the 

meeting at approximately 6:42 p.m.  

Minutes prepared: 
November 29, 2023 
 
Minutes approved: 
___________, 2023 
 

 

5



 

[This page le� inten�onally blank] 

6



December 5, 2023 

Mtg Date: December 14, 2023 

To:  Planning Commission 

From:  Leeanna Harris, Zoning Administrator 

Applicant: James and Robert Endres  

Owner:  James A and Marilyn C Endres Trust 

Property: 9177 West G Avenue, Parcel Number 3905-05-230-012 

Zoning:  AG: Agricultural District 

Request: Rezone approximately 15 acres of parcels to RR: Rural Residen�al 

Sec�on(s): Article 5 — Rural Residential District 
Article 4 — Agricultural District 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY: 
The applicants, James and Robert Endres, 
on behalf of the James A and Marilyn C 
Endres Trust, are reques�ng to rezone 
approximately 15 acres of 9177 West G 
Avenue from AG: Agricultural District to RR: 
Rural Residen�al District. The rezoning 
area, highlighted in red to the right, under 
considera�on begins approximately 1,112 
feet from the west property line and is 
about 1,112 feet wide and 600 feet deep. 
The parent parcel is outlined in blue to the 
right. The parent parcel has a property area 
of approximately 120 acres with roughly 
1,700 feet of frontage on North 3rd Street 
and about 2,500 feet on West G Avenue. 
9177 West G Avenue currently serves an 
agricultural land use.  
 
The applicants’ intent is to rezone the 
desired area and to split these 15 acres 
from the parent parcel to create two new 
parcels. It should be noted that this parent 
parcel has gone through a previous rezoning request in 2020 and is proposing to con�nue two of the 
divisions as outlined in the survey document atached. However, due to the minimum area requirement 
of 40 acres for AG: Agricultural District proper�es, a split would not be possible without the rezoning to 
RR: Rural Residen�al. Staff completed a preliminary review of the proposed land division and determined 
it would meet Township requirements for newly created parcels within the RR: Rural Residen�al zoning 
classifica�on; however, since the request is for a rezoning, those materials will be formally considered at 
the �me the applicant submits a land division applica�on for Township review and approval.  
 

1112 feet 

600 feet 

7



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
9177 West G Avenue – Rezoning 
12/5/2023 · Page 2 
 
OVERVIEW: 
Currently zoned AG: Agricultural 
District, the subject property is 
located on the south side of West 
G Avenue, between North 3rd 
Street and N 6th Street. The 
subject property in ques�on is 
outlined in dark blue in the 
Zoning Map to the right, with the 
requested rezoning area 
highlighted in red. Proper�es 
immediately surrounding the site 
currently possess agricultural and 
residen�al land uses. RR: Rural 
Residen�al zoning abuts the 
subject site to the east, west, and 
south. This property previously 
had two por�ons (approximately 
11 acres) rezoned in 2020 to RR: Rural Residen�al; 3.86 acres were divided from the parent parcel while 
the remaining 7.66 acres are s�ll within the parent parcel. Detached structures, farmland, and dense 
vegeta�on currently occupy the site. Approximately one-quarter of a mile to the southeast is another AG: 
Agricultural District zoned property.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
The Zoning Enabling Act, which allows Townships to zone property, does not provide any required 
standards that a Planning Commission must consider when reviewing a rezoning request.  However, there 
are some generally recognized factors that should be deliberated before a rezoning decision is made. 
These considerations along with staff’s analysis are outlined below and in the following pages. 
 
1. Master Plan Designa�on 

The Township’s adopted 2017 
Future Land Use Map 
designates 9177 West G 
Avenue and the surrounding 
proper�es in this por�on of 
the Township as RR: Rural 
Residen�al, shown in orange 
on the map to the right, with 
the subject parcel outlined in 
blue and the area in ques�on 
shown in red. According to the 
Township’s Master Plan, Rural 
Residen�al includes 
developments such as low-
density housing on scatered 
sites. The Future Land Use 
Map iden�fies that the 
subject property is within an 
area that is intended to transi�on to Rural Residen�al from its present agricultural zoning. The 

8



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
9177 West G Avenue – Rezoning 
12/5/2023 · Page 3 
 

proposed rezoning would be consistent with the site’s current ac�vity, Future Land Use Map, and the 
Township’s Zoning Ordinance. Rezoning the subject site would follow the Township’s vision in terms of 
land use for this area. 
 

2. Consistency of the Zoning Classifica�on in the General Area 
Rezoning 15 acres of 9177 West G Avenue from AG: Agricultural District to RR: Rural Residen�al District 
would be consistent with current zoning in nearby parcels. The site is currently adjacent to several 
other proper�es which serve low density land uses. These uses of land include single-family dwellings 
as well as areas used for farmland. 

 
3. Consistency and Compa�bility with General Land Use Paterns in the Area 

On both sides of West G Avenue, a patern of residences or farmlands have been established. With 
the request being consistent and compa�ble with land use paterns in the area, and this use being in 
accordance with the Future Land Use map, the rezoning will allow the property to match the 
established character of the area. 
 

4. U�li�es and Infrastructure 
Neither public water nor sewer are present along N 3rd Street or West G Avenue in this part of the 
Township, and the extension of such is not planned at any point in the near future. Given the 
an�cipated low intensity residen�al use for the area subject to this rezoning request and the nature 
of uses permited within the RR district, the absence of u�li�es here should not nega�vely affect 
reasonable land use. Regarding the transporta�on network, the intersec�on to the west at West G 
Avenue and North 3rd Street is a 4-way stop. The next intersec�on to the east where West G Avenue 
crosses North 6th Street is a 4-way stop as well. Staff is of the opinion that if this rezoning is approved, 
it will not nega�vely affect the area or add undue burden to the exis�ng infrastructure than what is 
currently experienced. 

 
5. Reasonable Use under Current Zoning Classifica�on 

The property is currently zoned AG: Agricultural District. The exis�ng subject parcel is ac�vely farmed 
and can con�nue according to the Michigan Right-to-Farm Act. Given the amount of road frontage and 
acreage present, as well as the restric�ons currently in place for AG zoned proper�es, reasonable use 
is s�ll possible without the rezoning. However, given the applicant’s desire to complete a land division 
in order to accommodate two single-family homes and the Township’s minimum 40-acre size for 
agriculturally zoned parcels, these opportuni�es are limited. The rezoning achieves the Township’s 
goals for this area and fits the applicant’s vision for the site. 

 
6. Effects on Surrounding Property 

Staff do not an�cipate any nega�ve impacts occurring onto surrounding proper�es if the subject site 
is rezoned to the RR: Rural Residen�al District. All proper�es adjacent to the subject site are similar as 
each property consists of an exis�ng primary residence, farmland, or a combina�on of these. Although 
the applicants indicated that single-family homes would be built on the rezoned area, the agricultural 
use of the parent property would not be changing. With there being an exis�ng patern of rural 
character and uses in the area, the rezoning would complement adjacent zoning districts and their 
present land uses. 
 

 
 
 

 

9



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
9177 West G Avenue – Rezoning 
12/5/2023 · Page 4 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the Township 
Board for the rezoning of the area of 9177 West G Avenue noted in this staff report from the AG: 
Agricultural District to the RR: Rural Residential District for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is in accordance with the Township’s Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The requested rezoning is consistent and compatible with the surrounding land uses and adjacent 

zoning classifications. 
3. Existing infrastructure and utilities can easily accommodate the expected future residential land 

use. 
4. Township staff do not anticipate any negative impacts on surrounding properties as a result of 

the rezoning. 
 
Atachments: applica�on, survey, Ar�cle 4 – Agricultural District, Ar�cle 5 – RR Rural Residen�al District.  

10



11



12



PARCEI 
'?' 
-E

Y=556U'

E PAR@.
'c'

ao
U=fi.u

$8
FS
>!
:

I u=5som'.. .'

PARUT
1'

lt=555.u'

ti

:l
:
II

XL ,n

ptr
d8

:

PAM-,E:

a-u,

U=556.U u=5$.u'

tHsA00'

PfrtrL

EAI

.
s

I
p

ll

b

I:

PlNEL
B'

200

=S68'53'lO' M=2224.1

a

M:SE8o55'lO"E
M=4l0.OO'

M=N89'26'03"w
M=t65.0r'

E?n u'

M=NA926'O3'w
u=600.oJ' PARtrI,A.

P.4'

M-NE9"26'OJ"W M=1215.06'

M:NOl'07'56"E
M=756.01'

Y=ttN6'oJ't
,l=M.N'

l;,€"?iffi 
o.c AVENUE NORIHEAST CORNER OF

sEc 5 stc. 5, To2s, Rt2w
NORIH UNE A' SEC. 5

orrrary6 M=988"55'10,,E Nar mtaw
=2634.00'

I'Fu
rdb
rn..
04=Fs
6D -'
o$
tr?
CDE

E

c!\
l'-
ro

LJ

'!
N

@
!a)
No1
z
lt

=rt L:(rU|

OO
9- uro?
u! :i
ll r
=$

3,
297' M:600.03'--,,-.|,t:

tJl=1E15.09'trt"
NOr"07',56"E

l,l=297.O1'

.-r\''c\
440'

t' M =N0r"07'56"E
M=414.O2'N=1960.tO'

M=654.80'
EAS|-U/tST tl LINE OF SEC. 5 M=N89"26'0J"w

cENt€R t/4 CffiNER OF
sfc. 5, ro2s. R12w

EASI t/4 CORNER AF
stc. 5, m2s, Rt2w

SEE SHEET ? FOE SFCT'ON CORNER
INFOSMA'NON, FUFNISIIED LEGAL
DESCRIPfl ON AI'ID BI'II-DIN(I DE-TA]L.

,,,,,,,,*.}..w

",,,;o'iiiiiKr:.\Is

SEE SHESTS 3 AIID 4 FOR THE SURVEYDD
I-"GIL DESCFIPIIOIIS.

r r'e$ cEr*lnlar r flrvt:*x!u1E, rnE P,rirctlrq ots L.xD

xDPRLSEn'r^rlon OF flr6 STJTVEY.S Ptr{r-otrMEu $ r,rE, .XD lll]rT r rr vE
lrLr,Y colxlrED wm r I1rE rcQ
,rs ANEXDTD. Tr[S SURILa *nS *\DE aoi' flE 

^rr,lclrgD 
LrC L

n r4,Ls oMEN TO US S\- TUO PERSO CETiITE'I
1(), oR !*as PRI:I1rREI) m us lxoir ltimRlr^nox oR rEcL'{Ec ow m

suprnca 10r,16' Il,R nccuR cY. E^sEvExTs

SCAri : 1 =50o

d .r50' soq

Deiel D- Pratt
PER TOWNSHIP REQUIREMENTS

O= SE"T IRON W/

a- FoUllD lRoN
R= RECORDEL)
M. ME SURED

REVISION II 2020-09-t2

Terra
Pointe
Consultants, Inc.

Plat of Survey
Pa'r of rhe Northcasr I /4

Se. 05, To*, 02 South, Range 12 W€st
Oshtcmo ToMship, Xalal?laao County, Ml

I l2A Fdr.lE* I&e, sE
Grand Rapids, lll 49546
PH 616.901.1964

Clienr: Jam6 Endrcs
9307 W. C Avcnuc

l(ar@azD, Ml 49009

TPC Job No- 20022 She.t I of4
Dar. of Fi.ld surcJ: 06123l202O

-fl--e'A

13



FIJRNISHED LECAL DESCRIPTION:
Parcel of land situate and being in the Township of Oshterno, County of Kalafiazoo and State of
Michigan. and described as follows:
The Northcast guaiter of Section 5, Town 2 South, Ranse 12 West, EXCEP'flNG the South 26 2/3
rods of the West l20 rods of said Northeast quaiter of section 5, and also EXCEPflNG the North
18 rods iI tie South 44 2/3 rods ol the West I lO roads of said Northeast quarter of section 5, and
also EXCEPrING the North 20O ieet ol the South 937 feet of *re West 600 fcet of said No reast
quaiter of section 5, and SUBTECT to public road over the Westerly 33 feet of said parcel a-rtd
SUBJDSI to public .oad of the North 33 feet of said patcel-
Cornputed a-rea 123.45 acres, includiag mad right of way.

sojriEsr c!& stc 2a, rr( ngr G n)
acnD xlxi co u}rJr6tl

m. igro{ tl.r €A P. PqI
102f

rtsr i/a car stc 2t rn Rlr G-D)
arrro xrfl cd llxj|Ixr
n rErx irr €A oar( rrl r .4d
'D, 

6er xrr 5 A olx sa,lt 2ol0'f[ @r rtr xa ou ilar !a67
au aoror x,tl st rif s05E 3a5a'
fL xoo *tr ra It 0t( s0tt 5!.J5'

G AVENUE

IHEAST CORNER OF

EEBi

sEc. 5 TO2S, Rl2W

PARdI
u.S8'$05t

-n

n

b
{

:Ees--
ct'

46.8'

klq'
Er
E

_a

t
E:t
iq
iE

PARCTT
.A

r l,ERfsr'cFfrlEY Trr T r xirtsuRr'FrED Ep RcFr+, oFUND
DF'SCRIB'D ANT' DZIJI{A'ED HF.EON. 

'HAT 
S,\I" }IA'T,6   TEUE

rIt cosPllF, $m r Tr rE REQURErrF._Irls oF sFclrox :r, AcT r 3,r. P 
^. 

l9?o
sy^D. moxnrEar ccF.D L!,Gd,

DESCRfrON. T' IE DTSCTIP'mH g.IrS CIV'X Io US I]Y T1lI PEI'sON CERIIFITO

'(), 
OR*^S PEEBEE BY US FROU XiFONM^T|oN OR DOCIJiIF,:TIS GII'EX TO

US T'Y fNE STSO CgFflFlr-I) fO. AND SI'OULI) BE CIXPARE
TTISIRNCI OF TNLE OR fiN' INST'E1I{CIi PC'IJ€Y FoR -\CCUR

scALE: r"=200'

P.S. No. 39i]94

o- sEf rRoN w/
cAP r3909{

a = FOUND IRoN
R= RECORDED

REViSION {r PAR TOWNSHIP REQUIREMENIS 2020 09- 12

f/,

PARffi

@r _L\l

Terra
Pointe
Consultants, Inc.

Plat of Survey
Pan oI rhc Northeast r /4

56. 05, Tom Y2 Sourh, Rsngc 12 lv6t
O3htmo Torwship, K.le@o County, MI

ll2a FoKhasc Lanc, Se
G!6d Rapids, lill 49546

CUeDL Jdes Endres
9307 W- G Alrnuc

l<al azt, MI 49OO9

Trc Job No.2OO22 Sh*t 2 of 4
Darc ofncrd suncy: 0612312020

14



Parcel A:
Part of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Town 02 Sout-tr, Range 12 West, Oshtemo
T ownship, Kala&azoo County, Michigan, described as follows: COMMENCING at the North
one-quarter comer of said Secrion 5; thence S 01'07'56" W 600.00 feet along the North-South
one-quarter line of said section to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence S 88"53'10' E 2224.la feet
paraltel witl. the North line of said seetion; thence N 0l'06'55"W I9O.O0 feet parallel with the East
Iine of said section; thence S 88'53'lO' E 410,00 leet parallel witi the North line of said section;
thence S 01'06'55" W 2199.55 leet a-long the East line of said s€ction to the East one-qua.rter
comer of said section; thence N 89"26'03" W 654.80 feet along the East-West one-quarter line of
said section; thence N 0l'07'56' E 44O.O2 fcet paralel with the North-South one-quaner line of
said section; thence N a9'26 03" W 165.01 feet parallel with the East-West ore-quartq line of said
section; thence N Ol'07'56" E 297.O1 feet parallel q'ith the North-South one-quarter line of said
scction; thence N 89'26 03' W 1215.06 leet parallel with the East-West one-quartcr li.e of said
section; tience N 0 I'07'56" E 756-0 I ieet parallel y/ith the North-South one-quarter line of said
scction; tience N 89"26 03" W 600.03 feet parallel with the East-West one-quarter line of said
section to a point on the North-South one-quarter line of said section; thence N 0l'07'56" E
54 I .72 feet along the North-South one-quader line of said section to the point of beginning.
Parcel contains I 1 -29 acres including road right of u,ay.

Pa-rcel B:
Part oI the Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Town 02 South, Range 12 West, Oshtemo
Township, Kalaiaazoo County, MichiAan, described as follows: COMMENCING at the North
one-quarter corner of said Section 5; thence S O1'O7 56" W I l4l.72 feet along the North-South
one-quarter line o[ said scction to the POINT OF BEGINMNG; theoce S 89'26'03" E 600.03 feet
parallel n ith the East-West one-guarter line of said section; tlence S 0l'07'56" W 556.00 feet
paiallel with the North Soutlr one-quartcr line of said section; the-rrce N 89'26 03" W 600-03 feet
para.tlel with the East-west one-qua.rter line of sajd section to a point on t}re Nortl-South
one-quarte. line oI said section; thence N 01"07'56" E 556.00 feet along tie North-South
one-quarter line of said section to thc poior of beginning. Percel contains 7.66 acres including
road right of way.

Parcel C:
Pa.rt of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Town 02 South, Ra.nge 12 West, Oshterno
To$nship, Kalamazoo County, Michigan, described as follo*.s: BEGINNING at the North
one-quarter cor:ner of said Scction 5; thence S 88rS3'1O' E 556.00 feet along the Nortlt line of said
section; thence S 01'07'36" W 600-00 feet; thence N E8"53'lO" W 556.04 feet parallel with the
North line of said section to a poirtt on the North-South one-quarter line of said section; thence N
O I 'O7 56" E 600.00 feet aloIl8 the North-South one-quarter line of sa.rd section to the point of
beginning. Parcel contains 7.66 acres including road right ofway.

,--:ii;il,'jii':,i%

zrffi
sutdElrDnrEr xcc4st oF L\xD

lenloN, rr,^i s,rrD ,t.^T ls A rRUE
f,rpa€lrEM nox oF TtL: suxlrY 15 I,rRfo*rlDD ay xE. tND Tt({T | llavcEllY conPur,, r* ml Tr,E Rco

$rDE ftOr' TliD m cnrD Lecd
r lv s crvEr ro us Ey fltE pr:Ioi clltnFlED

ro. oR n- s lnliP/rxgD rrY ris r'f,o$ rxroRx^non oR Dac!,nlxrs cryEN ro
us ln fHs lEesoiv cEl<flFrED 1'o, /rxD $llour,D DE coipiwD To *n, r nrE

PER TOWNSHIP U]RI,MENTS 2020-0, t2

Terra
Pointe
Consultants, Inc.

Plat of Survey
Fart of rhe North@st I /4

Scc. 05, Tof,Tl 02 Soutb, RarAc 12 W6t
oshremo Township, Kaldeao County, Ml

I 128 Forhs* Irfle sli
Grard Rapids, MI 49546
PH 6i6.901.1968

Clidt Jm.s Endrei
9307 W. G AE lrqc

(almaao, MI 49OO9

Trc Job No- 20022 Shcet 3 of4
Dare ofField Survey: 06/23l2o20

15



Parcel D:
Part of tlle Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Town 02 South, Range 12 West, Oshtemo
Toa,nship, Kalarrrazoo county, Michigan, descritred as lollowsl COMMENCING at the North
one-quarter comer of said Section 5: thence S 88"53 10" E 556.00 feet a.lont the North line of said
section to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thcnce continuint S 88'53'10' E 556.00 feet along the
North line of said section; thcnce S 01007'23'W 500.00 feet; thence N E8'53'10" W 556.04 feet
parallel with the North line of said section; thence N 01'07'36' E 600,00 feet to the point of
beginning. Parcel contains 7.66 acres including road right of way.

Parcel E:
Pait of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Town 02 South, Range 12 Weet, Oshtemo
Township, Kalamazro County, Michigan, described as follows: COMMENCING at the North
one-quaiter comer oI said Section 5; tbence S 88"53'10" E 11 l2.OO leet along the North line of
sa.id scction to thc POII{T OF BEGINNINC; thence cofldnuing S 48"53'10" E 556.00 feet along t}re
North line of said section; tlence S 0l'07'09" W 600-00 feet: thenci N 88'53 10'W 556-04 feet
paialiel with the North line of said section; thence N 01'07'23' E 600.00 feet to the point of
beginning. Paicel contains 7.66 acres including road right of way.

Parcd E
Part of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 05, Toqrn 02 South, Range 12 West, Oshtemo
ToEnship, Kalamazoo County, Michigan, described as follows: COMMENCTNG at the North
one-quarter comer of said Section 5; thence S 88"53'10" E 1668.00 feet aloug the North line oi
said scction to the PONT OF BEGINNING; thence continuing S 8a"fi'l0" E 556.00 feet along the
North line of said section; thence S 0l'06 55' W 321-32 paralel witi tie East lne ol said section;
thence N 88'53 05" W 4.9O fcet; th€nce S O1"06'55" W 46.93 par-alcl with the East line oi said
section; thence S 88"53'05' E 4-90 feeu thedce S 0l'06'55'W 231.75 parallel with the East tifle of
said section; thence N 88'53'lO" V/ 556.04 feet pa.rallel with the Nor(h linc of sard section; thence
NOf'0709" E 600.00 feet to the point of b inning. Pa.rcel contains 7.66 acres including road
right of way.

Parcel G:
Part of the Northeast onc-quaiter of Section 05, Town 02 South, Range 12 West, Oshtemo
Township, Kalamazoo County, Michigan, describ€d as follows: BEGINNING at the Northeast
corner of said Scction 5; tiencc S Ol "06'55r W 41O.0O along tie East line of said section; thence
N 48"53'10' W 4l0.OO feet parallel with the Norrh line of said section; tlence N O1"06 55: E +1.75
parallel with the East line of said section; thenc.e N 88"53'Or- W 4.90 fee! thence N 0l'06'55" E
46.93 parallcl with the Eas! line of said section; rhence S 88"53'05' E 4.9O feet; thence N
01"06 55" E 321.32 paiallel with tie East line of said section to a point on the North line of said
section; thence S 68"53'10" E +10.00 leet along the North line of sard section to the point of
beginning. Parc€t contains 3-86 acres including road right of wa-v.

suRvrr-Dr) nni r, RcDq9 0i-iANL)
DESCXTI,ED AXD DcT.NI:ATED llEHsofl. THlf StlD IraT tS A 1AUE
RtiPRnsrmano{ oi nD suwruuJcouPl-rl:D urrH THE n qutRlur:fis of sF.clrox 3, rcr t3.l' r'.A- l97o
AS ArIEXDT:D. T1I ts SUIIVLY WTS TADE FiOTI Tfit, 

^TI^CHtsD 
LIiC^L

oEsclalPnon. TH! DFscrrrnox !i s orul:n To L's lly TriE pr:
'ro. on w s PLf.lt RED t Y us HroM fl{rlRrrrlon oa DocrJMEr\_rs oNDN To
t_strTHe E*soN aEanr8x,
,rDsllr c,-oF rffll, oR Tm, rxsuPrncE rauc:1' roR .rccuR{6 , EAsr:uF,NTs

REVISION Sl PER TOWNSTIIP RE UIREMI,N'I'S 202A 09- 12

Terra
Pointe
Consultants, Inc.

Plat of Surr/ey
Pert of the Northeast 1/4

SE, 05, ToE g2 South, RsnAe 12 West
Oshtemo To$nship, Kalama4o County, Ml

Ir28 Foxchas. k e, sE
Gtad Rapials- U! 49546
PH 516.90t_rS68

Cli.nt Jan.s Endres
S3O7 w- O AEnuc

I<alan@q Ml 49OO9

TtlC Job No. 20022 Shect 4 oa,l
Dare oI Field sr&v: 06123l2O20

No,
39994

16



12/7/23, 10:38 AM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1943 1/2

ARTICLE 4

4 – AG: AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT
Contents:
4.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
4.20 PERMITTED USES
4.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
4.40 SPECIAL USES

(Amended by ord. no. 611; adopted May 28th, 2019, effec�ve June 6th, 2019. Amended by ord.no. 647; adopted January
24, 2023.)

4.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
This district classifica�on is designed for areas where the principal use of land is for farming opera�ons as defined in the
Michigan Right to Farm Act. The district is intended to preserve the farming opera�ons historically present in the
Township and allow addi�onal opera�ons in keeping with the Township character. Ac�vi�es within the district are to be
carefully managed so as to achieve conserva�on of soil, water and nutrients.

4.20 PERMITTED USES
A. Farm opera�ons as defined in the Michigan Right to Farm Act when conducted in conformance with the generally-

accepted agricultural and management prac�ces adopted by the Michigan Commission of Agriculture.
B. One dwelling may be established for each 200 feet of con�nuous public road frontage and three acres of land.
C. Farm labor housing in compliance with the Michigan Health Code, as amended, when occupied by employees of the

farm opera�on and their families. All such structures shall be setback a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines.
D. Truck gardens, greenhouses, nurseries located on unpla�ed parcels.
E. Houses of worship.
F. Veterinarian clinics.

G. Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the foregoing.
H. Essen�al services.
I. Family day care home.
J. Adult Foster Care Facility.
K. Foster Family Home.
L. Qualified Residential Treatment Programs (QRTP)

4.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
A. Temporary outdoor events (not las�ng more than one day).
B. Home occupa�ons.
C. Agribusiness.
D. Agritourism, Category 1

(Amended by ord. no. 611; adopted May 28th, 2019, effec�ve June 6th, 2019)

4.40 SPECIAL USES
A. Buildings and regulator sta�ons for essen�al services.
B. Group day care home.

17

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1944
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1945
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1946
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1947
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=207
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2451
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=464
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=295
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1927
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=332
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1881
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1928
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1922
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1918
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=270
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1776
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1913
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1856
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1880
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1882
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2583
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2584
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1911
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1893
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2450
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2467
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1861
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1880
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1890


12/7/23, 10:38 AM Document Viewer | Compilation of General and Zoning Ordinances

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1943 2/2

C. Riding stables.
D. Kennels for the breeding, raising and/or boarding of dogs or cats.
E. Temporary outdoor events (las�ng more than one day).
F. Bed and Breakfast Inns.

G. Communica�on towers.
H. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extrac�on businesses, and landfill gas recovery

processing facili�es.
I. Wind energy conversion systems.
J. Agritourism, Category 2.
K. Agritourism, Category 3.

 

18

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1920
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1911
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1859
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1929
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=180
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1373
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2467


ARTICLE 5

5 – RR: RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
Contents:
5.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
5.20 PERMITTED USES
5.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
5.40 SPECIAL USES

(Amended by ord. no. 611; adopted May 28th, 2019, effec�ve June 6th, 2019. Amended by ord. no. 632; adopted

February 10th, 2021, effec�ve February 16th, 2021. Amended by ord.no. 647; adopted January 24, 2023.)

5.10 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
This district is intended to protect the quality of the overall environment of Oshtemo Township while sa�sfying the desire
for a semi-rural lifestyle within areas which are not considered suitable for agricultural uses due to soil limita�ons or land
fragmenta�on, but which are also not suitable for tradi�onal residen�al subdivisions as a result of u�lity system
limita�ons, street capacity, or topography or other natural features. Use of nontradi�onal land development op�ons,
such as the Open Space Community provisions of Ar�cle 43 or Open Space Preserva�on Residen�al Development Op�on
of Ar�cle 44 to conserve open space, fallow land, wooded areas, and wetlands, is encouraged.

5.20 PERMITTED USES
A. Private, one-family dwellings.
B. Libraries
C. Fire sta�ons and other Township buildings
D. Cemeteries, excluding crematories
E. House of Worship
F. Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the foregoing.

G. Essen�al services, excluding buildings and regulator sta�ons.
H. Family Day Care Home.
I. Adult Foster Care Facility.
J. Foster Family Home.

K. Qualified Residential Treatment Programs (QRTP)

5.30 PERMITTED USES WITH CONDITIONS
A. Nonprofit educa�onal, noncommercial recrea�onal and noncommercial business centers.
B. Temporary outdoor events (not las�ng more than one day).
C. Home occupa�ons.
D. Agribusiness
E. Agritourism, Category 1

5.40 SPECIAL USES
A. Golf courses, parks, and outdoor recrea�onal areas.
B. Use of exis�ng buildings formerly u�lized in the daily opera�on of a farm (on or before March 12, 2003) on a parcel

that is no longer operated as a func�oning farm, as defined in the Michigan Right to Farm Act, for a landscaping
contractor business or large-item storage subject to a finding by the Building Official that said building is suitable for19

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1949
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1951
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1952
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1927
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-2138
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-2147
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1933
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1930
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=464
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=928
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1861
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1864
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1872
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1856
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1880
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1882
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2583
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2584
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1911
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1893
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2450
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2467
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1170
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1911
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1861
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1913
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=821
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=329
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1863


the proposed use. No outdoor storage of equipment or items such as snow plows, lawn mowers, trailers or boats may
occur unless expressly approved during the Special Use and Site Plan review process.

C. Public and private schools; may have a Child Care Center as an accessory use.
D. Veterinarian clinics.
E. Kennels, in unpla�ed areas, for the breeding, raising and/or boarding of dogs or cats.
F. Shoo�ng ranges and private clubs opera�ng in connec�on therewith.

G. Buildings and regulator sta�ons for essen�al services.
H. Group day care home.
I. Temporary outdoor events (las�ng more than one day).
J. Bed and Breakfast Inns.
K. Communica�on towers.
L. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extrac�on businesses, and landfill gas recovery

processing facili�es.
M. Wind energy conversion systems.
N. Agritourism, Category 2
O. Agritourism, Category 3

20

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1778
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1916
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2591
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=987
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=979
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=346
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1880
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1890
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1859
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1929
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=180
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1373
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2467


 

 

December 07, 2023 
 
Mtg Date:   December 14, 2023 
 
To:  Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
 
From:  Colten Hutson, Zoning Administrator 
  
Applicant: Scott Bradley, Charter Foods, Inc. 

Greg Minshall, Matrix Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
 
Owner:  ATT AVON LLC 
 
Property: 5481 W Main Street, Parcel Number 05-13-401-030 
  
Zoning:  C: Local Business District 
 
Request: Site plan and special use approval to construct one 2,288 square foot building to serve as 

a fast food restaurant with drive through. 
 
Section(s): Section 64: Site Plan Review 
 Section 65: Special Uses 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Long John Silvers is requesting site plan 
and special exception use approval to 
redevelop the site with one 2,288 square 
foot building to serve as a fast food 
restaurant with drive through located at 
5481 W Main Street. The applicant is 
seeking to upgrade the property through a 
complete reconstruction of the site in 
order to revitalize it and bring it up to 
code. The approximate half-acre site is 
located on the corner of W Main Street 
and Maple Hill Drive, immediately east of 
US-131. The site under consideration is 
outlined in light blue on the map to the 
right. 
 
The subject project site falls within the C: 
Local Business District zoning designation. 
Drive through services for businesses are 
considered a special exception use within 
the C: Local Business District. Any 
proposed special exception use is subject 
to review and approval from the Oshtemo Township Planning Commission. 
 

W Main Street 

M
ap

le
 H

ill
 D

ri
ve

 

21



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 2 

 

ANALYSIS: 
When reviewing this request, there are two sets of criteria that need to be considered: the general site 
plan review criteria outlined in Section 64 and the general special use review criteria outlined in Section 
65.30. Below is an analysis of the proposal against these two code sections. Overall, most of the 
requirements of Section 64 and Section 65.30 have been met. 
 
Section 64: Site Plan Review 
 General Zoning  Compliance: 

Zoning: The subject site is zoned C: Local Business 
District and is located in the northeast quadrant of 
the Township. The proposed Long John Silvers site 
abuts a strip mall to the south, a fast food restaurant 
to the east, a standard sit down restaurant to the 
west, and a tire service shop to the north. Zoning 
wise, C: Local Business District is adjacent to the 
north, south, east, and west. Restaurants providing 
drive through services are considered a special 
exception use within the C: Local Business District. 
All general zoning requirements have been met. A 
snapshot of the proposed site plan is provided on the 
right.  

 
Access and Circulation 
Access: The subject property currently has a private 
service drive traveling east/west that intersects 
through the north end of the property. The main 
point of access, however, is through the curb cut 
located in the northwest corner of the site adjacent to Maple Hill Drive. Additionally, the site can 
also be accessed through the property to the south as one-way access into the site has been 
provided. Most of the circulation aisle widths are proposed to be 20’ wide, which is the minimum 
width required under Section 52.50 of the zoning ordinance for one-way travel. There are still 
some issues with striping and other pavement markings located within the circulation aisles. 
Staff is confident that such issues can be addressed administratively and plans be submitted to 
the Township for review and approval post the pending decision by the Oshtemo Township 
Planning Commission.  
 
Drive through: The drive through component of this request is proposed to be primarily located 
along the south and east sides of the building. A majority of the drive through is proposed to be 
made up of concrete material. Drive throughs servicing a restaurant use are required by Section 
52.90 of the zoning ordinance to provide a minimum of five stacking spaces from each individual 
point of service. A total of ten stacking spaces throughout the drive through have been provided, 
five from the order station on the south side of the building where the menu board is located and 
five from the service window on the east side of the building where the food is picked up. All drive 
through stacking spaces are proposed to be 10’ x 20’, which meets the required minimum 
dimensions outlined in Section 52.90 of the zoning ordinance. Although most drive-through 
requirements have been satisfied, there are some issues with striping as well. As a condition of 

22



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 3 

 

approval, the entire drive-thru lane, including areas necessary for stacking spaces, shall be 
demarcated and striping be shown on the civil site plan drawings. 
 
Parking: A total of 16 parking spaces are currently proposed to be located on the Long John Silvers 
site, two of which are ADA accessible. All parking stalls are proposed to be 10’ x 20’. Restaurant 
uses are required to provide one parking space for every 70 square feet of net floor area plus one 
per each employee on the largest shift OR one parking space per each three persons allowed 
within the maximum occupancy load as established by the Township building code plus one per 
each employee on the largest shift, whichever is greater. After calculating the parking needed for 
the proposed use on-site with the number for square footage being greater than based on 
occupancy load, a total of 31 parking spaces would be required. Although the site itself is short by 
15 parking spaces, there is a cross parking easement agreement in place between the Long John 
Silvers lot and the property to the south, which provides Long John Silvers access to the south 
property’s northerly 19 parking spaces. With the cross parking easement agreement in place, the 
applicant was able to meet such parking requirements by proposing a combined total of 35 
parking spaces, which is shown on the site plan and is well under the maximum number of spaces 
allowed for sites of this nature. 

 
Easements: A cross parking easement agreement exists with the strip mall property to the 
immediate south which provides additional parking to the Long John Silvers property. Easements 
for public water and sewer are also present along the northern property line.  
 
Sidewalk: The Township’s adopted Non-motorized Plan does identify a sidewalk adjacent to the 
subject site on the south side of W Main Street. This stretch of W Main Street already offers a 5’ 
wide sidewalk. Additionally, a sidewalk connector from said non-motorized facility to the principal 
building is proposed in the northeast corner of the site in order to provide pedestrian access. With 
said non-motorized facility already having been installed, and the applicant proposing a sidewalk 
connection from the principal building on-site to said existing non-motorized facility, no further 
action on this item is needed.   

 
Building Design 
Building Information: The proposed 2,288 square foot, 
one-story restaurant building will be located in the center 
of the property and is approximately 20’ in height. The 
exterior materials for the proposed building will consist of 
blue, white, and brown fiber cement siding and panels. An 
elevation sheet was submitted with the site plan. 
Snapshots of the north and east building elevations for the 
proposed 2,288 square foot fast food restaurant building 
can be 
found on 
the 
images to 
the right. 

 

23



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 4 

 

Lot Dimensions: The overall project site is about a half-acre in size and is located within the Elk’s 
Plat No. 1. The subject lot possesses approximately 250’ of road frontage adjacent to Maple Hill 
Drive and 135’ of road frontage adjacent to W Main Street. The lot exceeds both the property 
area (min. 13,200 square feet) and frontage (min. 120’) requirements for Commercial lots located 
in a plat and serviced by public water and sewer. The site’s dimensions satisfy zoning ordinance 
requirements. 
 
Setbacks: Per Section 50.60.C of the zoning ordinance, properties located within Commercial 
zoning districts are required to have a minimum front yard setback of 70’. If properties are located 
along a designated highway within the Township, they are subject to additional setback 
requirements if greater than what is outlined for the underlying zoning district. The subject 
property possesses two front yards, one along Maple Hill Drive, and the other along W Main 
Street, which happens to be a designated highway. The minimum front yard setback from the 
edge of the Maple Hill Drive right-of-way is 70’. The minimum setback requirement from W Main 
Street is 170’ from the center of the street right-of-way. However, there is a provision in the 
zoning ordinance which allows for a reduction in the front yard setback based on the setback of 
existing buildings in proximity to the subject site. The Firestone Tire Shop, which has a front yard 
setback of 100’ measured from the center of the W Main Street right-of-way, is located between 
175’ and 300’ away from the subject site. Per Section 50.60.A of the zoning ordinance, staff is 
allowed to take their front yard setback of 100’ and add 2/3 of the difference between the 
prescribed setback distance of 170’ and the setback of the existing building of 100’. 2/3 of 70’ is 
46.2’. 100’ + 46.2’ = 146.2’. Therefore, the minimum permitted front yard setback is 146.2’ from 
the center of the W Main Street right-of-way. The building is setback 70’ from the front property 
line along Maple Hill Drive and 153’ from the center of the street right-of-way on W Main Street. 
Properties zoned as Commercial are also subject to have a minimum side and rear yard setback 
of 20’ or equal to the height of the abutting side of the building at its highest point as measured 
from the grade of the property line, whichever is greater. The height of the building is 20’ tall, 
which requires a minimum setback in the side and rear yards of 20’, which is met. The minimum 
setbacks for the front yard, side yard, and rear yard are satisfactory. 
 
Screening: The applicant is proposing to install a 7’6” tall dumpster enclosure in the southwest 
corner of the site. The dumpster enclosure is proposed to be made of concrete block with steel 
metal tube doors. The color is proposed to match the building. With respects to fences, other 
than installing temporary tree protection fencing along the west property line, no fences are 
proposed at this time. 
 
Lighting: A photometric plan was provided and meets most zoning ordinance requirements; 
however, there are issues regarding the placement for some of the pole mounted lights which will 
require repositioning. Staff is confident that a revised lighting plan can be reviewed and 
approved administratively and recommend the Planning Commission include such as a 
condition of approval. 
 
Signs: One-way directional signs are being added to the site. Any future additional signage will 
require a sign permit application be submitted to the Township for review and approval.  
 

24



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 5 

 

Landscaping: A number of details are still missing on the landscaping plan. An updated 
landscaping plan meeting all applicable requirements of Article 53 of the zoning ordinance shall 
be submitted to the Township and be reviewed and approved administratively.   

 
Engineering: Prein & Newhof and the Oshtemo Public Works Department have reviewed the 
proposal and have noted that there are some engineering concerns that have not yet been 
addressed. However, the remaining engineering concerns are minor enough to be reviewed and 
approved administratively and recommend the Planning Commission include such as a 
condition of approval. 

 
Fire Department: The Fire Marshal has reviewed the site plan and overall is happy with the 
proposed site plan. The Fire Marshal mentioned that the circulation for fire apparatus throughout 
the subject property has improved.  
 

Section 65.30: Special Use Review Criteria 
A. Master Plan/Zoning Ordinance: The proposed use will be consistent with the purpose and intent 

of the Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance, including the District in which the use is located.  
The Township’s Future Land Use 
Plan categorizes this area—west of 
Drake Road, east of Maple Hill 
Drive, and south of W Main Street, 
as General Commercial. 
Restaurants with drive through 
services are permissible with 
special use approval from the 
Planning Commission under the C: 
Local Business District zoning 
classification. This property is 
currently zoned C: Local Business 
District. From a zoning 
perspective, the proposed use 
would be consistent with the most 
recent use on-site and is in 
accordance with the Township’s 
Zoning Ordinance.  

 
B. Site Plan Review: The Site Plan 

Review Criteria of Section 64 
A site plan has been provided. 

 See evaluation under Section 64: 
 Site Plan Review. 

  
C. Impacts: 

1. The proposed use would be compatible, harmonious and appropriate with the existing or 
planned character and uses of adjacent properties; meaning the proposed use can coexist 
with neighboring uses in a stable fashion over time such that no neighboring use is unduly 
negatively impacted.  

25



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 6 

 

Although no longer in use, a fast food restaurant formerly operated by Long John Silvers 
already exists on-site. Several other fast food restaurants are within a close perimeter of a 
couple hundred feet from the subject property, which include Wendys, Burger King, 
McDonalds, Starbucks, and Steak ‘n Shake. With the proposed use continuing to operate as it 
has in prior years, is in proximity of other fast food restaurant uses, and being in accordance 
with the Zoning Ordinance, staff does not foresee that the proposed use will negatively affect 
neighboring uses.  

 
2. Potentially adverse effects arising from the proposed use on adjacent properties would be 

minimized through the provision of adequate parking, the placement of buildings, 
structures and entrances, as well as the location of screening, fencing, landscaping, buffers 
or setbacks.  
Staff does not foresee a significant impact of the proposed use on neighboring properties. 
The proposed use is an allowable use within the zoning district it is planned for. A restaurant 
with a drive through service has operated at the subject property in the past. Entrances on 
the site will continue to be used in a similar fashion. The proposed site plan meets the 
minimum setback and parking requirements. Adequate screening, buffers, and more are 
provided and discussed further in the Site Plan Review section of this staff report.  

 
3. The proposed use would not be detrimental, hazardous, or disturbing to existing or future 

adjacent uses or to the public welfare by reason of excessive traffic, noise, smoke, odors, 
glare, or visual clutter.  
A restaurant providing drive through services has occupied the site for nearly 20 years. 
Although the existing building will be demolished and the property will be revamped, the use 
will remain the same. Best construction practices and guidelines will be followed, and the site 
will be built to satisfy building code and zoning ordinance requirements. The amount of traffic 
will be consistent with what the subject site has produced in the past. The current conditions 
on-site include a boarded up, vacant building with overgrown vegetation. The revitalization 
of the site will benefit the property itself, surrounding businesses, and the community. Staff 
anticipates that the proposed project will not generate such negative impacts on adjacent 
properties.  

 
D. Environment: The natural features of the subject property shall only be cleared or altered to 

the extent necessary to accommodate site design elements, particularly where the natural 
features assist in preserving the general character of the area. 
The proposed site modifications, as presented in the site plan, will minimally impact the existing 
natural features on the site. The subject site is currently well built out since it previously served 
as a fast food restaurant. The only type of greenspace that is present now are the canopy trees 
along the northern and western property lines, which will remain intact. Additional landscaping 
including understory canopy trees and shrubbery are proposed to be located at the north and 
west ends of the site. The stormwater basin proposed in the southeast corner of the site also 
includes plantings as well. 
 

E. Public Facilities: Adequate public and/or private infrastructure and services already exist or 
would be provided, and will safeguard the health, safety, and general welfare of the public.  
Public water and sewer are located on the north and east ends of the site and are both available. 
Regarding the transportation network, the intersection to the immediate west at Maple Hill Drive 

26



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission 
Long John Silvers – Special Use  
12/14/2023 ∙ Page 7 

 

and W Main Street is controlled by a traffic signal. If the special exception use request is granted, 
it will not negatively affect the area as the use is not changing from what was previously there. A 
5’ wide sidewalk connecting the existing 5’ wide non-motorized facility adjacent to W Main Street 
to the newly proposed fast food restaurant building on-site is proposed.  
 

F. Specific Use Requirements: The Special Use development requirements of Article 49.  
No specific use requirements exist for drive through services for businesses. Therefore, this 
section does not apply. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Department staff recommend that the Planning Commission approve the proposed site plan and 
special exception use for a 2,288 square foot restaurant with drive through located at 5481 W Main Street 
with the following conditions.  
 

1) A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) permit from the Kalamazoo County Drain 
Commissioner’s Office will be required prior to building permit issuance. 

2) The engineer’s seal shall be provided on an updated set of civil site plan drawings and submitted 
to the Township prior to building permit issuance.  

3) The parcel ID for the subject site and lot size information shall be noted under general project 
and site data on Sheet T-1.0 of the plan set prior to building permit issuance. 

4) Finalization of striping, pavement markings, and drive through details shall be subject to the 
administrative review and approval of the Township Planning Department prior to building 
permit issuance.  

5) Finalization of grading details, site drainage, and any other engineering details shall be subject 
to the administrative review and approval of the Township Engineer prior to building permit 
issuance.  

6) An updated landscaping plan meeting the requirements outlined in Section 53 of the Zoning 
Ordinance shall be submitted to the Township for review and approval prior to building permit 
issuance. 

7) A revised lighting plan meeting the requirements outlined in Section 54 of the Zoning Ordinance 
shall be submitted to the Township for review and approval prior to building permit issuance. 

8) The watermain connection shall be coordinated with the City of Kalamazoo Department of Public 
Services – Anna Crandall (269) 337-8055. Once approved by the City of Kalamazoo, the plans and 
a copy of the permit for final approval shall be provided to the Township prior to construction. 

9) Copies of any necessary recorded easements shall be provided to the Township prior to issuing a 
certificate of occupancy. 

 
Attachments: Application, Environmental Checklist, Hazardous Substance From, Architectural 

Drawings, Civil Site Plan Set, Lighting Cut Sheets, and Cross Parking Agreement 

27



 

[This page le� inten�onally blank] 

28



CHARTER  TOWNSHIP
•   Established   1839  .

PROJECT NAME & ADDRESS

7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49009-9334
Phone: 269-3754260      Fax:  269-375-7180

PLEASE PRINTLftyprtryjlha
PLANNING & ZONING APPLICATION

:::I;c:nytNrfe
Address:JhctLLd£LEL_£fll_4!±Z::Te:1;:#
Interestinproperty.._Jngiv_GfL

OVVNER*:
US 0PC0 One  LLC

Name: .`.i ---. i .-.-.-.--- `-`i    _            .__     `_                        __--

Address:   10350 0rmsby Park Place, Suj±eL3QQ_.  _ __ `_
Louisville,  KY 40223

E~maii:_-~gEthJichch_rfue±
phone&Fax:___faJ£_=_.!lfl=:-_.Lefff_-_~-

NATURE OF THE REQUEST: (Please check the appropriate item(s))

iEi
Pre-Application Review
Site Plan Review -1088
Administrative Site Plan Review -1086
Special Exception Use -1085
Zoning Variance - 1092
Site Condominium - 1084

Fee Amount

1`1           !`

S r)A c r
I ,- 0 I(

`()`WNSH

i ] S li

( `) N I , Y

Escrow Amount

Accessory Building Review -1083
Rezoning -1091
Subdivision Plat Review - 1089
Interpretation - 1082
Other:

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE YOUR REQUHST (Use Attachments if Necessary):

itELjrdn:_+_±!\€±gjuo_th`xpL?~Gtijer±Ljaij±±L_fJfajGlcfe±4_._
_     _                                         _               _  ------.--,-                                              ___  _    _--

Rev. 9/ 14/22

ATT Avon, LLC c/o A&C Ventures, Inc.

465 First St. W, 2nd Floor
Sonoma, CA 95476

ATT Avon, LLC c/o A&C Ventures Inc.
Karyl Carter, Portfolio Asset Manager

29



30



����������	
����
���
��
�����������������������������������
������������������������� ��!�"���#!�"��$�������� %��!�������!��"�!��&'�!#��!"��$()�'�!#�*�����������!"��$%!�'��!+�,$!-(�!����)�,(�����!"�,�.%�,�(�!��/��0������!$�����������������������)�,���!��$!�'��$��������!"��$%!�'��!+�,$!(�!����)�,-(���/��1""���$!���)�,(�����!"��)),$+����(�'� ��,�.%�,�"�&,$(�2����($��$*!���)�$,�$���,�#$+�,!(�!���#�!����/���345�6789�9:5;�<=�>79?@=;=A�BCA�8=;:8C=A�;7�;3=��7DC534?�D3=C�B�54;=�?@BC�45�5:<94;;=AE��������������������!$����)�,(����))������$!�&$,(F� %��!�������,��,��)$!�� ���&$,�$ ���!�!#��!&$,(���$!��!"�)�,(����)-)������$!�&$,(��&,$(������)),$),�����#$+�,!(�!��$&&����/��G$()���!����!"�),$)�,�,�#���,���$!�*�����))���� ����������!"��$%!�'�,�.%�,�(�!������,�.%�,�"�&$,������)��!��)),$+����!�2����($��$*!���)/�������$*!���)�*����&$,*�,"����$)'�$&������&$,(��$�����H����#�!�I�)�,�(�!��$&�J!+�,$!(�!����K%����'�0�,(���G$$,"�!��$,/������
B9=�76�L:54C=55M����7>B;47C�76�L:54C=55M���
B9=�76�L:54C=55��DC=8M����B4@4CN��AA8=55M����4;OM�� � � � � �;B;=M�� � � � P4?M�����=@=?37C=M���L:54C=55��BCBN=8����?=8B;78M����O?=�76�L:54C=55�Q�')��$&�����+�������$� ����,,��"�$%���������),$)$��"� %��!���R��!��%"������),$��������!"�$)�,���$!�ST���������B66489�;3B;�;3=�4C6789B;47C�5:<94;;=A�4C�;345�6789�45�B>>:8B;=E����2*!�,U��V�#!��%,�T� � � � � I���T�� -W-�

Long John Silvers

5481 W Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI 49009

LJS OPCO One LLC

10350 Ormsby Park Place, Suite 300

Louisville Kentucky 40223

Preparation and service of food to dine-in and drive-thru customers

423-438-0216

6/27/2023

Scott Bradley - Development Representative

31



���������	����
�������	���������	����������������������������������
�����������������������������������	���	���	�����	����������������������������
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"����������	���������!��������������	���������	������	���	��������������!������ � ���������	�����	���	���������	�����#��� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�<924()0�=('02�89(7,':�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH��I��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"����������	���������������������������������	����J�	����������	�	��������������� � �	�����������	����#�� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH��K��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"���������	����	��������L�	����������������������	�����#��M�!��������!��������� � ��!������������������������	����������������������������������������	�N��������������������	����� � ����	�������	����!�	�����������	����	����� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���O��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"������������	�	��������	�������P�#��QR�����������!	�!��������P������������ � 	������	������������S��������T����������������������������!�	������������	�����������	��������������� � ����T��������S������������U�	��T�	�����M�N�������� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�<'%2(.0�V(&W�/,6,>,%&;�?DXEC�GGDF@ABH��Y��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"������	��������������	�����	���	�!	������������!������������������L�	������� � ������#�� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���Z��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"������N��N�������	���!�	������������	������������	�����	����!����������L�	������ � ����������	�����������������������[[[�P����	�����IY[����������	�II[[�������	���	��!�	������#������ � ����������	���	��!�	������������	����	����� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���\��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"��������	�������������[[�P����	���J�������IY����������	�II[������������[[[�� � P����	���J�������IY[����������	�I�I[[�����������L�	����������#��������������������������������������� � �������������	���	�����"�����������	�������������	�������������]��Q�]���������������������	������������ � ����������	�������T��������M�!�	���������Q�N�	���������̂���������!��������	����	���N������������� � ���������������!!����!�!�	��������������������	���!�	������������������� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���_������
������������� ��������!	�!�����!	�"������������������	�����	������	�����	����������	��!�	��������!	����������!����� � �������������	�!�������������	�������!�������������������!�������������������	�������������#���� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�=(>'0�+(&(.030&'�/,6,>,%&;�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���̀������
��� M��������!	�!�����!	�"������N��N��������	P���	����������������������	������������	�N�	����	������� � �	��P�������������������	������!������	��������Y[[���������������������P���	�N�	����	�����	������#�� � $%&'()'*��+,)-,.(&�/01(2'30&'�%4�5&6,2%&30&'(7�89(7,':;�a(&b�(&b�=('02�+(&(.030&';�?@ABC�DAEFGDHH���[��
���  ��������!	�!�����!	�"�������������������	�����N�	��	���!��	�!���������������������������������������� � ����N��������������������	���������������	���������J�	��������������#�� ����������	���������������	��� � ����	������������	���	���	����	�����	��������Y[[�������������P���	���	���#������������������	����������� � ������������������	���!�	�����������	����	����� � $%&'()'*��c(7(3(d%%�$%9&':�/2(,&�$%33,>>,%&;�c(7(3(d%%�?@ABC�GefFeXXEg��������I��
32



��������� �����	
��
������	���	�������	���
�������������������������
�	��������� � ��������	�������������
��������������������������	���� � ������� ��!��"��#$�!%&�'%()�*�+�,�����-��$�.-+���!%#/"�%0�1%2�#�+%��3�4�/"#��+%���*�.%�*�5�6#�'#�+�� � 789:;�<=<>?8@A�� � ������� ��B�C-0�#"�*D��++%#�"�*�E�0�%&��%#�"����$�F-���"�$3��#�G�#�0��"��#$�0%&�'%�+�#%��5����� � @A3AAA�'�**��0DC�$(�H"�5"'���1%2�#�+%����G�4�/"#��+%���*�I-�*"�$3�E�0�%�H���'%+%���1"/"0"��3��� � 789:;�?9=><?AA����J������ K���L�������������M��������������

���������	
��	�������N������	
��L	O	���P�	
�Q����
�P���	���� � �L����	�N��	���	��������	����
�	
��RP	
�����������L	�S�������L��T�������U	�	�	O����	���	����� � V��	���
��W�	
����K����N�������	���
���	�������RP������� � ������� ���"�$��G�)�*�+�,��3�E��%#�X%�*�+��"���6*����789:;�<<=>Y@?=Z���[������ ������L�������������M������
��P���	�
����	���������	
�Q���	�	
��
�	
��\���
S��	�����������K������ � ������L����
�N���
�	����L��	�������	���	S�
����� � ������� ��E%**����0�#-��"��3�)�*�+�,�����-��$�.-+���!%#/"�%0�1%2�#�+%���789:;�<=<>?8@AZ�� � ������� ��E%**�]̂��C��+%��3�)�*�+�,�����-��$�.-+���!%#/"�%0�1%2�#�+%���789:;�<=<>?8@AZ���_������ K��L�������������M����̀���	
����L����	������Q���������P
������P����
��L��a��P���
�����
b��b����
�� � 	
��������	
������P��
����L��L��c��L�S	
�d��	����
�����e
b���
��
�	��fP	���������L���� � c��L�S	
�g����
���h�
��	�i�j�������� � ������� ��H"�5"'���1%2�#�+%����G�4�/"#��+%���*�I-�*"�$3�X%+%C"��"���k�X%C%/%*�2+%��3��� � l��0"�'�1"0�#"���mGG"�%�7?@=;�<=<>:Y<=���n������ K��L�������������M����̀���	
����L����	������Q���������P
������P����
��L��a��
��P�����
��L��cK��� � g���[op�W��������q��N�rc��L�S	
�s�������e
b���
��
�	��T�
�	��
	���
t����P�M���������������b���� � 	����
�P
�����L��q�	u�
S�v
���S��P
��s���	S��V	
u�̀qvsVa�W��S�	���� � ��������H"�5"'���1%2�#�+%����G�4�/"#��+%���*�I-�*"�$3�4�/"#��+%���*�X%02��0%�1"/"0"��3�89:>?9=><?AA��wx���	��	
������L��������	
��	����b	��������L��c��L�S	
�d��������e
b���
��
�	��fP	����N��
��P��
S��������������
	���
�	��
S�def�d�b���
N���
�	����L��W������T�
����	���
�v
��N�q	
�
S�d�������j������̀n�pa[p[�yJ__���������������������z��VL���������	��L��u��������������	
�Q�����RP�����
���L��L��	�����
�������������M������b������
����jL�����V��
L������b�����L���������������b�������	�	
��
����	���
	����b������jL�����V��
L�����
���	���SP�	�����	S�
����
�	
������L���	��	���g����b	������L��������	
�����L��V��
L�������
�����	
������	�������������L����b�����������L��V��
L����
�	
���	������� �[��� � � � � � � � � � � � � �oQo_�
33



�����������	��
��� ���������������	���������
	�������� 	�������������� � !�"�#$�%� &'$"$(�)*(��!# �""$(�)��&)�"����"�$���"$�&')*��$+�$,�&��%$��-���	./���0��1234�22����5�6.�3�4��0��1234�22����	./���0��1234�22��74�8�����.3934:��;;8�22�����3�<��� � � � � ��.����� � � � 3=������9�=>�4����� 
�.0038/��>.���>��340�8/.�3�4�21?/3���;�34��>32�0�8/�32�.6618.�������74�8@2��3:4.�18��� � � � � � � � � �.����� ��	�����	��������������������	����� A)B)�(�!���!#�")*%$�C($��*�"��*DE��F$�$�$*%$�G$%-�HH-IJKL�M��"$ ����,*���&�N�*�*O�M�(�*)*%$��H-�P�Q� R�''�"�$�&��&��$(�&��S$%"��"��$L�!�$L����O$*$�)"$��)B)�(�!���!#�")*%$���*�T!)*"�"�$��O�$)"$��"�)*�HJJ�� � U�'�O�) ��&$�� �*"��C)#�!"�VW�O)''�*��&$�� �*"�D�*�,L�����*�"�$��!"!�$X��Y��Z$�L�&'$)�$�%� &'$"$�"�$�� � �$�"����"������� �)*(��!# �"�,�"��Z�!����"$�&')*-��Y��*�L��"�&��$�$�)*(��!# �"�,�"��Z�!����"$�&')*-��V-�P�Q� R�''��)B)�(�!���!#�")*%$��#$��$!�$(�)*(�[�����$%Z%'$(��*\��"$X��I-�P�Q� R�''�)*Z��)B)�(�!���!#�")*%$��#$��"��$(L�!�$(L�����)*('$(��*�"�$���"$X��Y��Z$�L��($*"��Z�"�$�'�%)"��*L�� � ��B$L�)*(�"Z&$�����&�''�%�*")�* $*"��)%�'�"�$��,��%��,�''�#$�!�$(�)*(�&��+�($�($")�'���*�"�$���"$�&')*-������]-�P�Q� R�''��)B)�(�!��,)�"$�)*[���'�T!�(��*(!�"��)'�,)�"$�#$�"�)*�&��"$(����\��"$�����"�$)" $*"L��� � (��&��)'L�)*(�[�����$%Z%'�*OX��Y��Z$�L�&'$)�$�'��"�"�$�*) $L�)((�$���)*(�"$'$&��*$�*! #$�����Z�!���� � '�%$*�$(�"�)*�&��"$�C�D-������ \H\�

Long John Silvers

5481 W Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI 49009

LJS OPCO One LLC

10350 Ormsby Park Place, Suite 300

40223KentuckyLouisville

423-438-0216

6/27/2023

34



������� �����	
���	
�����	�������
���	����
������
��
������	��������

���������	��	�����
���
������ � �
���	������������
�
���������
	��������
������	������

�����������	��
����������	��	���
�� ��!���
���� � ��	�����"������	�#
$����
	�����%	����	�
	����&��������'�����
�(�	��#������	��)�*+,��+�-.*/.������ � �$
�������
0���
�
	����	��
��������	����/������ �������
��	�
����������
�$��$��
�$��1
������
��	���
	
����$��$��
����������	� ��!���
����	���������� � ����
���������
����������	���
���		
��
 ��)2����
�
������	����
�$��	,�� � � ��� '�	�������
�
������
��� � � ��� 3	-���
�����	����	�)�,�� � � ��� 4�����
���������5
����������
��$$���
�����	���
���������
�$
������������� � � � �
0���
���	�����	��)6�	����7��"������	�#
$����
	�����%	����	�
	����&���������� � � � ����
�"�	��
�
	��#������	��)/*/,��/+-������� � � ���
7��8
	
����$��$��
����������	��������	����
���		
��
���������������	��
��� � � � ����
�������
�������
$��������
����+������ 2�
��
��������
���5������������	�
����������
�
9$
��
�����
���
������
������
	
���
��	-���
����� � &��	����
���������
��
�����
���9����������
���	����
�����	�����
���4�����������	���$��
�������� � 	
�
��������������������5������������	�
���
�� :
�7�����������������

� ;<==<>?@ABCD�EB=D� ;FD=GHBI��;<=J<>D>KL� �M<A=� �NBO�PQB>KGKR� �SK<ABTD�4�� � � � � �U�� � � � � �6�� � � � � �#�� � � � � �%�� � � � � �V�� � � � � �MWXN� S@WXYZ[�\G]� �̂0��� YS@� 4���
����	�'�����
�(�	��_̀�\G]� 2�
�����5
�̂�0��� aS@� b	
�����	�'�����
�(�	��S� '���� c� #����Z� 8��� ;d� 6���	
��_Z� 2�
�����5
�8��� N;� "
����6�	���	
��� � � e;� ���
	�6�	���	
��� � � _@� 2������
�(�	��
�

/f�*�
35



 

[This page le� inten�onally blank] 

36



2228 SF

1ST FLOOR

BUILDING AREA

1ST FLOOR

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

PROJECT VICINITY MAP

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

3/16" = 1'-0"

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 1

:5
7

:3
0

 P
M

T-1.0

T
it

le
 S

h
ee

t

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

Long John Silver's
5481 W Main St, Kalamazoo, MI 49009

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

BUILDING CODESPROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT

SEDGEWICK + FERWEDA ARCHITECTS
CONTACT: JEFFREY S. FERWEDA, AIA
410 EAST COURT STREET
FLINT, MICHIGAN 48503
T: 810-238-9647
JEFFREY@SFARCH.US

OWNER

LONG JOHN SILVERS
CONTACT: SCOTT BRADLEY, LJS DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTATIVE
LJS OPCO ONE, LLC
10350 ORMSBY PARK PLACE, SUITE 300
LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY 40223
T: XXX-XXX-XXXX
SBRADLEY@CHARTERFOODS.NET

ENGINEER

MATRIX CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
CONTACT: NICK FRECHEN
1601 E. CESAR E. CHAVEZ
LANSING, MI 48906
T: 517-487-2511
ADMINISTRATOR@MATRIXCEINC.COM

OWNERSHIP OF DRAWINGS
ALL PLANS, DRAWINGS, AND SPECIFICATIONS (THE DOCUMENTS) ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THEY 
WERE MADE IS EXECUTED OR NOT. OWNER SHALL NOT USE THE DOCUMENTS ON OTHER PROJECTS, 
FOR EXTENSIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE PROJECT, OR FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT BY 
OTHER EXCEPT IN AGREEMENT IN WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE COMPENSATION TO THE 
DESIGNER. THE OWNER SHALL HOLD THE ARCHITECT HARMLESS FROM ALL CLAIMS, ACTIONS, CAUSE 
OF ACTIONS, LIABILITY, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COST AND EXPENSE, INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES AND 
COSTS ARISING FROM SUCH UNAUTHORIZED USE. REPRODUCTION COPIES CAN BE PROVIDED AT THE 
OWNERS REQUEST AND EXPENSE. 

GENERAL PROJECT AND SITE

BUILDING DATA

GENERAL NOTES
1. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.  USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.
2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO ANY WORK.
3. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL GOVERNING CODES AND REGULATIONS.

KEY TO DIMENSIONING:
DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE FROM ROUGH STUD FACE TO ROUGH STUD FACE, ROUGH FACE TO 
COLUMN CENTERLINE, AND COLUMN CENTERLINE TO COLUMN CENTERLINE, UNLESS NOTED 
OTHERWISE.

BUILDING AREA: 2,228 SF
TYPE: AREA FACTOR OCCUPANTS
DINING ROOM 749 SF 1:15 SF 50
QUEUING 20 SF 1:5 SF 4
KITCHEN 861 SF 1:200 SF 5
OFFICE 57 SF 1:100 SF 1
ACCESSORY STORAGE 200 SF 1:300 SF 1
ACCESSORY STORAGE 312 SF 0 0

& PASSAGE
TOTAL 61

PROPOSED USE:

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: MBC TYPE V B (UNPROTECTED) 
NFPA 11-000

AREA LIMITATIONS:
BUILDING HEIGHT: PERMITTED x' MBC TABLE 504.3 
BUILDING AREA: MBC TABLE 506.2 SM LIMITED TO 43500 SQ FT

OCCUPANT LOAD: MBC TABLE 1004.1.2 EDUCATIONAL 
NFPA 14.1.7 TABLE 7.3.1.2
xSQ FT/x = x OCCUPANTS

DEAD END LIMIT: 20' (NON FIRE SUPPRESSED) LIN FT MAX ALLOWED 
(MBC 1018.4 NFPA 14.2.5.2)

REQUIRED EXITS: 2 REQUIRED MBC 1005.3.1 NFPA 14.2.4.2

FIRE PROTECTION:

NFPA 101 14.3.5.1 NON SPRINKLED LIMITED TO 12,000 SQ FT
TRAVEL DISTANCE TO EXIT: 200 LIN FT MAX ALLOWED (MBC 1016.1)

150 LIN FT MAX ALLOWED (NFPA 14.2.6.2)

COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL: 75 LIN FT MAX ALLOWED (MBC 1006.2.1 NFPA 14.2.5.3.1

EGRESS WINDOWS: NOT REQUIRED MBC 1030 NFPA 14.2.11.1.2

FIRE RATINGS: CORRIDORS: MBC SECTION 708 1 HR FIRE PARTITION NFPA 14.3.6
UL U419 STUD WALLS UL U905 MASONRY WALLS
HORIZONTAL BARRIERS: MBC SECTION 707 2 HR FIRE BARRIERS NFPA 14.2.2.5, 7.2.4.3
UL U419 STUD WALLS UL U905 MASONRY WALLS
STAIR ENCLOSURES: I HR RATED MBC 1022.1 NFPA 14.2.2.3
FLOORS: 2 HR FIRE RATING UL G250 CONC/MTL DECK/STL JOIST
WALL FINISHES: CORRIDOR CLASS 'A' ROOMS CLASS 'B' MBC TABLE 803.11 NFPA 14.3.3.2
FLOOR FINISHES: CORRIDOR AND ROOMS CLASS II MBC SECTION 804 NFPA 14.3.3.3.1
INCIDENTAL USES: NONE MBC TABLE 509 1 HR JANITORS CLOSET NFPA 14.3.2.1
MULTIPLE OCCUPANCIES: FIRE SEPARATION 0 HR MBC TABLE 508.4 NFPA 14.1.4
SPECIAL PROVISIONS:

PROJECT SUMMARY:

PARCEL ID:

LOT SIZE:

PARCEL ZONING: C - LOCAL BUSINESS

SETBACKS:

FRONT: 170FT FROM CENTER OF HWY
REAR: 20FT
SIDE: 20FT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
THE NORTH 250 FEET OF LOT 3, ELKS PLAT NO. 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN LIBER 31 OF PLATS OF PAGE 48, KALAMAZOO 
COUNTRY RECORDS.
BEING THE SAME PROPERTY CONVEYED BY WARRANTY DEED FROM 
CONCORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, L.L.C., A MICHIGAN LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY TO BR ASSOCIATES, INC., AN INDIANA CORPORATION DATED
DECEMBER 29, 2003 AND RECORDED JANUARY 14, 2004 IN INSTRUMENT NO. 
2004-002150.

BUILDING CODES TO REFERENCE 

MICHIGAN BUILDING CODE 2015 EDITION
MICHIGAN RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CODE 2015 EDITION
MICHIGAN REHABILITATION CODE 2015 EDITION - LEVEL 2

MECHANICAL - MICHIGAN MECHANICAL CODE 2015 EDITION
PLUMBING - MICHIGAN PLUMBING CODE 2018 EDITION
ELECTRICAL - NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 2017 EDITION

MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE - ASHRAE 90.1-2013

NFPA 101 LIFE SAFETY CODE 2015 EDITION

3/16" = 1'-0"T-1.0

Area Plan1

AREA SCHEDULE
NO. NAME AREA

1 1ST FLOOR 2228 SF

PROJECT 
LOCATION

DRAWING INDEX
SHEET

NO. SHEET NAME ISSUE DATE ADDENDUM 1

SITE PLAN

RESUB.

SITE PLAN

RESUB.

SITE PLAN

RESUB. REVISION

T-1.0 Title Sheet 11/20/23 ● ● ● ● ●

C-100 Cover Sheet 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

C-300 Civil Site Plan - Existing Conditions 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

C-301 Civil Site Plan - Demolition 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

C-400 Civil Site Plan - Grading and Storm Sewer 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

C-401 Civil Site Plan - Utility Plan 11/20/23 ● ● ● ● ●

C-402 Geometric Dimensions and Striping Plan 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

C-800 Civil Details 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

T-2 General Notes 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

T-3 Finish Schedule 09/05/23 ● ● ●

AS-1 Site Amenities Plan 11/20/23 ● ● ● ● ●

AS-2 Site Amenities Details 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

AS-3 Dumpster Enclosure Details 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

A-1.0 Proposed Floor Plan 11/20/23 ● ● ● ● ●

A-2.0 Roof Plan 09/05/23 ● ●

A-3.0 Reflected Ceiling Plan 09/05/23 ● ● ●

A-4.0 Finish Plan 09/05/23 ● ●

A-5.0 Interior Elevations 09/05/23 ● ● ●

A-5.1 Interior Elevations 09/05/23 ● ●

A-6.0 Exterior Elevations 11/20/23 ● ● ● ●

A-7.0 Wall Sections 09/05/23 ● ● ●

A-7.1 Wall Sections & Details 09/05/23 ● ●

A-8.0 Door Schedule & Details 09/05/23 ● ●

A-8.1 Window Schedule & Details 09/05/23 ● ●

A-9.1 Used Cooking Oil Retention System 09/05/23

K-1.0 Equipment Plan 09/05/23 ● ● ●

K-1.1 Equipment Schedule 09/05/23 ● ● ●

S-1 Foundation Plan 09/05/23 ● ●

S-2 Roof Framing Plan 09/05/23 ● ●

S-3 Wall Sections 09/05/23 ● ●

S-4 Sections 09/05/23 ● ●

S-5 Sections 09/05/23 ● ●

S-6 Typical Details 09/05/23 ● ●

S-7 General Notes 09/05/23 ● ●

M-100 Mechanical Symbols, Notes & Abbreviations 09/05/23 ● ●

M-400 First Floor Plan - Mechanical New 09/05/23 ● ●

M-401 Roof Plan - Mechanical New 09/05/23 ● ●

M-700 Hood Details 09/05/23 ● ●

M-701 Hood Details 09/05/23 ● ●

M-702 Exhaust Fan Details 09/05/23 ● ●

P-100 Plumbing, Symbols, Notes & Schedules 09/05/23 ● ● ●

P-400 Plumbing Waste & Vent Floor Plan 09/05/23 ● ●

P-401 First Floor Plan - Water & Gas New 09/05/23 ● ●

P-700 Isometric Diagrams 09/05/23 ● ●

P-701 Details 09/05/23 ● ●

P-702 Details 09/05/23 ● ●

E-100 Electrical Symbols 09/05/23 ● ●

E-101 Electrical Fixture Schedule & Details 09/05/23 ● ●

E-102 Electrical Specifications 09/05/23 ● ●

E-200 Electrical Site Plan 09/05/23 ● ● ●

E-400 Floor Plan - Electrical Lighting 09/05/23 ● ●

E-500 Floor Plan - Electrical Power 09/05/23 ● ● ●

E-501 Roof Plan - Electrical Power 09/05/23 ● ●

E-600 Electrical Riser Diagram 09/05/23 ● ● ●

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

37



ELEVATOR
CALL

BUTTONS

PUBLIC
TELEPHONE

LIGHT SWITCH
OR

THERMOSTAT

FIRE ALARM
PULL STATION

FIRE
EXTINGUISHER
(WALL MOUNT)

FIRE
EXTINGUISHER

CABINET

ELEVATOR HALL
SIGNALS

SIGNAGE
HAND

DRYER
SEAT COVER
DISPENSER

PAPER TOWEL
DISPENSER AND

WASTER

SANITARY
NAPKIN

DISPENSER

SOAP DISH
OR DISPENSER

LAVATORY
SIDE ELEVATION

LAVATORY
FRONT ELEVATION

URINAL
WATER CLOSET
SIDE ELEVATION

WATER CLOSET
FRONT ELEVATION

DRINKING FOUNTAIN/
EWC SIDE ELEVATION

DRINKING FOUNTAIN/
EWC SIDE ELEVATION

TRANSFER-TYPE SHOWER
DUPLEX RECEPTACLE
OR TELEPHONE JACK

HOOK IN TOILET
COMPARTMENT

SHELF RAMP HANDRAIL STAIR HANDRAIL
LAVATORY FRONT

ELEVATION
URINAL

WATER CLOSET
SIDE ELEVATION

WATER CLOSET
FRONT

ELEVATION

SHELF 
(WHERE 
SHOWN)

CONTROLS AND HAND SHOWER LOCATION

MIN.

M
A

X
. 

T
O

 
T

O
P

M
IN

.
M

A
X

. LINE OF 
RAMP RUN

BOTT 
OF 

RAMP

LINE OF STAIR 
NOSING

BOTTOM OF 
STAIR FLIGHT

MIRROR

WALL OR 
PARTITION

URINAL 
SCREEN 
(EACH SIDE)

WALL PARTITION 
OR SCREEN

GENERAL FLUSH VALVE HT PER APPLICABLE PLUMBING CODE

WALL WALL

TOILET 
PARTITION 
(WHERE 
SHOWN)

WALL OR 
PARTITION

SPOUT

M
IN

.

T
O

 C
L CLEAR TO BOTTOM AT 

SURFACE-MOUNTED WASTE
WALL WALL OR 

PARTITION

MIRROR

URINAL SCREEN 
(EACH SIDE) GRAB 

BARS

SNR

WALL

WALL OR 
PARTITION

SPOUT

WALL OR 
PARTITION

3'
-8

"

CL CL

TOP OF 
RAMP

TOP OF STAIR 
FLIGHT

GENERAL LAYOUT INFORMATION AND TYPICAL MOUNTING HEIGHTS

  5" MAX   15" MIN

  3
6

" 
M

A
X

P
E

R
S

O
N

S

  38
" 

- 
43

" 
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G   7
" 

M
IN

M
IN  9
"

8" MIN   6" MAX

K
N

E
E

  2
7

" 
M

IN
F

LO
W

 H
E

IG
H

T
  4

" 
M

IN
 W

A
T

E
R

T
O

 T
O

P

  3
3

" 
- 

3
6

"

60" MIN CLR

  6"

GRAB BAR

36" MIN

16" - 18"

17
" 

- 
19

" 
S

E
A

T
 H

T

C
LE

A
R

A
N

C
E

9"
 M

IN
 T

O
E

T
O

 T
O

P

33
" 

- 
36

"

39
" 

- 
41

"
18

" 
M

IN

T
P

D
 

 
1

8
" 

M
IN

39" - 41"

54" MIN

42" MIN 12" MAX

  20"

24" MIN

 
 

 M
IN

 
 

1
-1

/2
"

42" MAX

T
O

P
 O

F
 R

IM
17

" 
M

A
X

 T
O

F
LU

S
H

 V
A

LV
E

44
" 

T
O

 T
O

P
 O

F

27
" 

M
IN

CLR

  18"

CLR

  18"

CLEAR

  30" MIN

15" MIN

34
" 

M
A

X

38
" 

M
A

X

72
" 

M
IN

34
" 

M
A

X

MIN

  17"

M
IN 
 

9
"

  8" MIN

  11" MIN

C
LR

27
" 

M
IN

  3
'-

4
"

9"
 M

IN

  5
'-

0
"

 
 

4
"

M
IN

  2
'-

3
"  4
'-

0
"

  3
'-

6
"

16" - 18"

CLR, MIN

  2'-6"

 
 

2
'-

5
"

  20"

SNR

24" MIN

42" MAX

T
P

D

18
" 

M
IN

O
F

 R
IM

  2
'-0

" 
T

O
 T

O
P

CLR

  17"

CLR

  17"

CLEAR

  30" MIN

  15" MIN

  3
5

" 
M

A
X

38
" 

M
A

X

34
" 

- 
38

"

34
" 

- 
38

"

34
" 

- 
38

"

MIN

  1'-0"

TREAD

1'-0" + TREAD

34
" 

- 
38

"

  12"

34
" 

- 
38

"

  12"

3'
-4

" 
M

IN
.

4'
-0

" 
M

A
X

.

  1
'-

6
"

CONTROL WALL

36" CLEAR

  3
'-

0
"

3"
 -

 6
"

   1
'-

6
"

 MAX.
  15"

  4"

38
" 

M
A

X
.

48
" 

M
A

X
.

BACK WALL

36" CLEAR

  18"

MAX.
  2 1/2"

17
" 

- 
19

"

SEAT WALL

36" CLEAR

MAX.
  3"

MAX.
  1 1/2"

DRAWING SYMBOLS
DRAWING/DETAIL TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE: #/#" = 1'-0"

SHEET WHERE DRAWING/DETAIL IS 
REFERENCED

DETAIL NUMBER

SHEET WHERE DETAIL IS 
DRAWN

DETAIL CUT SYMBOL

BUILDING SECTION CUT SYMBOL

SHEET WHERE SECTION IS DRAWN

SECTION NUMBER

NOTE: DRAWING TITLE MAY 
NOT APPEAR ON LARGE 

SCALE DETAIL DRAWINGS

NORTH ARROW ENLARGED PLAN/DETAIL

SEE NOTES FOR DETAIL CUT

ASSUMED NORTH IF NOT 
TRUE NORTH, OR PLAN 
NORTH WHERE TRUE 

NORTH IS INDICATED BY 
SMALL ARROW

EXTERIOR ELEVATION LOCATION SYMBOL

SHEET WHERE ELEVATION IS 
DRAWN

INTERIOR ELEVATION LOCATION SYMBOL

SHEET WHERE INTERIOR 
ELEVATION IS DRAWN

INTERIOR ELEVATION NUMBER

MATCHLINE SYMBOL

ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

ROOM NAME FLOOR LEVEL IDENTIFICATION EXAMPLE

B01 BASEMENT
100 LEVEL ONE
200 LEVEL TWO
300 LEVEL THREE
ETC.

UNIT OF BUILDING 
WHERE ROOM IS 
FOUND (IF APPLICABLE)

ROOM 
IDENTIFICATION 
NUMBER

ROOM NUMBER 
WHERE DOOR IS 

FOUND

DOOR IDENTIFICATION 
LETTER

UNIT IDENTIFICATION EXAMPLE

ABO1 BASEMENT
A100 UNIT "A" LEVEL ONE
A200 UNIT "A" LEVEL TWO
A300 UNIT "A" LEVEL THREE
ETC.

DOOR INDICATION

DOOR SWING 
INDICATION - NEW 

DOOR

DOOR SWING 
INDICATION - EXISTING 

DOOR TO REMAIN

DOOR SWING INDICATION -
EXISTING DOOR TO BE 

REMOVED

WINDOW INDICATION

WINDOW TYPE 
DESIGNATION

WALL INDICATION

WALL INDICATION - NEW 
WALL (SEE LEGEND FOR 
WALL CONSTRUCTION)

WALL INDICATION - EXISTING 
WALL TO REMAIN

WALL INDICATION - EXISTING 
WALL TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING COLUMN LINE

UNDERLINED LETTER OR NUMBER 
INDICATES EXISTING COLUMN LINE(S)

NEW COLUMN LINE

LETTER OR NUMBER INDICATES 
NEW COLUMN LINE(S)

TEXT LEADERDIMENSION LINE

INFORMATION TEXT
DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS. USE 

FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY

STAIR RUN SYMBOL

STAIR DIRECTION FROM 
FLOOR LEVEL OF PLAN 
(UP OR DOWN)

NUMBER OF RISERS IN 
STAIR RUN

SEPARATION SYMBOL

SEPARATION LINE OF NEW 
CONSTRUCTION FROM EXISTING, 
OR SEPARATION OF DIFFERENT 
MATERIALS FROM EACH OTHER

KEYNOTE CALLOUT

LETTER OR NUMBER 
INDICATES DEMO NOTE(S)

WALL TYPE DESIGNATION

LETTER OR NUMBER 
INDICATES NEW WALL 
TYPE(S)

ELEVATION NUMBER

DOOR NUMBER SYMBOL

5'-0"

12

1

UP

A

1

A1.2

1

A3.1

1

A1.2

1

A1.2

3

4 2

1

A1.2

101-A

1

A1.2

W-1

101

VCT CPT

3R

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 1

:5
9

:1
6

 P
M

T-2

G
en

er
al

 N
o

te
s

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

A                          

A/C AIR CONDITIONING
A/V AUDIO/VIDEO
AB ANCHOR BOLTS
ABR ABRASIVE
ABS ABSORBING
AC ACOUSTIC/ACOUSTICAL
AC INSUL ACOUSTIC INSULATION
ACB AIR CIRCUIT BREAKER
ACC ACCESS
ACP ACOUSTIC CEILING PANEL
ACT ACOUSTICAL CEILING TILE
ACU AIR CONDITIONING UNIT
AD ACCESS DOOR
ADA AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
ADDN ADDITION
ADDN'L ADDITIONAL
ADJ ADJUSTABLE
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
AFSS AUTOMATIC FIRE

SUPPRESSION SYSTEM
AGGR AGGREGATE
AHU AIR HANDLING UNIT
AL CLD ALUMINUM-CLAD
AL, ALUM ALUMINUM
ALT ALTERNATE
AM PNL ACOUSTICAL METAL PANEL
AMP AMPERE
AMPL AMPLIFIER
AMT AMOUNT
ANCH ANCHOR, ANCHORAGE
ANCHS ANCHORS
ANOD ANODIZED
AP ACCESS PANEL
APPR APPROVED
APPROX APPROXIMATE
APT APARTMENT
ARCH ARCHITECT, ARCHITECTURAL 
ASB ASBESTOS
ASB BD ASBESTOS BOARD
ASPH ASPHALT
ASPHT ASPHALT TILE
ASR AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER RISER
ASST ASSISTANT
ASSY ASSEMBLY
AUTO AUTOMATIC
AUX AUXILIARY
AV ACID VENT
AVG AVERAGE
AW ACID WASTE

B                          

B BATHROOM
B CAB BASE CABINET
B PL BASE PLATE
B/B BACK TO BACK
BA BURGLAR ALARM
BBR BASE BOARD RADIATION
BD BOARD
BDD BACK DRAFT DAMPER
BE BOTTOM ELEVATION
BET BETWEEN
BEV BEVEL/BEVELLED
BF BARRIER-FREE
BFP BACK FLOR PREVENTER
BITWP BITUMINOUS WATERPROOFING
BK SH BOOK SHELVES
BL BUILDING LINE
BL REL BLAST-RELIEF
BL RES BLAST-RESISTANT
BLDG BUILDING
BLK BLOCK
BLKG BLOCKING
BLKHD BULKHEAD
BLR BOILER
BLR F BOILER FEED
BLR H BOILER HOUSE
BLVD BOULEVARD
BM BEAM/ BENCH MARK
BOTT BOTTOM
BR BED ROOM
BRG BEARING
BRK BRICK
BRKR BREAKER
BRKT BRACKET
BRZ BRONZE
BSMT BASEMENT
BT BATHTUB, BENT
BTU BRITISH THERMAL UNIT
BULL BULLETIN
BUR BUILT-UP ROOFING
BUZZ BUZZER
BWV BACK WATER VALVE

C                          

C CHANNEL
C/C CENTER TO CENTER
CA COMPRESSED AIR
CAB CABINET/ CEMENT ASBESTOS BOARD
CAP CAPACITY
CAT NO CATALOG NUMBER
CB CATCH BASIN
CBD CHALKBOARD 

C                          

CCL COAT CLOSET
CD CEILING DIFFUSER
CEM CEMENT
CEMPLAS CEMENT PLASTER
CER CERAMIC
CFM CUBIC FEET PER MINUTE
CG CORNER GUARD
CHD CHORD
CHG CHANGE
CHKD PL CHECKERED PLATE
CHWR CHILLED WATER RETURN
CHWS CHILLED WATER SUPPLY
CI CAST IRON
CIF CAST IRON FRAME
CIP CAST IRON PIPE
CIRC CIRCUIT
CIRCUM CIRCUMFERENCE 
CJ CONTROL OR 

CONSTRUCTION JOINT
CL CLASS, CLOSET
CLG CEILING
CLGHT CEILING HEIGHT
CLR CLEAR
CLR GL CLEAR GLASS
CLR WGL CLEAR WIRE GLASS
CLRM CLASSROOM
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
CNTR COUNTER
CNVYR CONVERYOR
CO CLEAN OUT, COMPANY
COEF COEFFICIENT
COL COLUMN
COMPO COMPOSITION
COMPR COMPRESSOR
COMPT COMPARTMENT
CONC CONCRETE
COND CONDUIT, CONDITION, 

CONDENSATE, CONDUCTOR
CONF CONFERENCE
CONN CONNECTION, CONNECTION
CONST CONSTRUCTION
CONT CONTINUE, CONTINUOUS
CONTR CONTRACTOR
CONV CONVECTOR
COR CORNER
CORR CORRIDOR, CORRUGATED
COV COVER
COVPL COVER PLATE
CP CONTROL PANEL
CPT CARPET
CRS COURSE, COURSES
CSTG CASTING
CT CERAMIC TILE
CTR CENTER
CTSK COUNTERSINK (SUNK)
CUFT CUBIC FEET (FOOT)
CUH CABINET UNIT HEATER
CULV CULVERT
CW COLD WATER
CWR CONDENSING WATER RETURN
CWS CONDENSING WATER SUPPLY
CY CUBIC YARD, CYCLES
CYL CYLINDER

D                          

DB DECIBLE, CRY BULB
DBL DOUBLE
DDR DUTCH DOOR
DEG DEGREE
DEPT DEPARTMENT
DES DESIGN
DF DRINKING FOUNTAIN
DGM DIAGRAM
DH DOUBLE HUNG
DIA OR DIAMETER
DIAG DIAGONAL
DIFF DIFFUSER
DIM DIMENSION
DIR DIRECTORY
DISC DISCOUNT
DISCONT DISCONTINUOUS
DISP DISPENSER
DIST DISTANCE
DIV DIVIDER/ DIVISION
DL DEAD LOAD
DMPFG DAMPROOFING
DMPR DAMPER
DMT PRTN DEMOUNTABLE PARTITION
DN DOWN
DO DITTO, DOOR OPENING
DP DISTRIBUTION PANEL
DR DINING ROOM, DOOR
DR OP DOOR OPERATOR
DRN DRAIN
DS DOWN SPOUT
DSP DRY STAND PIPE
DT DRAIN TILE
DTC DRAIN TILE CONNECTION
DUP DUPLICATE
DW DUMBWAITER
DWG DRAWING
DWL DOWEL
DWR DRAWER

E                          

E EAST
EJ EXPANSION JOINT
EA EACH
ED EXHAUST DUCT
EF EACH FACE, EXHAUST FAN
EG EXHAUST GRILLE
EH EXTRA HEAVY
EIFS EXTERIOR INSULATION FINISH SYSTEM
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRIC, ELECTRICAL
ELEC CAB ELECTRICAL CABINET
ELEC CL ELECTRIC CLOSET
ELEC OPER ELECTRICALLY OPERATED
ELEV ELEVATOR
EMERG EMERGENCY
ENCL ENCLOSURE
ENGR ENGINEER
ENT ENTRANCE, ENTRY
EP ELECTRICAL PANEL, EPOXY
EPDM ETHYLENE PROPYLENE DIENE MONOMER
EQ EQUAL
EQUIP EQUIPMENT
EQUIV EQUIVALENT
ER EXHAUST REGISTER
ESMW ELASTOMERIC SHEET MEMBRANE

WATERPROOFING
ESP EXTERNAL STATIC PRESSURE
EW EACH WAY
EWC ELECTRIC WATER COOLER
EXC EXCAVATED
EXH EXHAUST
EXIST EXISTING
EXP EXPANSION
EXP B EXPANSION BOLT
EXP'D EXPOSED
EXPL P EXPLOSION PROOF
EXT EXTERIOR
EXT'N EXTENSION
EXTR EXTRUDED

F                          

F/F FACE TO FACE
FA FIRE ALARM
FACP FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL
FC FLEXIBLE CONNECTION
FD FIRE DAMPER, FLOOR DRAIN
FDN FOUNDATION
FDR FEEDER
FEB FIRE EXTINGUISHER AND BRACKET
FEC FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET
FFIN FACTORY FINISH
FGL FIBER GLASS
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FHC FIRE HOSE CABINET
FHCL FIRE HOSE CLOSET
FHMS FLAT HEAD MACHINE SCREW
FHR FIRE HOSE RACK
FHWS FLAT HEAD WOOD SCREW
FIN FINISH, FINISHED
FIXT FIXTURE
FL FIRE LINE
FLASH FLASHING
FLDG FOLDING
FLR FLOOR
FLR FIN FLOOR FINISH
FLUOR FLUORESCENT
FMBD FORMBOARD
FPM FEET PER MINUTE
FPRFG FIREPROOFING
FR FRAME
FR/COV FRAME AND COVER
FRP FIBERGLASS REINFORCED 

PLASTIC OR POLYESTER
FRT         FIRE RETARDANT TREATED
FRZR FREEZER
FS FAR SIDE, FULL SIZE
FSUP FIRE SUPRESSION
FT FEET, FOOT
FTG FOOTING
FTR FINNED TUBE RADIATION
FURN FURNISH, FURNISHED
FURR FURRED, FURRING
FUT FUTURE

G                          

G GAS
GA GAUGE, GAGE
GAL GALLON
GLAV GALVANIZED
GB GRAB BAR
GEN'L GENERAL
GHT GLAZED HOLLOW TILE
GL GLASS, GRID LINE
GLZ GLAZE, GLAZING
GPH GALLONS PER HOUR
GPM GALLONS PER MINUTE
GR GRADE
GRANO GRANOLITHIC
GRAT GRATING
GRD GROUND
GS GREASE SEPARATOR 
GSC GAS SCRUBBER

M                          

M THOUSAND
M & S MIRRO AND SHELF
MACH MACHINE
MACH RM MACHINE ROOM
MAINT MAINTENANCE
MAR MARBLE
MAS MASONRY
MATL MATERIAL 
MAU MAKE-UP AIR UNIT
MAX MAXIMUM
MB MACHINE BOLT
MBT MARBLE THRESHOLD
MC MEDICINE CABINET
MDS METAL DIVIDING STRIP
MECH MECHANICAL
MED MEDIUM
MEMB MEMBRANE
MES METAL EDGE STRIP
MET METAL 
MET WP METALLIC WATERPROOFING
METCL METAL CLAD
MEZZ MEZZANINE
MFR MANUFACTURER
MH MANHOLE
MI MISCELLANEOUS IRON
MIN MINIMUM
MIR MIRROR
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MK MARK
ML METAL LATH
ML & P METAL LATH AND PLASTER
MLDG MOLDING
MO MASONRY OPENING
MOD MOTOR OPERATED DAMPER
MRR MOLDED RESIN RECEPTOR
MRT MOLDED RESIN COUNTERTOP
MT METAL THRESHOLD
MTD MOUNTED
MULL MULLION

N                          

N NORTH
NAT NATURAL
NEUT NEUTRAL
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NO OR # NUMBER
NOM NOMINAL
NOS NOSING
NRC NOISE REDUCTION COEFFICIENT
NS NEAR SIDE
NTS NOT TO SCALE

O                          

O/O OUT TO OUT
OA OUTSIDE AIR
OBS OBSCURE
OBS GL OBSCURE GLASS
OC ON CENTER
OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OFF OFFICE
OHD OVERHEAD
OHD CLNG DROVERHEAD COILING DOOR
OHD DR OVERHEAD DOOR
OP PRTN OPERABLE PARTITION 
OPG OPENING
OPP OPPOSITE
OPP HD OPPOSITE HAND
ORN ORNAMENTAL
OXY OXYGEN
OZ OUNCE

P                          

P OR PHASE
P/C PRECAST
PA PUBLIC ADDRESS
PARA PARAGRAPH
PASS PASSAGE
PB PUSH BUTTON
PC PIECE, POINT OF CURVATURE
PCF POUNDS PER CUBIC FOOT
PCL PRECAST LINTEL
PCS PIECES
PERF PERFORATED
PERIM PERIMETER
PERM PERMANENT
PERP PERPENDICULAR
PG PRESSURE GAUGE
PIV POST INDICATOR VALVE
PL GL PLATE GLASS
PL LAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PL PLATE
PLAS PLASTER
PLAT PLATFORM
PLBG PLUMBING
PLF POUNDS PER LINEAR FOOT
PLYWD PLYWOOD
PNL PANEL
POL POLISH, POLISHED
PORC PORCELAIN
PORCENAM PORCELAIN ENAMEL

W                          

WH WALL HYDRANT
WHSE WAREHOUSE
WI WROUGHT IRON
WL WORKING LINE
WM WIRE MESH
WO WINDOW OPENING
WP WATERPROOFING, 

WEATHERPROOFING
WPT WORKING POINT
WT WEIGHT
WV WALL VENT
WWF WELDED WIRE FABRIC

X                          

XFER TRANSFER
XFMR TRANSFORMER

Y                          

YD YARD
YP YIELD POINT
YR YEAR
YS YIELD STRENGTH

Z                          

ZC ZINC-COATED

ABBREVIATIONS

G                          

GT GREASE TRAP
GV & B GATE VALVE AND BOX
GYP GYPSUM
GYP BD GYPSUM BOARD

H                          

HAGL HEAT ABSORBING GLASS
HB HOSE BIBB
HD HEAD
HDWD HARDWOOD
HDWE HARDWARE
HEX HEXAGON
HGT HEIGHT
HHWR HEATING HOT WATER RETURN
HHWS HEATING HOT WATER SUPPLY
HID HIGH INTENSITY DISCHARGE
HM HOLLOW METAL
HO HUB OUTLET
HORIZ HORIZONTAL, HORIZONTALLY
HOSP HOSPITAL
HP HIGH POINT, HORSEPOWER
HPR HIGH PRESSURE
HR HANDRAIL
HRU HEAT RECOVERY UNIT
HS HIGH STRENGTH
HSB HIGH STRENGTH BOLT
HTG HEATING
HTR HEATER
HV HIGH VOLTAGE
HVC HOSE VALVE CABINET
HW HOT WATER
HWR HOT WATER RETURN 
HWY HIGHWAY
HYD HYDRANT

I                          

ID INSIDE DIAMETER
IE INVERT ELEVATION
IN OR " INCH OR INCHES
INCAND INCANDESCENT
INCIN INCINERATOR
INCL INCLUDE, INCLUDING
INFO INFORMATION
INST'L INSTALL, INSTALLATION
INSUL INSULATE, INSULATION
INT INTERIOR
INTER INTERMEDIATE
INV INVERT
IW INDIRECT WASTE

J                          

JB JUNCTION BOX
JC JANITOR CLOSET
JST JOSIT
JT JOINT

K                          

K KIP (1,000 LB)
K-D KNOCK-DOWN
KOP KNOCK OUT PANEL
KP KICKPLATE
KV KILOVOLT
KVA KILOVOLT AMPERE
KW KILOWATT

L                          

L ANGLE
LAB LABORATORY
LAD LADDER
LAM LAMINATE, LAMINATED
LAV LAVATORY
LBL LABEL
LBS OR # POUNDS
LD LINEAR DIFFUSER
LDG LANDING
LDRY LAUNDRY
LEV LEVEL
LF LINEAR FEET
LG LONG
LGE LARGE
LGTH LENGTH
LH LEFT HAND
LIN MET CLG LINEAR METAL CEILING
LKR LOCKER
LL LIVE LOAD
LLH LONG LEG HORIZONTAL
LLV LONG LEG VERTICAL
LO LOUVER OPENING
LP LIGHTING PANEL, LOW POINT
LPG LIQUID PROPANE GAS
LPR LOW PRESSURE
LR LIVING ROOM
LT LIGHT
LTG LIGHTING
LTWT LIGHTWEIGHT
LTWTCONC LIGHTWEIGHT CONCRETE

P                          

PORT PORABLE
PP POWER PANEL
PR PAIR
PREFAB PREFABRICATED
PRIM PRIMARY
PRL PARALLEL
PROJ PROJECT, PROJECTION
PROP PROPERTY
PRTN PARTITION
PRV PRESSURE REDUCING VALVE
PSF POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT
PSI POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH
PT POINT, POINT OF TANGENCY
PTDD PAPER TOWEL DISPENSE/DISPOSAL
PT WD PRESERVATIVE TREATED WOOD
PTD PAINTED, PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER
PTR PRECAST TERRAZZO RECEPTOR
PTWR PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER  AND WASTE

RECEPTACLE
PVC POLYVINYLCHLORIDE (PIPE)
PVG PAVING
PVMT PAVEMENT

Q                          

QT QUARRY TILE
QTR QUARTER
QTY QUANTITY

R                          

R RISER
RA RETURN AIR
RAD RADIUS, RETURN AIR DUCT
RAF RETURN AIR FAN
RC ROOF CONDUCTOR
RD ROAD, ROOF DRAIN
REC RECESS
RECPT RECEPTACLE
RECT RECTANGLE, RECTANGULAR
RECV RECEIVING
RED REDUCER
REF REFLECTED, REFLECTIVE
REFR REFRIGERATION, REFRIGERATOR
REG REGISTER
REINF REINFORCE, REINFORCING, OR

REINFORCEMENT
REM REMOVE, REMOVABLE
REQ'D REQUIRED
RESIL RESILIENT
RET RETURN
REV REVISED, REVISION
RFG ROOFING
RH RIGHT HAND
RHK ROBE HOOK
RHMS ROUND HEAD MACHINE SCREW
RHWS ROUND HEAD WOOD SCREW
RM ROOM
RO ROUGH OPENING
ROW RIGHT OF WAY
RPM REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE
RR RAILROAD
RS ROOF SUMP
RT RUBBER TILE
RV ROOF VENTILATOR
RWC RAIN WATER CONDUCTOR

S                          

S SOUTH
S & P SHELF AND POLE
SAN SANITARY
SCD SEAT COVER DISPENSER
SCHED SCHEDULE
SD SOAP DISPENSER, SPLITTER DAMPER, 

SUPPLY DIFFUSER, SUPPLY DUCT
SECT SECTION
SER SERVICE
SF SQUARE FEET (FOOT), SUPPLY FAN, 

SWAY FRAME
SG SUPPLY GRILLE 
SGFT STRUCTURAL GLAZED FACING TILE
SGL SINGLE
SHT SHEET
SHT MET SHEET METAL
SHWR SHOWER
SIM SIMILAR
SK SINK
SND SEMI-RECESSED SANITARY NAPKIN

DISPENSER
SNR SANITARY NAPKIN RECEPTACLE
SP SPACE(S), STATIC PRESSURE
SPEC SPECIFICATIONS
SPKLR SPRINKLER
SPKR SPEAKER
SQ. FT. SQUARE FEET (FOOT)
SR SUPPLY REGISTER
SS SERVICE SINK
SSTL STRUCTURAL STEEL
ST STREET
ST STL STAINLESS STEEL
STA STATION
STAG STAGGERED

S                          

STC SOUND TRANSMISSION CLASS
STD STANDARD
STL STEEL
STLPL STEEL PLATE
STM STEAM
STOR STORAGE
STR STRAIGHT
STRUCT STRUCTURAL
SUB SUBSTATION
SUBST SUBSTITUTE
SUPP SUPPORT
SURF SURFACE
SUSP SUSPENDED, SUSPENSION
SV SHEET VINYL
SW SWITCH
SWBD SWITCHBOARD
SWGR SWITCHGEAR
SYM SYMBOL, SYMMETRICAL
SYN SYNTHETIC
SYS SYSTEM

T                          

T THERMOSTAT, TREAD, TOILET
T & B TOP AND BOTTOM
T & G TONGUE AND GROOVE
T/C TOP OF COVER/CURB
T/R TOP OF RAIL
T/S TOP OF STEEL
TBD TACKBOARD
TD TRENCH DRAIN
TE TOP ELEVATION
TECH TECHNICAL
TEL TELEPHONE
TELCAB TELEPHONE CABINET
TEMP TEMPERATURE
TEMPGL TEMPERED GLASS
TERR TERRAZZO
THD THREAD, THREADED
THK THICK, THICKNESS
THRES THRESHOLD
THRU THROUGH
TOIL TOILET
TPD TOILET PAPER DISPENSER
TRAN TRANSOM 
TT TWIN TEE
TU TERMINAL UNIT
TV TELEVISION, TURNING VANE
TVM TELEVISION MONITOR
TYP TYPICAL

U                          

UG UNDERGROUND
UH UNIT HEATER
UL UNDERWRITERS' LABORATORIES, INC.
ULT ULTIMATE
UNFIN UNFINISHED
UON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
UR URINAL, URETHANE
USUB UNIT SUBSTATION
UV UNIT VENTILATOR

V                          

V VENT, VOLT(S)
V PLAS VENEER PLASTER
VAC VACUUM
VAT VINYL ASBESTOS TILE
VB VALVE BOX
VC VERTICAL CURVE
VCO VACUUM CLEANER OUTLET
VCP VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE
VCT VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VD VOLUME DAMPER
VEH VEHICLE
VENT VENTILATE, VENTILATED, VENTILATION
VERT VERTICAL, VERTICALLY
VEST VESTIBULE
VIN VINYL
VIN FAB VINYL FABRIC
VIT VITREOUS
VITSURF VITREOUS SURFACING
VOL VOLUME
VT VAPORTIGHT
VTR VENT THROUGH ROOF
VWC VINYL WALL COVERING
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD

W                          

W WASTE, WATER, WATTS OR WEST
W CAB WALL CABINET
W/ WITH
W/O WITHOUT
WAINS WAINSCOT
WB WET BULB
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WDW WINDOW
WF WASH FOUNTAIN
WG WATER GAUGE
W GL WIRE GLASS

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

38



ELEC 
METER

8.015.02 TYP. OF 3

DS DS DS

SS SS

5.02

3.01

3.03

10.10

3.03

10.11 10.14

10.12

1234

6

7

8

5

S
S

S
S

22.04

26.60
TYP.

MAPLE HILL DRIVE

M
-4

3 
M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

LO
T

 4
W

E
S

T
 M

A
IN

 A
R

C
A

D
E

C
O

N
D

O
M

IN
IU

M

LOT 2
ELKS PLAT NO. 
1 SUBDIVISION

6 @ 10'

2 @ 10'

2 @ 10'

4 @ 10'

5.02

5.02

5.02

32.07

2 @ 10'

9 10

05-13-401-020

STOP

EXISTING 
CROSSWALK

STOP BAR

BIKE 
RACK

5'
-0

"
  2

0
'-

0
"

10
'-0

"

20
'-0

" T
YP.

  3
0

'-
0

"

10.12

10.12

TYP.

10'-0"

10.12

10.12

14
'-0

"

5 @ 10'

5 @ 10'

5 @ 10'

4 @ 10'

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

PARKING BLOCK

FIRE HYDRANT

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

3/32" = 1'-0"

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 2

:0
0

:1
2

 P
M

AS-1

S
it

e 
A

m
en

it
ie

s 
P

la
n

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

3/32" = 1'-0"AS-1

Site Plan1

1. THE ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN IS FOR GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION OF THE SITE ONLY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN 
ACCURATE SURVEYED PLAN

2. THE ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN HAS BEEN PROVIDED TO DESCRIBE THE SCOPE OF WORK FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY. THE 
ARCHITECT MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE SITE ELEMENTS, GRADES, UTILITIES, ETC AS DEPICTED ARE ACCURATE OR TRUE.

3. THE ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN IS NOT AN ENGINEERED DRAWING AND IS  INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION / INSTALLATION OF 
ARCHITECTURAL SITE AMENITIES. IN THE EVENT GRADES, SWM, OR OTHER SITE ITEMS ARE REQUIRED TO BE MODIFIED, THE GC 
SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL SAID MODIFICATIONS.

4. THE BUILDING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. THE GC SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
COORDINATION WITH THE MUNICIPALITY AND THE UTILITY COMPANIES AS WELL AS ANY EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS. THE GC 
SHALL DETERMINE THE ACTUAL EXTENT OF EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIRED TO BRING THE NEW SERVICES INTO THE 
BUILDING.

5. THE GC SHALL FULLY EVALUATE THE EXISTING FIELD CONDITIONS AND ACTUAL LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES TO ENSURE 
A PROPER CONNECTION FROM NEW TO EXISTING.

6. EXISTING PAVING, SIDEWALKS, AND/OR LANDSCAPING AREAS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPAIRED OR 
REPLACED WHETHER SPECIFICALLY INDICATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR NOT.

7. ALL AREAS REPAIRED OR REPLACED SHALL BE DONE IN SUCH A MANNER TO AS TO ENSURE A SMOOTH, CONTINUOUS 
TRANSITION FROM EXISTING TO NEW. TRANSITIONS FROM EXISTING TO NEW SHALL NOT BE APPARENT WHEN COMPLETE.

8. WHERE CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND CURBS ARE DEMOLISHED AND REMOVED TO FACILITATE NEW CONSTRUCTION, CONCRETE 
SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE NEAREST CONSTRUCTION JOINT.

9. DAMAGED PORTIONS OF EXISTING SIDEWALK AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED 
IN KIND.

10. PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE FOR ALL WALKWAYS AND PADS  PER THE CIVIL PLANS. IF CIVIL PLANS ARE NOT AVAILABLE, THE 
GC SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE REQUIRED SLOPE AT ALL WALKWAYS AND PADS TO ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

GENERAL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN NOTES:
SITE PLAN KEY NOTES

NO. NOTE TEXT

3.01 NEW CONCRETE IN DRIVE THRU LANE, SEE CIVIL PLANS

3.03 SIGN FOOTINGS BY GC, SEE DETAILS ON SHEET AS-2

5.02 BOLLARDS AS INDICATED IN PLAN.  BOLLARDS SHALL RECEIVE BOLLARD COVER; SEE DETAIL

SHEET AS-2.

8.01 DRIVE THRU WINDOW AS SCHEDULED

10.10 DRIVE THRU MENU BOARD AND MAGNET LOOP PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR AND INSTALLED BY

G.C. SEE SITE AMENITIES DETAILS AND ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR GC PROVIDED ELECTRICAL AND

ROUGH-INS

10.11 DRIVE THRU HEIGHT LIMITATION BAR PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR AND INSTALLED BY G.C. SEE

DETAIL SHEET AS-2

10.12 DRIVE THRU DIRECTIONAL SIGNS, PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR AND INSTALLED BY G.C. SEE

DETAILS ON AS-2 FOR NEW FOUNDATION IF NECESSARY

10.14 PYLON SIGN BY SIGN VENDOR, SEE DETAIL ON SHEET AS-2

22.04 GREASE INTERCEPTOR, SEE CIVIL PLANS

26.60 EXISTING SITE LIGHTING TO REMAIN

32.07 MASONRY DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE AND SEALED CONCRETE PAD, SEE SHEET AS-3

1

3

4

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

39



12" DIA.

6"
2'

-6
" 

P
O

LE
 B

U
R

IE
D

3'
-2

" 
P

O
LE

 E
X

P
O

S
E

D
20

"

25 1/4"

5'
-8

" 
P

O
LE

 T
O

T
A

L

3'
-0

"
4'

-1
0"

 O
A

H

FILL TUBE
W/ CONCRETE

HAND HOLE 
W/ COVER

FINISHED
GRADE

HOLD POLE 6"
FROM BOTTOM
OF FOUNDATION

FINISHED GRADE

ALUM. TUBE
4" X 1 3/4" X 1/8"

ELECTRICAL PER CODE 
COORD. LOCATION &
PROJECTION W/ G.C.

FACE VARIES

1'-0"

3'-0"

3'
-1

0"

39°

5'-9"

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

R
A

F
F

IC

℄

C
U

R
B

 R
A

D
IU

S

MAGNETIC LOOP BY
OWNER INSTALLED 
BY GC

FACE TO CURB

MENU BOARD

(1) 3/4" POWER CONDUIT 
TO BUILDING FROM 
SPEAKER ASSEMBLY

120V CONDUIT BY G.C. 
TO INTERIOR PANEL

6"

3'
-6

"
3'

-3
"

3"

#4 X 12" LONG BAR 
WELDED TO PIPE 
(3 REQ'D)

18" DIA. X 3'-0" DEEP 
CONC. PIER WITH #4 
BARS (VERT) AND #3 
TIES AT 8" O.C.

CONCRETE SLAB, 
RE: CIVIL

1/2" EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL SEALANT

CONC. WASH (SMOOTH 
DOME)

6" DIA. STD. WEIGHT 
STEEL PIPE

EP-4

23
.0

1
49

.6
3

86.39

10.00

18.45

48
.0

0

 55

3.59

11.57

6.00

18.42

SAMSUNG DMB TRIPLE 55

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION BACK ELEVATION

DRIVE THRU MENU BOARD BY OWNER, INSTALLED BY GC. GC SHALL USE TEMPLATE 
SUPPLIED BY VENDOR FOR ANCHOR BOLTS.

3'-0"

3'-
10

"

1'-0"

DIR
ECTIO

N O
F T

RAFFIC

FACE OF CURB

℄

CURB R
ADIU

S

EXISTING GROUND LOOP 
TO REMAIN

MENU BOARD

120V AC CONDUIT BY GC TO 
INTERIOR PANEL

(1) 3/4" POWER CONDUIT TO BUILDING 
FROM SPEAKER ASSEMBLY

9' CLEARANCE

9'
-6

 1
/2

"

6'-4 5/16"

GRADE

(4) 5/8" DIA. X 24" LONG
GALVANIZED ANCHOR BOLTS
W/ 2 1/2" HOOK

NOTE:
POLES AND HARDWARE TO 
HAVE A FINISH TO MATCH 
SW 6509 GEORGIAN BAY

2.
5"

5"

5"

2.5"

.150" POLYCARBONATE WHITE VINYL 
COPY & BORDER TO MATCH SW 6509 
GEORGIAN BAY

EXISTING PYLON SIGN TO REMAIN, 

SIGN VENDOR TO REFACE

NEW PYLON SIGN BY SIGN VENDOR

2'-0"

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

 C
O

D
E

P
E

R
 L

O
C

A
L

3"

CONDUIT TO STUB UP 
3" ABOVE CONC.

SLOPE TOP TO SHED 
WATER UNDISTURBED SOIL

(4) 3/4" ⌀ x 36" LONG 

ANCHOR BOLT ASTM F1554 
GR 36 (GALVANIZED) W/ 
DOUBLE NUTS EMBEDDED 
BOLTS ON 8" x 8" SQUARE 
PATTERNDOUBLE NUT WITH 2" x 2" x 
1/4" PLATE OR WASHER

CONC. FOUNDATION

FIN. GRADE
UNDISTURBED 
SOIL

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

PLAN VIEW @ ANCHOR BOLT 
AND CONDUIT DETAILS

2" x 2" x 1/4" PLATE OR WASHER 
(GALVANIZED) ASTM F844 A36

3/4" HEAVY HEX NUTS 
(GALVANIZED) ASTM A563A

2" CONDUIT FOR DATA LINES

PHANTOM LINE 
AT 10" x 4" BASE 
PLATE CUTOUT

1" CONDUIT FOR 
POWER LINES

DESIGN PARAMETERS:
2013 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE
ASCE 7-05
BASIC WIND SPEED = PER CITY/STATE CODES
WIND IMPORTANCE FACTOR 1.0
WIND EXPOSURE C

FOUNDATION:
ASTM F1554 GR 36 ANCHOR BOLTS
ASTM A615 GR 60 REBAR
3000 PSI CONCRETE @ 28 DAYS
CLASS 5 SOIL
1500 PSF SOIL BEARING
100 PSF/LF/SOIL LATERAL BEARING
UNDISTURBED SOIL

NOTE: CONC. FOUNDATION BY CONTRACTOR. CONC. FND. SHALL BE 48" DEEP, 3000 PSI MIN. AND SHALL CONFORM TO LOCAL CODES. VERIFY W/ MENU BOARD  VENDOR.

12
.0

0 
D

IA
.

8.00

10.00

8.
00

10
.0

0

1.00 DIA.

0.
37

5

SAMSUNG DMB BASE PLATE

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

As indicated

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 2

:0
0

:1
3

 P
M

AS-2

S
it

e 
A

m
en

it
ie

s 
D

et
ai

ls

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

M1
DIRECTIONAL SIGN FACE

SCALE: NTS
B1

MENU BOARD FOUNDATION
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

L4
MENU BOARD PLAN - PARALLEL OPTION

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
H4

CONC BOLLARD
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

B4
MENU BOARD

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
H9

CLEARANCE BAR - FOOTING DETAIL
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

M4
MENU BOARD - CURVED OPTION

B9
PYLON SIGN DETAIL

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

4

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

40



L8
AS-3

G8
AS-3

4" SCH. 80 STEEL
POST FILLED W/
CONCRETE

DRILL HOLES FOR
DROP PINS IN BOTH
CLOSED & OPEN 
GATE POSITIONS

DRILL HOLES 
FOR DROP PINS 
TYP

6" PIPE FILLED w/ 
CONCRETE TOP OF PIPE: 
3'-6" ABOVE  SLAB, SEE 
DETAIL THIS SHEET

CONTROL JOINT

8" THICK, 4,00 PSI 5% AIR 
ENTRAINED w/ 6"x6"-W2.9xW2.9 
WWM. CONSTRUCTION JOINTS @ 
12'-0" OC. EACH WAY, 1" MIN., 
FILLED W/ ELASTOMERIC SEALANT 
ON COMPACTED 6" MIN. 
AGGREGATE BASE

TURN DOWN
EDGE

11'-2"10"11'-2"

3'
-2

"

C
LE

A
R

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

12
'-0

"

24'-0"

15
'-0

"
20

'-0
"

24'-0"

1'-4"

1'
-4

"

4'-0" 4'-0"

1'
-0

"

5" 5"

G1

AS-3

6" THK. P.C.C. SLAB W/ #4 BARS @ 
12" O.C. EA. WAY

VERTICAL #5 BARS @ 32" O.C. CONT. 
THRU WALL AND INTO FTG. W/ 3" HOOK

8" SPLIT FACE INTEGRAL COLOR C.M.U. WALL 
W/ DUR-O-WALL EVERY 2ND HORIZONTAL 
COURSE. PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING 
EXTERIOR

8" BOND BEAM W/ (1) #5 HORIZONTAL BAR 
CONT. FILLED W/ 2,500 PSI CONCRETE

NOTE:

SEE STRUCTURAL SHEET S-4 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1'-0"
18" DIA. CONCRETE
FOOTING

PAVEMENT SURFACE

6" DIA. SCH. 40 STEEL POST 
FILLED WITH CONCRETE 
AND PAINTED CAUTION 
YELLOW

CONCAVE TOP
CONCRETE SURFACE

SLOPE TOP OF FOOTING

1/2" EXP. JT. 
AROUND FOOTING

4'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

3"

4" SCH. 80 STEEL 
POST FILLED W/
CONCRETE

14gc. CLEANED AND PRIMED 
DECK PLATE, PAINT "DARK
BRONZETONE"

PAINT INSIDE w/
EPOXY PAINT (TO
MATCH BLDG.)

1" ADJUSTABLE HINGE 
BOLT 3/4"x2"x3" HINGE 
TAB (TYPE OF 4)

1-1/2"x 1-1/2" SQ. 
STEEL TUBING

GRADE 1" DIA. DROP PIN 1" PIPE W/ SET SCREW KEEPER
1/4"x2"x1-1/2" ANGLE HANGERS
1/8"x1"x2" CHANNEL HOLDERS

1'
-1

0"
4'

-1
0"

10"2" 2" 5"5"

9"
1'

-3
"

3'
-0

"

24'-0"

6"
7'

-6
"

8'
-0

"

WALL BEYOND

4" SCH. 80 STEEL
POST FILLED W/
CONCRETE

PAINTED SPLIT FACE CMU

15'-0" 2"

3'-2"

CLEAR OPENING

12'-0"

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

As indicated

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 2

:0
0

:1
4

 P
M

AS-3

D
u

m
p

st
er

 E
n

cl
o

su
re

 D
et

ai
ls

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

NOTES:

1. LOCATION SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.
2. AREAS SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE FOR DELIVERY AND COLLECTION.
3. GATES SHALL BE CORRUGATED METAL DOORS AND MUST BE APPROVED BY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
4. GATE LATCHES SHALL BE OF THE PLUNGER BAR TYPE OR EQUIVALENT AS APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.
5. SEE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS, NOTES AND PROCEDURES

TRASH ENCLOSURE DETAIL MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS:

1. CONCRETE BLOCK: 6" MINIMUM IN SIZE. ASTM C90.
2. REINFORCING STEEL: ASTM 615. GRADE 40.
3. ACCEPTABLE SOIL TYPES:

A. MIN. ALLOWABLE BEARING: 1000 LBS'/SQ. FT
B. MIN. LATERAL BEARING: 100 LBS'/SQ. FT./FT.
C. MAX EXPANSION INDEX: 20

4. CONCRETE: 2000 LBS'/SQ. IN. IN 28 DAYS.
5. MORTAR: 1: 1/4:3 (PORTLAND CEMENT: HYDRATED LIME OR LIME PUTTY: SAND. BY VOLUME). MIXED TO PLASTIC CONSISTENCY. REFER TO  

UBC TABLE 24-A FOR OTHER TYPES OF CEMENT.
6. GROUT: 1:1/10:3 (PORTLAND CEMENT: HYDRATED LIME OR LIME PUTTY: SAND BY VOLUME).MIX TO FLOW WITHOUT SEGREGATION. GROUT 

MAY CONTAIN 2 PARTS PEA GRAVEL (3/8" MAX. SIZE). MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH: 2000 LBS/SQ. IN. REFER TO UBC TABLE 24-B FOR 
OTHER TYPES OF CEMENT.

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THIS DESIGN IS FOR AVERAGE CONDITIONS AND MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR ALL CASES. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT A LICENSED CIVIL OR 
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER BE CONSULTED.

2. FOOTINGS SHALL BE IN NATURAL SOIL OR CERTIFIED FILL.
3. BLOCKS TO BE STAGGERED (RUNNING BOND).
4. ALL CELLS CONTAINING REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE GROUTED.
5. APPROVED GROUT STOPS ARE REQUIRED BELOW HORIZONTAL STEEL IN PARTIALLY GROUTED WALLS. BAGS. NEWSPAPERS, ETC. ARE NOT 

APPROVED GROUT STOPS.
6. INITIAL BED JOINT SHALL BE 1/4"MIN. 1 "MAX. SUBSEQUENT BED JOINTS SHALL BE 1/4"- MIN., 5/8"MAX.
7. VERTICAL CONTINUITY OF CELLS SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED. M0RTAR PROJECTIONS SHALL NOT EXCEED 1/2" FOR 6" AND LARGER BLOCK. 

MORTAR DROPPINGS OR OTHER FOREIGN MATTER ARE NOT PERMITTED IN CELLS AND MUST BE REMOVED.
8. EXPANSION JOINTS REQUIRED AT 60'-0· MAX. INTERVALS.
9. REQUIRED BAR LAPS:

A. VERTICAL STEEL : 30 BAR DIAMETERS.
B. HORIZONTAL STEEL: 40 BAR DIAMETERS.
C. WIRE JOINT REINFORCEMENT IN THE MORTARED BED JOINT: 75 WIRE DIAMETERS OR IN ALTERNATE BED JOINTS OF RUNNING BOND. 54 

DIAMETERS PLUS TWICE THE BED JOINT SPACING.

10. WHERE HORIZONTAL WIRE JOINT REINFORCEMENT IS REQUIRED OR UTILIZED. IT SHALL BE EQUIVALENT TO TWO 3/16' DIAMETER BARS 
CONNECTED AT 16" INTERVALS BY NO. 9 GAUGE WELDED WIRE.

11. FOR PIPES AND CONDUIT EMBEDDED IN MASONRY, REFER TO SEC. 24-07(G). UBC.
12. 3" MIN. COVER REQUIRED FOR REINFORCEMENT IN CONCRETE WHICH IS CAST AGAINST EARTH.

INSPECTION PROCEDURES:

1. FOUNDATION: AFTER TRENCHES ARE DUG, STEEL IS TIED IN PLACE AND BEFORE ANY CONCRETE IS POURED.
2. PREGROUT: AFTER ALL BLOCKS (EXCEPT CAP) ARE IN PLACE. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL STEEL IS IN PLACE, GROUT STOPS (FOR PARTIALLY 

GROUTED MASONRY) ARE IN PLACE. AND PRIOR TO GROUTING.
3. FINAL: AFTER GROUT IS IN PLACE AND PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF CAP.

D1
BOLLARD DETAIL

SCALE: NTS
G1

WALL SECTION
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

L1
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE PLAN

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

G5
TYPICAL DOOR SILL DETAIL

SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"
G8

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

41



GENERAL FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

PROPOSED WALL TO 6" ABOVE CEILING

WALL TYPE TAG
NOTE: ALL WALLS IN INDIVIDUAL ROOMS 
SAME TYPE U.N.O.

PROPOSED 1-HR RATED ASSEMBLY 

F.E.C.

SEMI-RECESSED FIRE EXTINGUISHER 
CABINET

PROPOSED PARTIAL HT. WALL

XX

_______

A-6.0

4

_______

A-6.0

1

_______

A-6.0

3

_______

A-6.0

2

7.01

A-5.0

E4

A-5.0

18

A-5.0

22

19

23

A-5.0M1

A-5.0 A4
A-5.1

L1

DINING
AREA

100

WOMENS
101

MENS
102

KITCHEN
103

DRIVE THRU
104

STORAGE
105

OFFICE
106

WALK IN
COOLER

107

WALK IN
FREEZER

108

A-5.1

N1
A-5.0

N7

M10

A-5.0A1 F10

A-5.0

F7

H10

A-5.0 A7

20

21

24

25

A-5.0 M4

A-5.0

E1

A-5.0

J4

A-5.0K10

4

5

6

3 2

106

107

12'-0" 72'-0"

27
'-8

"

37'-8 1/8" 1'-0" 4'-0" 1'-0" 12'-3 1/4" 12'-0" 4'-0 5/8"

9"
4'

-0
"

7"
1'

-6
"

10
'-1

0"
3'

-0
"

2"
1'

-6
"

7"
4'

-0
"

9"

5'
-4

"
17

'-0
"

5'
-4

"

29'-7 3/8" 3'-0" 22'-4" 5'-10" 1'-4" 3'-0" 1'-4" 2'-0" 2'-10" 10'-2" 2'-6 5/8"

54'-11 3/8" 13'-6" 15'-6 5/8"

17
'-8

"
10

'-0
"

5 1/2" 11'-6 1/2" 5 1/2" 7'-6 1/8" 3 1/2" 5'-6 3/8" 3 1/2" 9'-9 5/8" 3 1/2" 7'-7 1/2" 3 1/2" 7'-8 1/2" 3 1/2" 31'-4 3/8" 5 1/2"

5 
1/

2"
8'

-0
 7

/8
"

7"
1'

-1
1 

3/
8"

4'
-5

 1
/4

"
11

'-7
 1

/2
"

5 
1/

2"

5 1/2" 16'-1 3/8" 3 1/2" 18'-8 1/8" 3 5/8" 10'-3 1/2" 3 1/2" 6'-3 1/2" 3 1/2" 18'-5 3/8" 5 1/2"

8'
-4

 3
/8

"
3 

1/
2"

13
'-1

 1
/2

"
3 

1/
2"

4'
-7

 1
/8

"
11

"

4'
-4

"

11"

2'-10 5/8"

3'-1 3/8" 3'-3 3/4"

13
'-3

"

10'-9 3/4"

3 
1/

2"
7'

-5
 3

/8
"

3 
1/

2"
6'

-6
 1

/2
"

3 
1/

2"
4'

-5
 1

/8
"

2'
-5

"

6"

4"

4"

3'
-5

"
5'

-0
"

2'
-8

 3
/8

"
4'

-0
"

6'-5" 5 1/2" 15'-6 7/8"

ELECTRICAL 
METER 1

AA1 B

C

D

E

FG

1'
-1

 3
/8

"

K7

A-5.0A10

A1

A-7.0

J1

A-7.0

E1

A-7.0

J1

A-7.0

N1

A-7.1

N1

A-7.0

A1

A-7.0

A1

A-7.0

G1

A-7.1

84'-0"

16'-0 3/8"

8'
-5

 3
/8

"
1'

-6
"

B-400 B-500

B-501

B-505

B-502

B
-5

03

B
-4

03
B

-5
07

B-507

A3
A-1.0

B
-5

08

B-504

3'
-6

"
9"

6" 3'-0" 1'-6"1'-5"

2'
-3

"

B

A

C

D

MENS

FOR WOMEN'S ONLY

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

CL

A B C D

B-1 B-1 B-1 B-1

FRP-2

WC-1 WC-1

FRP-2

WC-1

FRP-2

WC-1

FRP-2

5'
-4

"8'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

6"

WITH COVE TRIM WITH COVE TRIM WITH COVE TRIM WITH COVE TRIM

6'
-1

0"

MIRROR/SINK

A3
RESTROOM ELEVATIONS

FINISH TAG, TYP.

3'
-1

"

2X6 FRAMING W/
SUBSTRATE AS
SCHEDULED

ROUTE WATER,
POWER AND DATA 
FOR EQUIPMENT AND 
MONITORS INSIDE, 
COORD WITH 
PLUMBING AND 
ELECTRICAL PLANS

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

As indicated

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 2

:0
0

:1
5

 P
M

A-1.0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
lo

o
r 

P
la

n

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
09

1/4" = 1'-0"A-1.0

Proposed Floor Plan1

A. EXTERIOR SHEATHING:

1. FURNISH & INSTALL EXTERIOR SHEATHING MATERIAL AS INDICATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
INSTALL SHEATHING MATERIAL PER MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS.

B.    INSULATION:

1. FURNISH & INSTALL INSULATION AS INDICATED BELOW & ELSEWHERE IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
INSULATION SHALL BE INSTALLED PER THE MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS.

2. BELOW GRADE INSULATION BOARD

2.1.FOUNDATION WALLS SHALL BE INSULATED FROM TOP OF FOOTING TO TOP OF FOUNDATION WALL 
WITH EXTRUDED POLYSTYRENE (XPS) RIGID FOAM INSULATION AS MANUFACTURED BY OWINGS CORNING 
"FOAMULAR 150 EXTRUDED POLYSTYRENE INSULATION" 2" THICK.

2.2.INTERIOR CONCRETE SLABS SHALL BE INSULATED FROM THE INTERIOR FACE OF FOUNDATION WALL 
TO 2'-0" INTO THE BUILDING & CONTINUOUS AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING WITH EXTRUDED 
POLYSTYRENE (XPS) RIGID FOAM INSULATION AS MANUFACTURED BY OWING'S  CORNING. "FOAMULAR 150 
EXTRUDED POLYSTYRENE INSULATION" 2" THICK.

3. ABOVE GRADE INSULATION (WALL)

3.1.ALL EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL HAVE BATT INSULATION INSTALLED WITHIN STUD CAVITY . BATT 
INSULATION SHALL BE R-21, 5 1/2" UNFACED BATT INSULATION AS MANUFACTURED BY OWENS CORNING 
"ECOTOUCH PINK FIBERGLASS INSULATION". SUBSTRATE SHALL CONTINUE TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK 
AT ALL UNFACED BATT INSULATION LOCATIONS

4.  ABOVE GRADE INSULATION (ROOF)

4.1 THE ROOF SHALL HAVE CONTINUOUS INSULATION INSTALLED OVER THE ENTIRE ROOF AREA AS 
INDICATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. ROOF INSULATION SHALL BE R-30 MINIMUM, EXTRUDED 
POLYSTYRENE ROOF BOARD INSULATION AS MANUFACTURED BY OWNES CORNING "FOAMULAR 
THERMAPINK 25".

C.    AIR INFILTRATION & WEATHER BARRIER:

1. ALL ABOVE GRADE EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL HAVE AN AIR INFILTRATION & WEATHER BARRIER 
INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS ON THE EXTERIOR SIDE OF THE BUILDING 
SHEATHING. THE AIR INFILTRATION & WEATHER BARRIER SELECTED SHALL BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE 
EXTERIOR CLADDING SYSTEM.

D.    ROOFING MEMBRANE:

1. THE ROOFING MEMBRANE SHALL BE A MECHANICALLY FASTENED PVC MEMBRANE INSTALLED PER THE 
MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN SPECIFICATION AND AS INDICATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. THE PVC 
MEMBRANE SHALL BE AS MANUFACTURED BY DURO-LAST "DURO-LAST 50 MIL MEMBRANE".

BUILDING ENVELOPE NOTES:

1. TYPICAL SUBSTRATES FOR INTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

KITCHEN, OFFICE AND STORAGE AREAS:
5/8" CEMENTITIOUS BOARD TO 12" A.F.F. - 5/8" PLYWOOD FROM 12" A.F.F. TO 6" ABOVE CEILING.

SALES AND SEATING AREAS: 
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD

RESTROOMS: 
5/8" CEMENTITIOUS BOARD TO 12" A.F.F. - 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD FROM 12" A.F.F. TO 6" ABOVE CEILING

GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ADEQUATE BLOCKING IN BATHROOMS FOR GRAB BARS, 
LAVATORIES, HAND DRYERS, MIRRORS, PAPER TOWEL DISPENSERS, SOAP DISPENSERS, AND OTHER 
ACCESSORIES AS REQUIRED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL NEW INTERIOR PARTITIONS SHALL BE 2X4 WOOD STUDS @ 16" 0.C. U.N.O.

3. RESTROOM IDENTIFICATION SIGN W/ HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE SYMBOL AND BRAILLE SUPPLIED WITH 
STORE GRAPHICS PACKAGE. GC TO INSTALL (1 RESTROOM SIGN FOR WOMEN'S / 1 RESTROOM SIGN FOR 
MEN'S). RESTROOM SIGNAGE MUST BE MOUNTED SUCH THAT THE LOWEST BRAILLE CHARACTER IS 48  

MINIMUM A.F.F. AND THE HIGHEST BRAILLE CHARACTER IS 60  MAXIMUM A.F.F. INSTALL 9" FROM STRIKE 
SIDE OF DOOR.

4. ALL INTERIOR DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE FROM FACE OF SUBSTRATE TO FACE OF SUBSTRATE.

5. PROVIDE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS, TYPE ABC, WALL HUNG, TOP AT 4'-0" A.F.F. (BY G.C.) 

-NUMBER AND LOCATION AS DETERMINED BY LOCAL CODE

6. EQUIPMENT/CASEWORK SUPPLIER TO PLACE ALL NEW EQUIPMENT AND CASEWORK.

7. G.C. TO MAKE FINAL MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL & PLUMBING CONNECTIONS FOR ALL EQUIPMENT AS 
INDICATED ON PLANS.

GENERAL FLOOR PLAN NOTES:

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES
NO. NOTE TEXT

7.01 PROVIDE 3-1/2" SOUND ATTENUATION BATT AT ALL RESTROOM WALLS

B-400 - SOAP DISPENSER (WALL MOUNT) 818615 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-403 - SLIMDRI HAND DRYER L-974 WORLD DRYER

B-500 - MIRROR 18"X36" B-165-1832 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-501 - TOILET PAPER DISP. B-4288 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-502 - GRAB BAR B6806X36 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-503 - GRAB BAR B6806X42 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-504 - GRAB BAR B6806X18 BOBRICK SURFACE MOUNTED

B-505 - SANITARY NAPKIN RECEPTACLE B-270 BOBRICK INCLUDES ACCESSORY KIT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE

B-507 - RR WASTE RECEPTACLE B-2250 BOBRICK -

B-508 - COAT HOOK B-212 BOBRICK -

TAG QTY. TYPE MODEL MANUFACTURER COMMENTS

RESTROOM ACCESSORY SCHEDULE

G1
ENLARGED RESTROOM ACCESSORY PLAN

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"SIMILAR FOR WOMENS ROOM
L1

I-LINE CHASE WALL DETAIL
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

SURFACE MOUNTED

1

1

1

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

42



T.O. Slab
0"

T.O. Parapet Plate
16'-0"

T.O. Decorative Railing
18'-0"

Bottom of Awning
8'-6"

Bottom of Canopy
9'-3"

T.O. Parapet Plate 2
20'-0"

SIGN PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR 
UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT & 
COVER. GC SHALL PROVIDE 
JUNCTION BOX AND BLOCKING AS 
REQUIRED BY APPROVED SIGN 
SHOP DRAWINGS.

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM 
EF-3 PAINTED EP-2

BRAKE METAL COPING PAINTED 
EP-6

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM 
EF-2 PAINTED EP-3

BRAKE METAL COPING PAINTED 
EP-1

DOOR AND FRAME PAINTED EP-1

BRONZE FINISH CANOPY, BY VENDOR

12
'-1

0"

7'
-6

" 
T

Y
P

.

8'-0" TYP. 8'-0" 11'-11 1/2"8'-0"3'-1"2'-10"

6'-0"

EXTERIOR SIDING EF-1

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM
EF-2 PAINTED EP-2

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-6

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-6

2'-6"2'-6"

F

2

G

3

A10

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

A7

A-7.1

T.O. Slab
0"

T.O. Parapet Plate
16'-0"

T.O. Decorative Railing
18'-0"

Bottom of Awning
8'-6"

Bottom of Canopy
9'-3"

T.O. Parapet Plate 2
20'-0"

8'-0"8'-0"8'-0" TYP.7'-4 3/4"

7'
-6

" 
T

Y
P

.

4'-5 1/8"4'-5 1/8"

BRONZE FINISH CANOPY, BY VENDOR. 
GC TO PROVIDE NECESSARY BLOCKING PAINTED EP-2

BREAK METAL COPING

SIGN PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT & 
COVER. GC SHALL PROVIDE JUNCTION BOX AND BLOCKING AS 
REQUIRED BY APPROVED SIGN SHOP DRAWINGS.

J

13'-7"

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM
EF-2 PAINTED EP-3

BRAKE METAL COPING
PAINTED EP-1

6'-0"

12
'-1

0"

EXTERIOR SIDING EF-1

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM
EF-2 PAINTED EP-2

BRAKE METAL COPING PAINTED EP-6

BRAKE METAL COPING PAINTED EP-6

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM
EF-2 PAINTED EP-3FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM EF-3 PAINTED EP-2

10'-0" CENTERED ON D/T WINDOW

ALUM D.S. AND CONDUCTOR 
PAINTED EP-1
TYP. OF 4

AA1

B

A10

A-7.1

G10

A-7.1

D10

A-7.1

D10

A-7.1

D7

A-7.1

G10

A-7.1

A7

A-7.1

T.O. Slab
0"

T.O. Parapet Plate
16'-0"

T.O. Decorative Railing
18'-0"

Bottom of Awning
8'-6"

Bottom of Canopy
9'-3"

T.O. Parapet Plate 2
20'-0"

℄
2'-6"

℄
EQ EQ

2'-6"
℄

2'-6" 2'-6"

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-6

EXTERIOR SIDING EF-1

CLEAR COAT METAL 
STANDING SEAM AWNING, 
SUPPORTS TO MATCH 
BRONZE CANOPY, BY 
VENDOR

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-6

FIBER CEMENT PANEL SYSTEM 
EF-2 PAINTED EP-2

BRONZE FINISH CANOPY, BY VENDOR
G.C. TO PROVIDE NECESSARY BLOCKING

BRAKE METAL COPING PAINTED EP-6

EXTERIOR SIDING EF-1

SIGN PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR 
UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT & COVER. 
GC SHALL PROVIDE JUNCTION BOX AND 
BLOCKING AS REQUIRED BY APPROVED 
SIGN SHOP DRAWINGS.

C E

1

D

A7

A-7.1

A7

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

G10

A-7.1

J1

A-7.0

T.O. Slab
0"

T.O. Parapet Plate
16'-0"

Bottom of Awning
8'-6"

Bottom of Canopy
9'-3"

T.O. Parapet Plate 2
20'-0"

7'
-6

" 
T

Y
P

.

BRONZE FINISH CANOPY, 
BY VENDOR

FIBER CEMENT PANEL 
SYSTEM EF-2 PAINTED EP-3

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-1

BRAKE METAL COPING 
PAINTED EP-6

EQ EQ

ROOFING 
MEMBRANE

1'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

1'
-0

"
15

'-0
"

ELECTRICAL SWITCHGEAR 
PAINTED EP-1

EQ EQ

G1

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

A10

A-7.1

SCALE

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

S
E

D
G

E
W

IC
K

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

SHEET NUMBER

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

SEAL  OF  ARCHITECT

4
1

0
 E

a
s
t 
C

o
u
rt

 S
tr

e
e
t 
F

lin
t,

 M
I 

4
8

5
0
3

8
1
0

-2
3

8
-9

6
4

7
  

| 
 w

w
w

.s
fa

rc
h
.u

s

G
o

o
d

 c
lie

n
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
re

a
t 

a
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

R E V I S I O N S

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

+
 G

o
o

d
 d

e
s

ig
n

 +

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

+
 F

E
R

W
E

D
A

 
+

 F
E

R
W

E
D

A
 

EN

S

L
I C

RCH
I T

EC

T

A
N

JEFFREY S.

DE

FERWEDA

S
A

T

A
T
E

O F M I CH
I G

ARCHITECT

No.

1301043699

11-20-23

1/4" = 1'-0"

1
1
/2

0
/2

0
2

3
 2

:0
0

:2
9

 P
M

A-6.0

E
xt

er
io

r 
E

le
va

ti
o

n
s

07/17/2023

23-017

L
o

n
g

 J
o

h
n

 S
ilv

er
's

LJK

JSF

54
81

 W
 M

ai
n

 S
t,

 K
al

am
az

o
o

, M
I 4

90
091/4" = 1'-0"A-6.0

West Elevation3

1/4" = 1'-0"A-6.0

East Elevation4

1/4" = 1'-0"A-6.0

North Elevation1
1/4" = 1'-0"A-6.0

South Elevation2

1. CONSIDERATION WILL NOT BE GRANTED FOR ANY ALLEGED 
MISUNDERSTANDINGS OF THE AMOUNT OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED. TENDER 
OF PROPOSAL SHALL CONVEY FULL AGREEMENT TO THE ITEMS AND 
CONDITIONS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS. SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR FIND 
DISCREPANCIES OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENT OR BE IN DOUBT 
AS TO THE INTENT THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN CLARIFICATION 
FROM THE ARCHITECT AND/OR THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO 
SUBMITTING HIS PROPOSAL FOR WORK.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN TO FACE OF FINISH UNLESS NOTES OTHERWISE.

3. WALLS TO STRUCTURAL DECK MUST BE THOROUGHLY SEALED AROUND 
PENETRATIONS.

GENERAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

Date Description

8/8/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

9/5/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

10/24/23 SITE PLAN
RESUBMISSION

11/20/23 REVISION

5

43



LONG JOHN SILVER'S
5481 W. MAIN ST KALAMAZOO, MI 49009

STORE #: 70150

OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
THE NORTH 250 FEET OF LOT 3, ELKS PLAT NO. 1,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN
LIBER 31 OF PLATS OF PAGE 48, KALAMAZOO COUNTRY
RECORDS.

BEING THE SAME PROPERTY CONVEYED BY WARRANTY
DEED FROM CONCORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, L.L.C., A
MICHIGAN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY TO BR
ASSOCIATES, INC., AN INDIANA CORPORATION DATED
DECEMBER 29, 2003 AND RECORDED JANUARY 14, 2004
IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-002150.

EXISTING ZONING:
C - LOCAL BUSINESS
ADJACENT ZONING:
ZONING NORTH, EAST, WEST, AND
SOUTH, C - LOCAL BUSINESS
PARKING REQUIREMENT:
1 PARKING SPOT PER 70 S.F. FLOOR
AREA PLUS 1 PER EACH EMPLOYEE
ON THE LARGEST SHIFT.
PARKING PROPOSED:
CALCULATIONS -
TOTAL SQ. FT. - HALLWAY/UTILITY SQ. FT. = DESIGN SQ. FT.
2,288 SQ. FT. - 245 SQ. FT. = 1,983 SQ. FT., LESS 10% = 1,785 SQ. FT.
1,785 SQ. FT. / 70 S.F. = 26 SPACES
5 WORKERS ON LARGEST SHIFTS = 5 ADDITIONAL SPACES
REQUIRED PARKING SPACES = 31 SPACES
14 SPACES
  2 ADA SPACES
19 CROSS PARKING AGREEMENT SPACES
35 TOTAL SPACES
SHEET INDEX:
C-100 - COVER SHEET
C-300 - CIVIL SITE PLAN - EXISTING CONDITIONS
C-301 - CIVIL SITE PLAN - DEMOLITION
C-400 - CIVIL SITE PLAN - GRADING AND STORM SEWER
C-401 - CIVIL SITE PLAN - UTILITY PLAN
C-402 - GEOMETRIC DIMENSIONS AND STRIPING PLAN
C-403 - LANDSCAPE PLAN
C-800 - CIVIL DETAILS
C-801 - DUMPSTER DETAIL

OWNER:                             SCOTT BRADLEY
                                            CHARTER FOODS INC.
                                            TALBOTT, TN 37877
                                            (615)-310-6589

ARCHITECT:                      JEFFREY S. FERWEDA, AIA
                                            SEDGEWICK + FERWEDA ARCHITECTS
                                            FLINT, MI 48503
                                            (810)-397-3711

MECHANICAL:                    CRAIG TRIERWEILER, P.E.
                                            MATRIX CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.
                                            LANSING MI, 48906
                                            (517)-487-2511

ELECTRICAL:                     JOE SOVIS, P.E.
                                            MATRIX CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.
                                            LANSING MI, 48906
                                            (517)-487-2511

                               GREG MINSHALL, P.E.
                                            MATRIX CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.
                                            LANSING MI, 48906
                                            (517)-487-2511

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

N AERIAL SITE PHOTO

44



MENU

7'
 W

O
O

D
 F

EN
C

E

STOP

DOWNSPOUTDOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

FF=9
50

.96

FF=9
51

.00

FF=9
51

.05

GAS M
ETER

SIGN LIGHT

DRIVE THRU

HANDIC
AP PARKIN

G

EXIT O
NLY

SIGN LIGHT

CHARTER BOX

TELE
 BOX

ELE
CTRIC

 M
ETER

ORDER C
OMSTOP LI

GHT AHEAD W
 M

AIN
 STREET

NO PARKIN
G

RESERVED HANDICAP PARKING ONLY

RESERVED PARKING VAN ACCESSABLE

SI
G

N

WATER
METER

SI
G

N

SIGN LIGHT
DOWNSPOUT

SIGN LIGHT
SIGN LIGHT

EXISTING CROSS WALK ·

·

·

·

LEGEND

N

CIVIL SITE PLAN -
EXISTING CONDITIONS

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

45



MENU

7'
 W

O
O

D
 F

EN
C

E

STOP

DOWNSPOUTDOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

FF=9
50

.96

FF=9
51

.00

FF=9
51

.05

GAS M
ETER

SIGN LIGHT

DRIVE THRU

HANDIC
AP PARKIN

G

EXIT O
NLY

SIGN LIGHT

CHARTER BOX

TELE
 BOX

ELE
CTRIC

 M
ETER

ORDER C
OM

NO PARKIN
G

RESERVED HANDICAP PARKING ONLY

RESERVED PARKING VAN ACCESSABLE

SI
G

N

WATER
METER

SI
G

N

SIGN LIGHT
DOWNSPOUT

SIGN LIGHT
SIGN LIGHT

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

1

1

3

4

4

2

5

5

5

REMOVE EXISTING HOT MIX ASPHALT, CONCRETE,
LANDSCAPING, AND STRUCTURES. BACKFILL WITH MDOT
CII SAND COMPACTED TO 95% MAXIMUM DENSITY.

EXISTING WATER PIPING AND WATER VALVE TO REMAIN.

PROTECT EXISTING HOT MIX ASPHALT IN LOCATION
SHOWN.

INSTALL TREE PROTECTION FENCING OUTSIDE DRIP
EDGE OF TREES.

REMOVE EXISTING LIGHT POLES TO LIMITS SHOWN.
DISCONNECT AND TEMPORARILY CAP.

DEMOLITION NOTES
1

2

3

4

5

N

CIVIL SITE PLAN -
DEMOLITION PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

46



LIMESTONE OVER
FABRIC, SEE DETAILS

DETENTION /
RAIN GARDEN

DOWNSPOUT

24" DIA. INLET

12" CONNECTORS
INVERT 943.50
RIM EL. 947.50

RIM EL. 949.30, INVERT 943.50
EJ1W 1020, T-SECTION,
FLAT GRATE, HEAVY
DUTY, ADA STYLE

CHECK DAM AND INLET

948.75

CHECK DAM AND INLET

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

MEG

CURB INLET (TYP.)

2%

EXISTING CROSS WALK

BUILDING
2,228 S.F.
HEIGHT = 20'

949.73

949.49

949.27

948.51

948.12
947.46947.47

947.15
947.05

946.46947.36

948.56

948.45

948.38

948.65

948.99

949.58

950.22

950.65

950.62

950.60

946.84947.12947.34

948.43

948.54

949.16

949.14

949.38

949.49

949.86

949.94 949.61

949.59

949.53

949.43

949.28

949.26

949.26

948.86

948.73

947.54

949.64

948.93

SEE PLANTING
DETAIL SHEET C-800.

DETENTION /
RAIN GARDEN

43'-3" @ 0.0%

17'-5" @
 0.0%

ST
O

R
AG

E 
AN

D
 IN

FI
LT

R
AT

IO
N

, S
EE

 D
ET

AI
L 

O
N

 C
-8

00

ST
O

R
AG

E 
AN

D
 IN

FI
LT

R
AT

IO
N

, S
EE

 D
ET

AI
L 

O
N

 C
-8

00

2%

CURB INLET (TYP.)

948.00 947.90

948.25 948.15

948.00

947.65

947.65

947.75948.00

949.00
948.50

949.80

949.80
949.30

950.50
950.00

950.20
949.70

950.50
950.00

950.10
949.60

949.20

5%

950.00
949.50

949.00
949.50

949.00
949.50

948.00
948.50

947.90

947.90

948.00
948.00

948.50
948.00

948.25
947.75

947.50
948.00

947.25
947.75

947.85
947.35

947.25

947.85
947.35

DOWNSPOUT

DOWNSPOUT

WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

STOP

STOP LI
GHT AHEAD W

 M
AIN

 STREET

EXISTING 8" WATEREXISTING 8" WATER

STOP BAR

MENU

10' 20'27'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

DUMPSTER

PAD

DUMPSTER

ENCLO
SURE

LJS PYLON SIGN

5'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

8IN

15
IN

15
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

18
IN

10'

30'

84
'

GI-1

DRIVE THRU
WINDOW

ONE-WAY SIGN

10
'

MATCH EXISTING GRADE
18'

PARKING BLOCK

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

18'

BIKE RACK

MATCH EXISTING GRADE MATCH EXISTING GRADE

950.30
950.40

950.50

947.00

946.00

6" SCHEDULE 40 PVC (TYP.)
OUTLET TO DRAINAGE SWALE

94
5.

00
94

4.
00

INV. 943.50

MEET EXISTING GRADE (TYP.)

946.00
945.00

944.00

947.00
947.50

949.00

949.80

948.80

949.00

950.60

949.70

948.90

948.70

948.00

949.10
949.60

PROPOSED
GRADE (TYP.)

EXISTING
GRADE (TYP.)

94
6.0

0

94
8.

00
94

7.
00

94
6.

00

94
7.

00
94

6.
00

94
5.

00

20'

949.50

948.88

LONG JOHN SILVERS OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP:
PROPERTY SIZE - 250 FT x 135 FT = 33,750 S.F.
CONTRIBUTING AREA = 33,750 S.F. = 0.88 ACRE
ALLOWABLE RELEASE RATE = N/A

DETAIN/INFILTRATE 25 YEAR STORM:
NOAA ATLAS 14 VOLUME 8, 25-YEAR, 60 MINUTE RAINFALL = 2.31 IN.

REQUIRED STORAGE
(2.31 IN. / 12) * 33,750 S.F. * 0.88 = 5,717 C.F - 312 C.F. (1 HR INFILTRATION) = 5,405 C.F.
TIME TO EMPTY (INFILTRATE)
130 FT * 8 FT = 1,040 S.F.

INFILTRATION RATE (FOR DOUBLE 30-INCH TRENCH NOT INCLUDING RAIN GARDEN)
4.5 IN/HR * 0.8 FACTOR OF SAFETY = 3.6 IN/HR
3.6/12 * 1,040 = 312 C.F./HR
5,717 / 12 = 18.3 HRS

HIGH WATER ELEVATION = 946.52

STORAGE/INFILTRATION
SURFACE:

DRAINAGE SWALE = 3,037 C.F.
DETENTION / RAIN GARDENS = 1,261 C.F.
PIPES (SUBSURFACE) = 1,375 C.F.
TOTAL = 5,673 C.F.

LEGEND

GENERAL NOTES
1. 94X.XX TOP OF CURB OR THICKENED EDGE SIDEWALK

94X.XX BOTTOM OF CURB OR THICKENED EDGE SIDEWALK

2. SIDEWALK CROSS SLOPES TO BE 1% TO 2% MAX.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL MAN HOLE COVER AND
UNDERGROUND STORAGE PER MANUFACTURERS
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS.

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

N

CIVIL SITE PLAN - GRADING
AND STORM SEWER
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

47



SANITARY LEAD

6" SAN

6" SAN

CLEANOUT

X-1-1/4" WATER

WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

CLEANOUT

6" WATER

EXISTING 8" WATER

WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

EXISTING 8" WATEREXISTING 8" WATER

4" SAN

BIKE RACK

CLEANOUT

8x6 TEE (LIVE TAP) 6" RESILIENT
WEDGE GATE VALVE

1" WATER

WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

STOP

STOP LI
GHT AHEAD W

 M
AIN

 STREET

EXISTING CROSS WALK

STOP BAR

BUILDING
2,228 S.F.
HEIGHT = 20'

MENU

10' 20'27'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

DUMPSTER

PAD

DUMPSTER

ENCLO
SURE

5'

36
'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

8IN

15
IN

15
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

18
IN

10'

30'

4 
@

 1
0'

84
'

GI-1

DRIVE THRU
WINDOW

10
'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

5 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

PARKING BLOCK

BUILDING SETBACK = 37'

COMMERCIAL EDGING

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

= 
15

3'

FIRE HYDRANT

ONE-WAY SIGN

BUILDING SETBACK = 70'

20'

GENERAL NOTES
1. INSTALL GREASE INTERCEPTOR BELOW GRADE AT

LOCATION SHOWN. GREASE INTERCEPTOR WAS SIZED
BASED OFF NUMBERS OF MEALS SERVED PER DAY
WHICH WAS DETERMINED TO BE 600 MEALS. INSTALL A
SCHIER GREASE INTERCEPTOR (GB-1500, 200 GPM)

2. INSTALL NEW FIRE HYDRANT AT LOCATION SHOWN. FIRE
HYDRANT SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE LOCAL
FIRE MARSHALL PRIOR TO INSTALLING. HYDRANT AND
VALVES SHALL MEET OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP STANDARDS.

3. INSTALL NEW 6" SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION AT
LOCATION SHOWN. ALL NEW SANITARY SEWER PIPING IS
TO BE SCHEDULE 80 PVC. NEW SANITARY SEWER
CONNECTION SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE CITY
PRIOR TO PERFORMING THE WORK. SEE CLEANOUT
DETAIL ON C-800 FOR MORE INFORMATION.

LEGEND

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

N CIVIL SITE PLAN - UTILITY PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

48



CAR CAR

CAR

CAR

CAR

CAR

CAR

CAR

CAR

10'

20'

WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

STOP

STOP LI
GHT AHEAD W

 M
AIN

 STREET

EXISTING 8" WATEREXISTING 8" WATER

EXISTING CROSS WALK

STOP BAR

BUILDING
2,228 S.F.
HEIGHT = 20'

MENU

10' 20'27'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

DUMPSTER

PAD

DUMPSTER

ENCLO
SURE

LJS PYLON SIGN

5'

36
'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

8IN

15
IN

15
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

18
IN

10'

30'

2 
@

 1
0'

2 
@

 1
0'

6 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

84
'

GI-1

DRIVE THRU
WINDOW

ONE-WAY SIGN

FIRE HYDRANT

ONE-WAY SIGN

10
'

2 
@

 1
0'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

= 
15

3'

BUILDING SETBACK = 70'

CAR

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'18'

PARKING BLOCK

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

18'

BIKE RACK

CROSS PARKING AGREEMENT
LOT (19 SPACES)

ONE-WAY SIGN

ONE-WAY SIGN

14'

HANDICAP SIGN

HANDICAP SIGN
20'

BUILDING SETBACK = 37'

5'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

= 
88

'

1. PARKING SPOTS = 14 STANDARD, 2 ACCESSIBLE, 19
STANDARD FROM CROSS PARKING AGREEMENT.
TOTAL = 35 PARKING SPOTS.

2. PROVIDE (2) MICHIGAN ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGNS
MICHIGAN MUTCD R7-8 WITH VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGNS
R7-8A. NOTE NEW "ACTIVE" WHEEL CHAIR SYMBOL.
GROUT SIGN POSTS IN STEEL SLEEVES.

3. CONNECT NEW MANHOLES TO EXISTING PIPE WITH
15-INCH SDR 26 PVC AND RESILIENT CONNECTOR
AND STAINLESS STEEL STRAPS.

4. CONCRETE MDOT P1.

5. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK OFF ADJACENT
PROPERTY LINES IS 20' UNLESS INDICATED
OTHERWISE ON THE DRAWINGS.

GENERAL NOTES

LEGEND

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

N

GEOMETRIC DIMENSIONS
AND STRIPING PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

49



WATER MAIN
SHUT-OFF VALVE

STOP

STOP LI
GHT AHEAD W

 M
AIN

 STREET

EXISTING 8" WATEREXISTING 8" WATER

EXISTING CROSS WALK

STOP BAR

BUILDING
2,228 S.F.
HEIGHT = 20'

MENU

10' 20'27'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

DUMPSTER

PAD

DUMPSTER

ENCLO
SURE

LJS PYLON SIGN

5'

36
'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

= 
25

0'

8IN

15
IN

15
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

10
IN

12
IN

18
IN

20'

10'

30'

2 
@

 1
0'

2 
@

 1
0'

6 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

84
'

GI-1

DRIVE THRU
WINDOW

FIRE HYDRANT

ONE-WAY SIGN

10
'

2 
@

 1
0'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

= 
15

3'

BUILDING SETBACK = 70'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

= 
88

'

PROPERTY DIMENSIONS = 135'

18'

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

5 
@

 1
0'

4 
@

 1
0'

18'

PARKING BLOCK

BIKE RACK

BUILDING SETBACK = 37'

COMMERCIAL EDGING

TOPSOIL SEED
AND MULCH

ONE-WAY SIGN

(1) RED MAPLE
(2) CREEPING JUNIPER

(1) RED MAPLE
(2) CREEPING JUNIPER

(1) RED MAPLE
(2) CREEPING JUNIPER

(1) RED MAPLE
(2) CREEPING JUNIPER

(1) NEW JERSEY TEA
(2) BUSH HONEY SUCKILE

(1) NEW JERSEY TEA
(2) BUSH HONEY SUCKILE

(1) NEW JERSEY TEA
(2) BUSH HONEY SUCKILE

(1) NEW JERSEY TEA
(2) BUSH HONEY SUCKILE

(1) BLACKHAW VIBURNUM

INSTALL TREE PROTECTION FENCE
42" HIGH AROUND ALL TREES
ALONG THE WEST PROPERTY LINE

(1) RED MAPLE

(1) BLACKHAW VIBURNUM
15

'

EX
IS

TI
N

G
G

R
EE

N
BE

LT

REFER TO SHEET C-800 DETAIL 6 FOR RAIN
GARDEN PLANTINGS. WILD FLOWERS TO BE
PLANTED AT BOTTOM OF RAIN GARDEN.

REFER TO SHEET C-800 DETAIL 6 FOR RAIN
GARDEN PLANTINGS. WILD FLOWERS TO BE
PLANTED AT BOTTOM OF RAIN GARDEN.

LEGEND

REQUIRED GREEN SPACE = 26 SPACES * 25 S.F/SPACE =
650 S.F. ADDITIONAL GREEN SPACE

FOUR ISLANDS GREEN SPACE = 254 S.F. + 227 S.F. + 144
S.F. + 230 S.F. = 855 S.F. ADDITIONAL GREEN SPACE.

ORDINANCE 53.5 PARKING LOT
· 25 S.F. / SPACE
· 16 SPACES * 25 S.F. = 400
· (2) ISLANDS 400 S.F. TOTAL

ORDINANCE 53.6 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY GREENBELT
· NORTH SIDE IS 15 FEET AND WILL BE PROTECTED

WEST SIDE WEST OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY IS 10 TO 15
FEET AND WILL BE PROTECTED.

· PER 53.150 C WE ARE REQUESTING THAT THE
GREENBELT REQUIREMENT BE REDUCED AS IT IS
CONSTRAINED BY THE SITE.

ORDINANCE 53.70 INTERIOR SITE LANDSCAPING
· 3,375 S.F. REQUIRED 3,100 PROVIDED
·· 2,050 ADJACENT BUILDING, 1,050 RAIN GARDENS

· (3) CANOPY TREES REQUIRED - (3) PROVIDED
· (2) UNDERSTORM TREES REQUIRED - (2) PROVIDED

PARKING LOT SHRUBS
1.5 PER SPACE
10 SPACES ADJACENT MAPLE HILL
15 SHRUBS REQUIRED

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

N LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

50



GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC
FASTENED ON UPHILL SIDE,
TOWARDS EARTH DISRUPTION

FABRIC TO BE WRAPPED
AROUND FENCE POST

6" ANCHOR TRENCH

SILT FENCE A

ROLL JOINTS

SILT FENCE B

SPACING 6-10' MAX.
ROLL JOINT

1' MIN.

FENCE POSTS DRIVEN
INTO GROUND 1' MIN.

1 SILT FENCE DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

12' OR AS REQUIRED

TO MATCH HAUL ROAD

50'

25' RADIUS

3" x 1" DENSE GRADED
AGGREGATE, RAILROAD
BALLST, OR APPROVED EQUAL

DEPTH OF
AGGREGATE 6"

PUBLIC ROAD
25' RADIUS

DIVERSION RIDGE (OPTIONAL)

PUBLIC ROADGEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR

NOTE: CONSTRUCT PER DIMENSIONS AND MATERIALS OR AS DESIGNED BY ENGINEER.

2
AGGREGATE ACCESS
DRIVE DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR
TO STABILIZE FOUNDATION

A GRAVEL ACCESS WITH DIVERSION RIDGE IS
RECOMMENDED WHERE GRADES EXCEED 2%

4" GALVANIZED SCHEDULE 40 STEEL
PIPE OR SCHEDULE 40 STEEL PIPE WITH
2 COATS OF PRIMER, CONCRETE FILLED
(f'c=3,000 PSI MIN.)

EXISTING SLAB
FINISHED GRADE

CONCRETE CAP MOUNTED 1" ABOVE
EDGE OF STEEL BOLLARD

4" YELLOW PLASTIC BOLLARD
CASE (SEE NOTE TO DESIGNER)

48
"

4" BASE FLANGE

4 BOLLARD DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

8" CONCRETE PAVEMENT (MDOT P-1)

6" AGGREGATE BASE, 21AA

PROOF-ROLLED SUB BASE

6x6x1.4x1.4 WWF, BEND AS REQUIRED
TO FORM STEP
ADD DOWELS @ 12" O.C. WHEN NEXT
TO EXISTING CONCRETE.

5 CONCRETE PAVEMENT DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

1/4" ZINC ELECTROPLATE DIAMOND DOWEL SYSTEM @ 24" O.C.
WHERE CONCRETE PAVEMENT ABUTS BACK OF CURB

24"

10 7/16"

5'-
3 5

/16
"

5'-3 1/16"

COMPACTED CLASS II AGGREGATE
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

ADJACENT PAVEMENT SYSTEM

SLOPE GUTTER PAN 12" IN
DIRECTION OF WATERSHED
(SEE GRADING PLAN)

7'-
10

 15
/16

"12" 5'-3 3/8"

2"R
2"R

SPEED DOWEL, TYP. AT EXPANSION JOINTS.
SEE CURB EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL

1'-
9 1

/8"

7'-
0 3

/8"

3'-
11

 9/
16

"

5'-3 9/16"

7 ADA PARKING DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

3 CURB AND GUTTER DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

PEASTONE SEPARATOR

GRAVEL BED
EXISTING UNDISTURBED SOIL

6 RAIN GARDEN DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

BIORENTENTION SOIL

GEOTEXTILE SIDING,
TO EL 944.00

RAIN GARDEN PLANTS
BOTTOM:
      SHRUBS -

NINEBARK
SILKY DOGWOOD
MICHIGAN HOLLY

      WILD FLOWERS -
GOLDEN ALEXANDER
MARSH MARIGOLD
SWAMP MILKWEED

SIDES:
      SHRUBS -

BLACK CHOKEBERRY
SERVICE BERRY
FRAGMENT SUMAC

      WILD FLOWERS -
BUTTERFLY WEED
BLUE EYED GRASS
BEE BALM

EXISTING GROUND BACK OF CURB OR
EDGE OF SHOULDER

1:1

LIMITS OF PAVEMENT
REMOVAL (6' - 0" MINIMUM)

1' - 0"
MIN.

"W" 1' - 0"
MIN.

PAVEMENT`
SUBASE (AS
SPECIFIED IN PLANS)

SUBGRADE

SUITABLE MATERIAL EXCAVATED
FROM SEWER TRENCH (OTHER THAN
WET UNSTABLE CLAY)

GRANULAR
MATERIAL CLASS III

GRANULAR MATERIAL
CLASS IIIA

UTILITY MAIN

4" MIN.
BEDDING
GRANULAR
MATERIAL
CLASS IIIA

4" MIN.
BEDDING
GRANULAR
MATERIAL
CLASS IIIA

"W" "W"

NOTE: WHEN UTILITY IS PLACED IN PROPOSED ROADBED AREA, IT SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH
SELECTED EXCAVATION MATERIAL ABOVE FUTURE SUBGRADE TO EXISTING GROUND LINE.

I.D.I.D.

1' 
-0

"

UTILITIES UNDER ROADBED OR WITHIN
INFLUENCE OF ROADBED

1' 
-0

"

1.5"

2"

MDOT 13A (T) 165 LBS / SYD

MDOT 13A (L) 220 LBS / SYD

CRUSHED MDOT 21AA COMPACTED TO
98% MAXIMUM DENSITY

8"

8 TYPICAL HMA CROSS SECTION
SCALE: NTS 9 UTILITY TRENCH DETAIL

SCALE: NTS

ACCESSIBLE
PARKING
SPACE

ACCESSIBLE
PARKING
SPACE

10'

PARKING
ACCESS

AISLE

TAPER TO MATCH RAMP TAPER TO MATCH RAMP

NOTE: MAXIMUM 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION
WITHIN BARRIER-FREE PARKING AND LANDING AREA

A.D.A. COMPLIANCE GUIDEBOOK NOTES
AT LEAST ONE ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE AT A FACILITY MUST BE 'VAN
ACCESSIBLE'- THE REMAINING ONES CAN BE 'ACCESSIBLE' SPACES WITH THE
NARROWER 5' ACCESS AISLES.  TWO ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES MAY SHARE A
COMMON ACCESS AISLE.  RAMPS ARE NOT PERMITTED WITHIN LANDING
REQUIRED ACCESS AISLES.

PATH RAMPS:
SURFACE SHALL BE FIRM, STABLE, AND SLIP-RESISTANT; 1:12 MAXIMUM SLOPE.

SIGNAGE:
SIGNS SHALL BE DESIGNATED AS RESERVED BY A SIGN SHOWING THE
INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL OF ACCESSIBILITY.  'VAN ACCESSIBLE' SPACES SHALL
HAVE AN ADDITIONAL SIGN STATING 'VAN ACCESSIBLE' BELOW THE
INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL OF ACCESSIBILITY.  SIGNS SHALL 7' TO BOTTOM OF THE
SIGN.

RAMP LANDING RAMP

1:12 MAX1:12 MAX

RAMP EDGE TO LINE
UP WITH BOUNDARY
OF ACCESS AISLE

STANDARD
PARKING
SPACE

20
'-4

" T
O 

BA
CK

 O
F 

CU
RB

STANDARD
PARKING
SPACE

8"

7-1/2"

10-1/4"

15-1/2"

PVC FEMALE CLEANOUT ADAPTER
WITH INVERTED NUT SCREW CAP OR
FLAT SLOTTED SCREW CAP

PVC PIPE
45 DEGREE BEND

PVC PIPE

WYE
SEWER LATERAL

E.J.I.W. 1574 CAST IRON CLEANOUT FRAME LID
INSTALLED FLUSH WITH FINISHED SURFACE

EXISTING GRADE

CONCRETE COLLAR POURED AROUND
CLEANOUT COVER (3,500 PSI)

KOR-N-SEAL NO. S406-10 AWS*

10 SANITARY CLEANOUT DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

SEWER

      TOP
ELEVATION

2' - 0" MINIMUM

4.5'

11

TYPICAL DENTENTION/VOLUME CONTROL
AND INFILTRATION TRENCH SECTION
SCALE: NTS

OUTLET PIPE

12" PERFORATED PVC PIPE

INLET PIPE

24" LAYER OF 21AA BELOW PIPE

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL (TYP.)

30" DIA. PERFORATED DETENTION/VOLUME/INFILTRATION
CONTROL PIPE (TYP.)

PAVEMENT SECTION PER PLAN

LIMITS OF PAVEMENT
REMOVAL (9' - 0" MINIMUM)

2' - 6" 2' - 6"1' - 0"
MIN.

1' - 0"
MIN.SLOPE

30" DIA. PERFORATED
DETENTION/VOLUME CONTROL PIPE (TYP.)

CONTEXH C4ONW 4 OZ. NONWOVEN
FABRIC ALONG TOP AND SIDES OF
TRENCH SECTION, TUCK IN UNDER
THE BOTTOM OF STONE (TYP.)

4.5' DEEP LAYER OF
21AA BACKFILL (TYP.)

10'
10'

10'

8'

24-INCH RISER WITH
CATCH BASIN CASTING

24-INCH RISER WITH
CATCH BASIN CASTING

SURFACE FINISHED GRADESIGN POST
SIGN POST ANCHOR

STEEL SLEEVE

SIGN POST ANCHOR SLEEVE
SIGN POST ANCHOR

SIGN POST

2" TO 4"

4" I.D. STEEL SLEEVE
SIGN POST ANCHOR SLEEVE

TO SUBGRADE

3/8"x7/16"
DRIVE RIVET

TYPICAL POST INSTALLATION

SIGN POST 2" x 2", 12" DEEP
ANCHOR 2 1/4" x 2 1/4", 36" DEEP
ANCHOR SLEEVE 2 1/2" x 2 1/2", 18" DEEP

NOTES:

1. FILL WITH COMPACTED SAND
2. FOR SIGN INSTALLATION IN HARD SURFACES SUCH AS
ASPHALTIC CONCRETE AND PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
FOR ROADS, RAISED MEDIANS/ISLANDS AND SIDEWALKS.
3. DURING CONSTRUCTION, PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE
SIGNS, INSTALL A PLUG INTO OR A CAP ONTO THE TOP OF
THE STEEL SLEEVE TO KEEP DEBRIS OUT OF THE SLEEVE.

SIGN POST INSTALL IN P.C.
CONCRETE OR ASPHALT

RESERVED
 PARKING

ONLY

12 HANDICAP SIGN DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

d/2

A

A

B

B

w/2

w/2

d

La

DISCHARGE TO SEMI-CONFINED
SECTION (MAXIMUM TAILWATER
CONDITION)

PLANVIEW
MIN. DEPTH = DISCHARGE OR TAILWATER
DEPTH, WHICHEVER IS GREATER

DISCH.
PIPEd/2

RISER

GRADED AGGREGATE
FILTER OR FILTER CLOTH 1.0'

3.0' MIN.

DEPTH DICTATED BY CHANNEL
SECTION AT END OF APRON

6" MIN.

PROFILE VIEW

d/2

w = d + 0.4*La

SECTION A-A

GRADED AGGREGATE
FILTER OR FILTER CLOTH

(AT END OF CULVERT)
NOTE:
SEE RIPRAP STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS
MAXIMUM TAILWATER CONDITIONS

w = d + 0.4*La

SECTION B-B

GRADED AGGREGATE
FILTER OR FILTER CLOTH

(AT END OF APRON)

13 RIP RAP OUTLET DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

51



WALL BEYOND

4" SCH. 80 STEEL
POST FILLED w/
CONCRETE

PAINTED SPLIT FACE CMU

15'-0" 2"

3'-2"

CLEAR OPENING

12'-0"
4" SCH. 80 STEEL
POST FILLED w/
CONCRETE

14gc. CLEANED AND PRIMED
DECK PLATE, PAINT "DARK
BRONZETONE"

PAINT INSIDE w/ EPOXY
PAINT (TO MATCH BLDG.)1" ADJUSTABLE

HINGE BOLT
3/4"x2"x3" HINGE
TAB (TYPE OF 4)

1-1/2"x 1-1/2" SQ.
STEEL TUBING

GRADE

1'
-1
0
"

4
'-
10

"

10"2" 2" 5"5"

1" DIA. DROP PIN 1" PIPE w/ SET SCREW KEEPER
1/4"x2"x1-1/2" ANGLE HANGERS
1/8"x1"x2" CHANNEL HOLDERS

9
"1

'-
3
"

3
'-
0
"

24'-0"

6
"

7
'-
6
"

8
'-
0
"

11'-2"10"11'-2"

3
'-
2
"

C
L
E
A
R
 O

P
E
N
IN

G

12
'-
0
"

24'-0"

15
'-
0
"

2
0
'-
0
"

24'-0"

1'-4"

1'
-4

"

4'-0" 4'-0"

1'
-0

"

4" SCH. 80 STEEL
POST FILLED w/
CONCRETE

DRILL HOLES
FOR DROP PINS
IN BOTH CLOSED
& OPEN GATE
POSITIONS

DRILL HOLES
FOR DROP PINS
TYP

6" PIPE FILLED w/
CONCRETE TOP OF
PIPE: 3'-6" ABOVE
SLAB, SEE DETAIL
THIS SHEET

CONTROL JOINT

8" THICK, 4,00 PSI 5% AIR
ENTRAINED w/ 6"x6"-W2.9xW2.9
WWM. CONSTRUCTION JOINTS @
12'-0" OC. EACH WAY, 1" MIN.,
FILLED W/ ELASTOMERIC
SEALANT ON COMPACTED 6"
MIN. AGGREGATE BASE

TURN DOWN EDGE

G8
AS-3

G1
AS-3

5" 5"

NOTES:

1. LOCATION SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.
2. AREAS SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE FOR DELIVERY AND COLLECTION.
3. GATES SHALL BE CORRUGATED METAL DOORS AND MUST BE APPROVED BY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
4. GATE LATCHES SHALL BE OF THE PLUNGER BAR TYPE OR EQUIVALENT AS APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.
5. SEE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS, NOTES AND PROCEDURES

TRASH ENCLOSURE DETAIL MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS:

1. CONCRETE BLOCK: 6" MINIMUM IN SIZE. ASTM C90.
2. REINFORCING STEEL: ASTM 615. GRADE 40.
3. ACCEPTABLE SOIL TYPES:

A. MIN. ALLOWABLE BEARING: 1000 LBS'/SQ. FT
B. MIN. LATERAL BEARING: 100 LBS'/SQ. FT./FT.
C. MAX EXPANSION INDEX: 20

4. CONCRETE: 2000 LBS'/SQ. IN. IN 28 DAYS.
5. MORTAR: 1: 1/4:3 (PORTLAND CEMENT: HYDRATED LIME OR LIME PUTTY: SAND. BY VOLUME). MIXED TO PLASTIC CONSISTENCY. REFER TO

UBC TABLE 24-A FOR OTHER TYPES OF CEMENT.
6. GROUT: 1:1/10:3 (PORTLAND CEMENT: HYDRATED LIME OR LIME PUTTY: SAND BY VOLUME).MIX TO FLOW WITHOUT SEGREGATION. GROUT

MAY CONTAIN 2 PARTS PEA GRAVEL (3/8" MAX. SIZE). MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH: 2000 LBS/SQ. IN. REFER TO UBC TABLE 24-B FOR
OTHER TYPES OF CEMENT.

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THIS DESIGN IS FOR AVERAGE CONDITIONS AND MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR ALL CASES. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT A LICENSED CIVIL OR
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER BE CONSULTED.

2. FOOTINGS SHALL BE IN NATURAL SOIL OR CERTIFIED FILL.
3. BLOCKS TO BE STAGGERED (RUNNING BOND).
4. ALL CELLS CONTAINING REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE GROUTED.
5. APPROVED GROUT STOPS ARE REQUIRED BELOW HORIZONTAL STEEL IN PARTIALLY GROUTED WALLS. BAGS. NEWSPAPERS, ETC. ARE NOT

APPROVED GROUT STOPS.
6. INITIAL BED JOINT SHALL BE 1/4"MIN. 1 "MAX. SUBSEQUENT BED JOINTS SHALL BE 1/4"- MIN., 5/8"MAX.
7. VERTICAL CONTINUITY OF CELLS SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED. M0RTAR PROJECTIONS SHALL NOT EXCEED 1/2" FOR 6" AND LARGER BLOCK.

MORTAR DROPPINGS OR OTHER FOREIGN MATTER ARE NOT PERMITTED IN CELLS AND MUST BE REMOVED.
8. EXPANSION JOINTS REQUIRED AT 60'-0· MAX. INTERVALS.
9. REQUIRED BAR LAPS:

A. VERTICAL STEEL : 30 BAR DIAMETERS.
B. HORIZONTAL STEEL: 40 BAR DIAMETERS.
C. WIRE JOINT REINFORCEMENT IN THE MORTARED BED JOINT: 75 WIRE DIAMETERS OR IN ALTERNATE BED JOINTS OF RUNNING BOND. 54

DIAMETERS PLUS TWICE THE BED JOINT SPACING.

10. WHERE HORIZONTAL WIRE JOINT REINFORCEMENT IS REQUIRED OR UTILIZED. IT SHALL BE EQUIVALENT TO TWO 3/16' DIAMETER BARS
CONNECTED AT 16" INTERVALS BY NO. 9 GAUGE WELDED WIRE.

11. FOR PIPES AND CONDUIT EMBEDDED IN MASONRY, REFER TO SEC. 24-07(G). UBC.
12. 3" MIN. COVER REQUIRED FOR REINFORCEMENT IN CONCRETE WHICH IS CAST AGAINST EARTH.

INSPECTION PROCEDURES:

1. FOUNDATION: AFTER TRENCHES ARE DUG, STEEL IS TIED IN PLACE AND BEFORE ANY CONCRETE IS POURED.
2. PREGROUT: AFTER ALL BLOCKS (EXCEPT CAP) ARE IN PLACE. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL STEEL IS IN PLACE, GROUT STOPS (FOR PARTIALLY

GROUTED MASONRY) ARE IN PLACE. AND PRIOR TO GROUTING.
3. FINAL: AFTER GROUT IS IN PLACE AND PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF CAP.

14 SIDE ELEVATION
NTS

15 FRONT ELEVATION
NTS

16 DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE DETAIL
NTS

M
 A

 T
 R

 I
 X

52



LJ
S

 K
A

LA
M

A
Z

O
O

Designer

Date
10/24/2023
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.

Summary

1 of 1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

2.4

2.5

2.5

1.9

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

2.7

3.0

2.5

1.8

1.2

0.8

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.8

2.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.6

2.1

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.0

2.3

1.2

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.3

3.2

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

3.8

0.3

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.1

0.2

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

2.8

2.8

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

2.2

0.9

1.7

1.2

1.2

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

2.3

0.8

1.2

1.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.1

2.5

0.9

0.8

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

1.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.9

2.7

2.7

0.7

0.9

1.3

1.8

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.3

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.1

2.9

3.0

1.2

1.6

2.4

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.9

2.3

2.5

2.4

3.1

3.6

3.7

3.6

3.6

3.2

2.4

2.1

2.7

3.7

4.0

4.4

4.2

2.9

1.8

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.7

1.7

2.0

2.1

0.6

0.5

0.1

0.4

1.1

1.4

1.7

2.0

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.0

1.4

1.9

2.3

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.1

1.7

2.3

2.9

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.5

2.7

2.5

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

2.4

1.9

1.4

1.0

0.7

0.4

2.6

2.2

1.8

1.5

1.2

1.0

0.7

1.9

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.0

2.1

1.9

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.5

2.1

2.5

2.6

2.5

0.5

0.9

1.6

2.4

2.9

2.9

2.9

0.5

0.9

1.8

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.6

0.5

1.0

1.9

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.5

0.5

1.0

1.9

2.8

2.6

2.1

0.5

1.0

1.9

2.8

3.1

2.6

2.3

0.4

1.0

1.8

2.7

2.9

2.6

2.6

0.4

0.9

1.7

2.5

2.9

2.8

2.7

0.5

0.8

1.4

2.1

2.6

2.8

2.7

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.6

2.0

2.2

2.0

0.5

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.4

0.5

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

2.7

2.7

2.8

3.4

4.0

3.4

3.0

2.9

2.8

2.7

2.4

2.2

1.7

1.6

2.1

2.4

1.9

1.2

0.6

1.8

0.8

1.1

0.7

0.8 1.1

0.8

2.3

1.3

2.9

3.6

3.7

3.1

2.4

3.2

3.0

2.2

1.4

1.0

0.9

2.4

3.2

2.9

2.1

1.2

0.7

0.5

2.6

3.0

2.8

2.0

1.1

0.6

0.5

0.5

3.0

2.7

1.9

1.1

0.6

0.5

0.5

2.9

2.4

1.7

1.1

0.8

0.7

0.8

0.9

2.2

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.8

2.2

2.1

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.8

3.1

3.2

3.1

3.0

2.9

2.7

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.7

3.9

3.9

3.1

2.3

1.7

1.2

0.9

2.3

2.6

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.3

3.0

2.7

2.4

2.3

2.4

2.7

3.1

3.4

3.6

3.8

3.9

3.6

3.4

2.8

2.2

1.5

1.0

2.9

3.0

2.9

3.1

3.3

3.1

3.0

3.2

3.0

2.5

2.3

2.2

2.3

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.2

3.5

3.5

3.2

3.1

3.0

2.4

1.7

1.1

3.0

2.6

2.1

2.0

2.2

2.7

3.2

2.9

2.4

2.0

1.9

2.2

2.7

3.1

2.8

2.5

2.1

2.1

2.4

2.8

3.0

2.4

1.7

1.1

2.6

2.4

2.6

2.4

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.2

1.3

1.6

2.1

2.6

2.6

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.4

2.4

1.7

1.1

0.7

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.6

2.9

2.7

2.6

2.2

2.5

2.5

2.6

2.4

1.7

1.1

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.5

2.4

2.4

2.4

2.4

1.1

1.6

2.1

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.5

2.4

2.3

2.6

2.9

2.8

2.1

1.5

1.0

0.7

0.8

1.2

1.7

2.4

2.9

2.6

2.3

2.0

2.0

2.3

1.0

1.3

1.7

2.2

2.8

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.2

3.0

3.0

2.7

2.1

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.9

1.2

1.7

2.3

2.8

2.9

2.9

3.1

3.1

2.9

2.9

1.4

1.7

1.9

2.2

2.5

2.8

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.4

3.2

3.1

2.9

2.4

1.9

1.4

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.5

2.0

2.5

2.9

2.9

3.0

3.0

2.9

2.9

2.1

2.4

2.6

2.8

2.8

2.8

3.0

3.2

3.2

3.1

3.0

2.8

2.5

2.3

1.9

1.5

1.2

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.1

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.2

3.0

3.4

3.7

3.7

3.5

3.4

3.3

3.3

3.3

3.1

2.8

2.4

2.0

1.7

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.3

3.9

4.3

4.6

4.3

3.8

3.6

3.6

3.5

3.5

3.3

2.9

2.3

1.8

1.4

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

4.5

5.1

5.3

4.3

3.5

3.4

3.4

3.2

3.3

3.5

3.1

2.5

1.9

1.5

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

3.3

3.9

5.0

4.5

3.5

2.6

2.3

2.7

3.3

4.1

3.7

3.1

2.5

2.1

1.8

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.2

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.4

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.5

0.2

0.2

0.2

3.2

4.6

4.6

4.2

5.5

H @ 9' H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

J @ 18'

H @ 9'

H @ 9'

Plan View

Schedule

Symbol Label Image Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Number
Lamps

Lumens
Per Lamp

Light Loss
Factor Wattage Plot

H

20 Cree Lighting A19-60W-B2-50K-E26-
U4

A19 CREE BASIC 5000K 1 923 1 8.9

J

7 COOPER LIGHTING
SOLUTIONS - McGRAW-
EDISON (FORMERLY
EATON)

GALN-SA2A-740-U-T3-
HSS

GALLEON AREA AND ROADWAY LUMINAIRE
(2) 70 CRI, 4000K, 615mA LIGHTSQUARES
WITH 16 LEDS EACH AND TYPE III OPTICS
WITH HOUSE SIDE SHIELD

32 211 1 63

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Entrance/Exit 1.5 fc 3.2 fc 0.2 fc 16.0:1 7.5:1
Walk-In 2.2 fc 4.6 fc 0.5 fc 9.2:1 4.4:1
Drive-Thru 2.3 fc 4.2 fc 0.2 fc 21.0:1 11.5:1
Parking 2.1 fc 5.5 fc 0.2 fc 27.5:1 10.5:1

NOTES:
1. All lights shall be cut-off fixtures.
2. A minimum color rendering index (CRI) of 65.
3. A Kelvin rating between 3,000-5,000K.

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



[This page le� inten�onally blank] 

69



 

 

December 8, 2023 
 
Mtg Date:   December 14, 2023 
 
To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Iris Lubbert, AICP, Planning Director 
 

Subject: Public Hearing: 57.80 Keeping of Livestock and Honey Bees 
 

 
Objective: 
Consideration to adopt amendments to 57.80 - Keeping of Livestock and Honey Bees for recommendation to 
the Township Board. 
 
Background: 
While responding to an inquiry about the number and type of livestock permitted on a property, Staff became 
aware that the relevant Ordinance section was not clear and open to interpretation. To clarify and ensure 
consistent interpretation, the Planning Department and Legal Department are recommending Section 57.80 
be amended.  
  
Attachments: Proposed amendments to Section 57.80 (proposed changes are in red) 
 

70



57.80 KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK AND HONEY BEES 
The keeping of poultry, swine, horses, rabbits, sheep, goats, other similar livestock (collectively referred 
herein as animals), and honey bees for noncommercial purposes is permitted under the following 
conditions: 

A. Activities shall be for the private enjoyment of the property owners conducted for 
noncommercial purposes. 

B. Acreage requirements. Acreage requirements are cumulative for exclusive of each animal size, 
excluding honey bees, meaning the property must have the minimum required acreage for 
eachall animals onsite.  

1. Large animals. One acre for each large animal (more than 200 pounds at maturity), 
including horses, cattle, and swine, or similar animals. 

2. Moderate-sized animals. One-quarter acre for each moderate-sized animal (35 
to 200 pounds at maturity), including sheep, goats, or similar animals. 

3. Small animals.  All parcels, lots, and building sites up to one acre shall be permitted 
up to five small animals (under 35 pounds at maturity), including chickens, ducks, 
turkeys, rabbits, or similar animals.  One additional small animal shall be permitted 
for each additional one-quarter acre of property. 

4. Honey bees. The maximum allowed number of colonies permitted on a lot, 
parcel, or building site shall be limited as follows: 

 Lot, Parcel, or Building site Acreage  Maximum number of colonies permitted 
 Up to ¼ acre  2 

 ¼ acre to ½ acre  4 

 ½ to 1 acre  6 

5. For a Lot, Parcel, or Building Site over an acre, 8 colonies are allowed plus 1 
additional colony for each additional one-quarter acre. 

… 

71



 

 

December 8, 2023 
 
Mtg Date:   December 14, 2023 
 
To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Iris Lubbert, AICP, Planning Director 
 

Subject: Work Session – Private Street Ordinance 
 

 
 
Suzanne Schulz, a representative from Progressive AE, will present the attached updated draft of the Private 
Street Ordinance, now the Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance, to the Planning Commission at their 
regular December 14th meeting.  
 
The Planning Commission is asked to provide feedback on the ordinance and if confident, with any 
modifications discussed at the meeting and a final review by staff and the RCKC, provide a recommendation 
to forward the ordinance to the Township Board for consideration. It should be noted that the Oshtemo 
Streets and Mobility Ordinance will be under the General Ordinance, not the Zoning Ordinance, so a public 
hearing with the Planning Commission is not required.  
 
Attachment: DRAFT Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance 

72



DRAFT December 2, 2023 

 

Page 1 of 53 

  

Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance

General Provisions  

Right-of-Way, Easements, Street Names and Addresses, Regulating Plan, Traffic Impact Study

Complete Streets 

Characteristics, Design Guidance, Elements, Widening

Connectivity 

Blocks, Street Intersections, Connections, Dead-End Streets

Access Management 

Private Driveway, Shared Private Driveway, Access Points, Spacing

Internal Circulation 

Circulation Study, Frontage Roads and Service Drives, Vehicular and Pedestrian Circulation

Street Design

Urban/Rural Contexts, Street Hierarchy, Public Streets, Private Streets, Standards

Administration and Enforcement

Approval Process, Inspections, Maintenance, Deviations and Departures, Nonconformities

73

https://progressiveae-my.sharepoint.com/personal/schulzs_progressiveae_com/Documents/staff%20positions.docx?web=1


DRAFT December 2, 2023 

 

Page 2 of 53 

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP STREETS AND MOBILITY ORDINANCE 

Contents 
 

ARTICLE 1 – TITLE, PURPOSE, AND SCOPE ............................................................................................. 5 

Section 1.01 Title. ............................................................................................................................... 5 

Section 1.02. Authority........................................................................................................................ 5 

Section 1.03. Purpose and Intent. ....................................................................................................... 5 

Section 1.04. Effective Date................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 1.05. Applicability. .................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 1.06. Relationship to Adopted Plans. ...................................................................................... 6 

Section 1.07. Relationship to Other Laws and Agreements................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 2 - DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................................ 8 

Section 2.01 Rules of Construction and Organization. ........................................................................ 8 

Section 2.02. Definitions. .................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 2.03. Measurements. ........................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 3 - GENERAL PROVISIONS....................................................................................................... 13 

Section 3.01. Applicability. ................................................................................................................ 13 

Section 3.02. Right-of-Way. ............................................................................................................... 13 

Section 3.03. Easements. .................................................................................................................. 13 

Section 3.04. Street Names. .............................................................................................................. 13 

Section 3.05. Street Addresses. ......................................................................................................... 14 

Section 3.06. Street Signs. ................................................................................................................. 14 

Section 3.07. Clear Vision Area. ........................................................................................................ 14 

Section 3.08. Regulating Plan. ........................................................................................................... 15 

Section 3.09. Traffic Impact Study. .................................................................................................... 16 

Section 3.10. Infrastructure and Service Needs. ............................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE 4 – COMPLETE STREETS .......................................................................................................... 20 

Section 4.01. Purpose and Intent. ..................................................................................................... 20 

Section 4.02. Applicability. ................................................................................................................ 20 

Section 4.03. Characteristics. ............................................................................................................ 21 

Section 4.04. Design Guidance. ......................................................................................................... 21 

Section 4.05. Elements in Regulating Plan. ....................................................................................... 21 

74



DRAFT December 2, 2023 

 

Page 3 of 53 

Section 4.06. Reserved. ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Section 4.07. Widening. .................................................................................................................... 22 

ARTICLE 5 – CONNECTIVITY .................................................................................................................. 23 

Section 5.01. Purpose and Intent. ..................................................................................................... 23 

Section 5.02. Applicability. ................................................................................................................ 23 

Section 5.03. Blocks. ......................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 5.04. Street Intersections. .................................................................................................... 24 

Section 5.05. Connections. ................................................................................................................ 24 

Section 5.06. Dead-End Streets. ........................................................................................................ 24 

ARTICLE 6 – ACCESS MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................... 26 

Section 6.01. Purpose and Intent. ..................................................................................................... 26 

Section 6.02. General. ....................................................................................................................... 26 

Section 6.03. Private Driveway. ......................................................................................................... 26 

Section 6.04. Shared Private Driveway. ............................................................................................. 27 

Section 6.06. Access Points. .............................................................................................................. 27 

Section 6.07. Spacing. ....................................................................................................................... 28 

Section 6.08. Emergency Access. ...................................................................................................... 29 

ARTICLE 7 – INTERNAL CIRCULATION ................................................................................................... 30 

Section 7.01. Purpose and Intent. ..................................................................................................... 30 

Section 7.02. Applicability. ................................................................................................................ 30 

Section 7.03. Circulation Study. ......................................................................................................... 30 

Section 7.04. Frontage Roads and Service Drives. ............................................................................. 31 

Section 7.05. Vehicular Circulation. ................................................................................................... 32 

Section 7.06. Pedestrian Circulation. ................................................................................................ 33 

Section 7.07. Transit Access and Amenities. ..................................................................................... 34 

Section 7.08. Bicycle Facilities. .......................................................................................................... 34 

ARTICLE 8 – STREET DESIGN ................................................................................................................. 36 

Section 8.01. Purpose and Intent. ..................................................................................................... 36 

Section 8.02. Context Zones. ............................................................................................................. 36 

Section 8.03 Types of Streets. ........................................................................................................... 37 

Section 8.04. Reserved. ..................................................................................................................... 37 

Section 8.05. Public Streets. .............................................................................................................. 37 

Section 8.06. Private Streets. ............................................................................................................ 39 

75



DRAFT December 2, 2023 

 

Page 4 of 53 

Section 8.07. Private Streets Standards............................................................................................. 40 

Section 8.08 Grading. ........................................................................................................................ 41 

Section 8.09. Green Infrastructure. ................................................................................................... 42 

Section 8.10. Sidewalks. .................................................................................................................... 44 

ARTICLE 9 – ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT FOR PRIVATE STREETS ...................................... 46 

Section 9.01. Administration and Interpretation. .............................................................................. 46 

Section 9.02. Fees. ............................................................................................................................ 46 

Section 9.03. Approval Process. ........................................................................................................ 46 

Section 9.04. Inspections. ................................................................................................................. 49 

Section 9.05. Maintenance. .............................................................................................................. 49 

Section 9.06. Deviations. ................................................................................................................... 50 

Section 9.07. Administrative Departures........................................................................................... 51 

Section 9.08. Nonconforming Situations. .......................................................................................... 52 

Section 9.09. Violation and penalties. ............................................................................................... 52 

 

 

  

76



DRAFT December 2, 2023 

 

Page 5 of 53 

ARTICLE 1 – TITLE, PURPOSE, AND SCOPE 

Section 1.01. Title. 

This Ordinance shall be known as the "Transportation Ordinance" of Oshtemo Charter Township, 
Michigan.  

Section 1.02. Authority. 

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted by the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 110 of 
the Public Acts of 2006, as amended.  

Section 1.03. Purpose and Intent. 

A. In addition to promoting the purposes provided in the Zoning Enabling Act, this Ordinance is 
necessary to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of Oshtemo Township as well as 
to implement the themes, policies and goals contained in officially adopted plans, including the 
Oshtemo Township Master Plan, Go! Green Oshtemo Plan, Access Management Plan, and Complete 
Streets Policy.  

B. Oshtemo Township will seek to enhance the safety, access, convenience, and comfort for all users of 
all ages and abilities through the planning, design, operation, enforcement, and maintenance of the 
transportation network. To that end, the Intent of this Ordinance is to: 

1. Expand an interconnected network of facilities accommodating each mode of travel consistent 
with the goals identified in the adopted Comprehensive Master Plan and other related planning 
documents.  

2. Eliminate traffic-related serious injuries and fatalities in keeping with Vision Zero for all people 
in our community to advance the public’s interest in its health, safety, and welfare. 

3. Provide transportation options that are available, affordable, and reliable for all people to 
meet their daily travel needs regardless of age, ability, race, ethnicity, or economic status.  

4. Recognize that all streets are not the same: streets vary by type and intensity of adjacent land 
uses (context), number of travel lanes, posted speed limits, traffic volumes, available right-of-
way, and other characteristics such as topography, soil types, and vegetation. 

5. Respect the fabric of the community by acknowledging and designing a transportation system 
best suited for urban and rural contexts, and the residential and commercial nature of uses , 
which co-exist with streets rights-of-way and street operations.  

6. Improve bicycle and pedestrian movement to reduce reliance on personal vehicle use, provide 
for improved circulation between and within development sites, create a transit-supportive 
environment, increase modal choice, and promote transportation options to reduce Vehicle 
Miles Traveled (VMT) and related vehicle emissions. 

7. Acknowledge the significant cost of “grey” infrastructure (streets and pipes) and the need to 
optimize the transportation system by avoiding the construction of unnecessarily over-sized 
streets and encouraging the use “green” infrastructure (trees and vegetation) as a method to 
manage stormwater, manage travel speed, and extend the life of street assets.   

8. Facilitate economic development for the purposes of sustaining and increasing tax revenue to 
support the maintenance and operations of public facilities and increasing property values. 

77



DRAFT November 30, 2023 

 

 
Page 6 of 53 

9. Improve public health outcomes and recreational opportunities by promoting and enabling 
walking, bicycling, and other forms of active transportation to contribute reductions in 
childhood and adult obesity.  

10. Practice responsible land development practices that will sustain Oshtemo Township’s high 
quality of life over time by anticipating growth, appropriately sizing infrastructure, and 
considering the needs of all people in our community, particularly those who are too old, too 
young, disabled, of limited financial means, ineligible to possess a driver’s license, or 
otherwise choose not to drive and/or own an automobile.   

11. Provide for partnerships that establish clear, fair, and efficient development methods for 
applicants, residents, and community partners. 

Section 1.04. Effective Date. 

This Chapter shall take effect and be in force on and after January X, 2024. 
 

Section 1.05. Applicability. 

A. This Ordinance will be used with all planning, design, funding, and approval involving any street 
construction, reconstruction, resurface, major repair or alteration, or right-of-way acquisition 
project.  

B. This Ordinance applies to all activities within public or private rights-of-way.  

C. This Ordinance is applicable to all land located within the Township. Mobility and the transportation 
system affects all properties, every building, structures, and uses.  

D. No street or road, or portion thereof, shall hereafter be designed, constructed, altered, maintained, 
or used except in conformity with this Ordinance unless otherwise preempted by a recognized Road 
Authority. 

Section 1.06. Relationship to Adopted Plans. 

The administration, enforcement and amendment of this Ordinance shall be consistent with the 
Township Comprehensive Master Plan, Go! Green Oshtemo Plan, Access Management Plan, Complete 
Streets Policy, and any adopted Area Specific Plans, and other plans that may be adopted by the 
Reviewing Body related to the future development of the Township. In the event this Ordinance 
becomes inconsistent with those plans, then this Ordinance shall be amended within a reasonable time 
to become or remain consistent. 

Section 1.07. Relationship to Other Laws and Agreements. 

A. Other Public Laws, Ordinances, Regulations or Permits. This Chapter is intended to complement 
other municipal, state, and federal regulations that affect streets, street operations, connectivity, 
asset management, and land use. Unless otherwise noted in this Ordinance, where conditions, 
standards or requirements imposed by any provision of this Ordinance are more restrictive than 
comparable provisions imposed by other regulations, the provisions of this Ordinance shall govern.  

B. Private Agreements. This Ordinance is not intended to revoke or repeal any easement, covenant or 
other private agreement; provided, however, that where this Ordinance imposes a greater 
restriction or requirement, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. Nothing in this Ordinance 
shall modify or repeal any private covenant or deed restriction, but any covenant or restriction shall 

78



DRAFT November 30, 2023 

 

 
Page 7 of 53 

not be used to justify a lack of compliance with this Ordinance. The Township shall not be obligated 
to enforce the provisions of any easements, covenants, or agreements between private parties. 

C. Township Authority. Oshtemo Charter Township is granted broad police power under Article 7, 
Section 29 of the 1963 Michigan Constitution. Oshtemo Township contributes to road funding, and 
while it does not have direct control over public road classification or maintenance, it retains its 
police authority over the road right-of-way, having adopted the Uniform Traffic Code. It is important 
for transportation to be planned in a manner that is complementary to, and within the context of, 
existing and planned land uses in the Township and in consideration of the Township’s Complete 
Streets philosophy. 

79



December 2, 2023 

8 
 

ARTICLE 2 - DEFINITIONS 

Section 2.01. Rules of Construction and Organization. 

A. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this Chapter, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. 

B. Rules of Construction: The following rules of construction apply to this Chapter:  

1. The language of this Chapter shall be read literally. Regulations are no more or less stringent 
than stated.  

2. The particular shall control the general. For terms used in this Chapter, the use of a general or 
similar term shall not be taken to be the same as the use of any other specific term.  

3. In case of any difference of meaning or implication between the text of this Chapter and any 
caption or illustration, the text shall control.  

4. Unless the context clearly indicates the contrary, where a regulation involves two (2) or more 
items, conditions, provisions or events connected by the conjunctions "and," "or" or "either . . . 
or," the conjunction shall be interpreted as follows:  

a. "And" indicates that the connected items, conditions, provisions or events apply.  

b. “Or" indicates that the connected items, conditions, provisions or events may apply 
singly or in any combination.  

c. "Either … or" indicates that the connected items, conditions, provisions or events apply 
singly but not in combination.  

5. Any reference to Chapter, Article or Section shall mean Chapter, Article or Section of Chapter XX 
of the Township Code, Streets Ordinance, unless otherwise specified.  

6. Terms not defined in this Chapter shall be given their ordinary and common meaning. Where not 
otherwise evident, terms shall have the meaning given in the latest edition of Merriam 
Webster's Collegiate Dictionary.  

 

Section 2.02. Definitions. 

ACCESS MANAGEMENT. A technique to minimize land access and/or traffic movement conflicts by 
reducing the number of access points, typically driveways, along major streets. Shared drives and the 
use of service roads or alleys, are characteristic access management methods.   

ALLEY. A dedicated public or private way affording a secondary means of access to abutting property, not 
intended for general traffic circulation. See Service Drive. 

BIKEWAY. "Bikeway" means a facility that explicitly provides for bicycle travel. A bikeway may vary 
from a completely separated facility to simple signed streets as follows: (a) "Shared-use path" (Class I 
Bikeway) is a facility for the exclusive use of bicycles, pedestrians and children's non-motorized 
vehicles separated from motor vehicle traffic except at bike crossings. (b) "Bike lane" (Class II Bikeway) 
is a marked lane contiguous to a travel lane within a roadway for the exclusive or semi-exclusive 
operation of bicycles in the same direction as the adjacent travel lane. The bike lane is physically 
separated from motor vehicle traffic by painted lines, pavement coloration, curbing, parked vehicles or 

80



December 2, 2023 

9 
 

other barriers. (c) "Bike route" (Class III Bikeway) utilizes existing streets and roads. No separation of 
motor vehicle and bicycle traffic is provided as only signs are present to indicate the course of the bike 
route. 

COMPLETE STREETS. Streets that meet the needs of all types of users – motorists, pedestrians (including 
those with disabilities), bicyclists, transit vehicles and users, freight haulers, emergency responders, and 
people of all ages and abilities. See the Township’s Complete Streets Policy. 

COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSION. The Drain Commission of Kalamazoo County, Michigan. 

COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION. The Road Commission of Kalamazoo County (RCKC), Michigan. 

CUL-DE-SAC STREET. A short minor street having one end permanently terminated by a vehicular 
turnaround. 

DEAD-END, PERMANENT. A permanent dead-end street is defined as one which is not reasonably 
anticipated to be extended. 

FRONTAGE ROAD. A public or private drive which generally parallels an arterial public street between 

the right-of-way and the front setback line, linking two or more properties. See also Service Drive and 

Private Street. 

LOT. A single unit or division of land contained in a platted subdivision, whether it be numbered, 
lettered, or otherwise designated, which has frontage on a public or private street or road. 

MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENT. A building containing five or more separate dwelling units. 

PATHWAY. An off-road shared use, non-motorized path, with paved surface, separate from the public 

road (though sometimes in the public right-of-way). 

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY STREET. Where two (2) or more streets are compared for relative rank or 
importance, the arterial is the street with the higher(est) vehicle traffic counts. 

PRIVATE DRIVEWAY. Any piece of privately owned and maintained property which is used for vehicular 
ingress and egress but is not open or normally used by the public. Intended to serve no more than one 
improved lot, parcel, or principal building of a residential or non-residential property.  

PRIVATE SHARED DRIVEWAY. A privately owned and maintained drive, or any improved or unimproved 

easement, serving four (4) or fewer dwelling units, places of business, lots, parcels, or principal 

buildings, and which is not normally used by the public.  

PRIVATE STREET. A privately owned and maintained drive, street, road, or any improved or unimproved 

easement, not dedicated to the county road commission as a public road, which provides access to five 

(5) or more dwelling units, places of business, lots, parcels, or principal buildings, and which is normally 

open to the public and upon which persons other than the owners located thereon may also travel. 

Private roads include roads within site condominium projects and those within office or industrial 

complexes. See also Frontage Road and Service Drive. 

81



December 2, 2023 

10 
 

ROAD AUTHORITY. Public entity having assigned jurisdiction over specified roads in Oshtemo 

Township, consisting of either the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), Road Commission 

of Kalamazoo County (RCKC), City of Kalamazoo, or other Act 51 agency. 

SERVICE DRIVE. A public or private drive which is located generally behind buildings which front along 

an arterial street linking two or more properties, including additional lots behind those fronting the 

arterial street. See also Frontage Road, Private Street, and Alley. 

SIDEWALK. A paved concrete surface, located in a road right-of-way or within a dedicated easement 

that is designed, constructed, and designated for pedestrian travel. 

STREET. An existing or planned public or private right-of-way that is designed, dedicated, or used 
principally for vehicular traffic and providing access to abutting properties. The term street includes 
avenue, boulevard, circle, court, cul-de-sac, drive, place, road, or any other similar term. 

STREETSCAPE. The various components that make up the street, both in the right-of-way and on private 
property including pavement, shoulders, gutters, sidewalks, permitted signs, parking spaces, landscaping 
and street trees, streetlights, etc. 

STREET FRONTAGE. The distance that a lot line adjoins a public or private street from one (1) lot line 
intersecting the street to the furthest lot line intersecting the same street.  

STREET FURNISHINGS. Elements within the Streetscape. Outdoor amenities, including but not limited to 
tables, chairs, umbrellas, landscape pots, wait stations, valet stations, bicycle racks, planters, benches, 
bus shelters, kiosks, waste receptacles and other similar items that help to define pedestrian use areas. 

STREET AREAS. Streets consist of three areas: the travel way area, the parking area, and the pedestrian 

area. 

1. TRAVEL WAY AREA. Accommodates vehicles and consists of vehicle travel lanes, bike lanes, 
turning lanes and medians (if provided). 

2. PARKING AREA. Consists of vehicle parking lanes, and potentially of public transit elements. 
Transit facilities would be accommodated by replacing some parking spaces with bus bulbouts. 

3. PEDESTRIAN AREA. The area between the curb and the edge of the right-of-way or road 
easement, although the pedestrian area may extend into an easement on private property 
depending on the width of the right-of-way and the existing conditions. The pedestrian area is 
separated into three subareas: 

a. The edge area is the space adjacent to and including the curb. The minimum width of 
the edge area should be two and one-half feet to allow for door swings and snow 
storage. Along Local roads and Collectors, it may be landscaped. 

b. The walkway/furnishings area accommodates streets trees, planters, street furniture, 
outdoor dining, and the clear and unobstructed pedestrian walkway.  

c. The frontage area is the portion of the walkway at the boundary between the right of 
way and private property. This is the area of the sidewalk that is closest to the building. 
The frontage area accommodates door openings, window shoppers, and display. 

82



December 2, 2023 

11 
 

STREET CLASSIFICATIONS. A hierarchy of street types that describes the Township’s transportation 
network, which consists of both existing, new, and planned streets, to provide the public with a 
connected and efficient circulation system. Functional classification defines the role that a particular 
roadway plays in serving the flow of vehicular traffic through the network. Roadways are assigned to 
one of several possible functional classifications within a hierarchy, according to the character of travel 
service each roadway provides. 

1. ARTERIALS. A major street of significant continuity, which is intended to serve higher volumes of 
traffic for both the Township and the region, and which forms the basis around which the 
circulation system is designed. Typical traffic volumes are more than 10,000 vehicles per day. 
Arterials in Oshtemo Township include West Main, Stadium Drive, KL Avenue, South Ninth 
Street, Parkview, and Drake Road (north of Parkview). 

2. COLLECTORS. A street that provides shorter distance movements within the Township, collects 
traffic from Local Streets and connects them with Arterials. Major collectors distribute and 
channel trips between locals and arterials usually more than ¾ mile in distance, have fewer 
access points, and may have more travel lanes and higher speed limits such as North 9th and 10th 
Streets (M-43 to H Avenue), South 6th Street (South of Stadium Drive), and West Michigan Drive 
(Venture Dr to Drake Road). Minor collectors typically have greater access and lower speeds 
such as North 2nd Street, North 6th Street, and Kalamazoo Avenue (8th to 4th Street). 

3. LOCAL STREETS. Streets that provide direct access to homes, businesses, parking, and other land 
uses abutting the street right-of-way and serve short travel distances. Most subdivision streets 
fall in the Local Street classification. 

STREET CONTEXT. The general land use characteristics, development patterns, access points and 
connectivity which infer usage of the street by certain transportation modes and users, thereby 
influencing street facility design. Urban and rural areas have fundamentally different characteristics. The 
use of context to determine street design criteria is consistent with national best practices and direction, 
including the 2018 American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 
Greenbook and the National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 855: An Expanded 
Functional Classification System for Highways and Streets. 

1. URBAN. A street surrounded by heavy residential, mixed-use, and/or commercial development 
that serves a wide spectrum of modes and users - oftentimes highly pedestrianized and 
transit-supportive while also experiencing high vehicular demands. These areas generally 
include curb and sidewalk sections, often with building fronts adjacent to or near the back of 
sidewalk. Frequent intersections, crosswalks, street trees, and on-street parking are usually 
present and operations more closely resemble that of Local Streets. 

2. RURAL. Small concentrations of developed areas are immediately surrounded by agricultural 
lands, woodland, wetlands, and other natural areas with infrequent curb cuts. There tends to be 
moderate to high posted speeds on streets as a result and few traffic signals. Due to lacking 
density, travel is more auto oriented.  

3. RESIDENTIAL. A street that serves residences and provides an important link for pedestrians 
and bicyclists in neighborhoods. Truck and other heavy vehicle traffic may be restricted. 

83



December 2, 2023 

12 
 

4. COMMERCIAL. A street that serves mostly non-residential uses including retail, office, and 
industrial businesses as well as institutional uses such as hospitals or churches. In an urban 
setting, mixed-use buildings with residential above retail or offices may be present. 

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW). An area owned or maintained by Oshtemo Charter Township, Kalamazoo 
County, State of Michigan, federal government, public utility, railroad, or private concern for the 
placement on, below, or above of utilities or facilities for the passage of vehicles or pedestrians, 
including roads, streets, pedestrian walkways, utilities, or railroads. 

USERS. Legal users of the roadways and public right-of-way, including pedestrians, bicyclists, motor 
vehicle drivers, public transportation riders and drivers, and people of all ages and abilities including 
children, youth, families, older adults, and individuals with disabilities. 

Section 2.03. Measurements. 

A. All measures are taken along the street centerline. 

B. Driveway spacing is measured from centerline to centerline. 

C. Driveway width measurements shall be made at the right-of-way line. 

D. A cul-de-sac will be measured from the nearest point to the property line. 

E. The distance of a block face shall be the length of the street creating the side of the block between 
two adjacent intersections.  

 

  

84



December 2, 2023 

13 
 

ARTICLE 3 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 3.01. Applicability. 

All Streets. Standards and requirements for Complete Streets, connectivity, access management, internal 
circulation,  and other street design standards in this Chapter shall apply to all public and private streets 
within Oshtemo Township unless indicated otherwise. Such provisions are considered necessary to 
construct and improve transportation facilities that address safety for all modes, advance self-enforcing 
design to prioritize vulnerable road users and the general health and well-being of the public, facilitate 
an efficient road network that balances accessibility and mobility needs, minimize environmental 
impacts, reduces our carbon footprint, and respects the existing built environment while anticipating 
future settlement patterns necessary to accommodate Oshtemo Township’s growth.  

Section 3.02. Right-of-Way. 

A. Road right-of-way shall provide for ingress, egress, drainage, and installation and maintenance of 
public and private utilities. 

B. Easements shall be provided for the entire width and length for all utilities and services as may be 
necessary to provide all public services to the lots which benefit from the public or private road. 

C. Road right-of-way to be publicly dedicated for public streets will meet the requirements of the Road 
Commission of Kalamazoo County. Private street right-of-way requirements are found in Article 6, 
Section 6.06 of this Ordinance. 

D. All Arterial right-of-way within or abutting plats hereafter recorded, shall provide a 50-foot half-
width. The other half of the Arterial Street shall be platted with a private easement within such 
property or tract, or as identified in the Regulating Plan, per Section 3.08.  

Section 3.03. Easements. 

A. A private Collector Street shall have a recorded easement permitting passage by the public within 
the right-of-way, in accordance with the intended function of the street type. 

B. All private streets shall have a recorded permanent easement for the entire length and width of the 
street, including the frontage on a public road. The easement shall expressly permit public and 
private utilities and services as necessary to provide all public services to the lots that benefit from 
the private road. 

C. The minimum easement radius for a turn-around shall be of such size that is able to encompass 
emergency vehicle turn-around. 

Section 3.04. Street Names. 

A. The Township has the authority to assign street names. Except in Part B of this Section, Township 

staff will refer to the ‘Kalamazoo County Street Naming and Addressing Policy, Procedures and 
Guidelines’ and appropriate review procedures and workflow to name streets.  

B. A developer/applicant may propose street names for any proposed streets within a new 
development as part of the initial application process to establish a subdivision or site condominium.   

85

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=907


December 2, 2023 

14 
 

C. A letter of approval for street names shall be obtained from the Kalamazoo County Department of 
Planning and Community Development or appropriate agency, whether proposed by Township staff 
or a developer/applicant. 

D. Street names shall be finalized prior to final approval of a proposed subdivision or site 
condominium.  

E. Street names shall be sufficiently different in sound and spelling from other road names in the 
Township so as not to cause confusion. A street or road name duplicating one already used in 
Kalamazoo County is prohibited. 

F. Any extension of a street, or planned extension, shall retain the name of the existing street.  

G. All new streets shall be named as follows: Streets with predominant north-south directions shall be 
named, "Street;" streets with predominant east-west directions shall be named, "Avenue;" 
meandering streets shall be named, "Drive," "Lane," "Path," "Road" or "Trail," etc., and cul-de-sacs 
shall be named, "Circle," "Court," "Way" or "Place," etc. 

Section 3.05. Street Addresses. 

A. The Oshtemo Township Planning Department will assign all street addresses. 

B. Township staff will refer to the ‘Kalamazoo County Street Naming and Addressing Policy, Procedures 
and Guidelines’ and appropriate review procedures and workflow to addressing streets.  

C. A letter of approval for street names shall be obtained from the Kalamazoo County Department of 
Planning & Community Development 

D. Corner lots will be assigned two addresses, one for each street, the final address for the corner lot 
will be the direction that the front of the house faces. 

Section 3.06. Street Signs. 

Signs identifying the intersection of a public and private street shall be paid for, posted, and thereafter 

maintained by the homeowner’s association, condominium association, or other assigned party 

responsible for maintaining the private street. Intersection signs shall include stop signs on private 

streets and identifiable street name signs. 

Section 3.07. Clear Vision Area. 

A. Requirement. Clear vision areas are required in locations where 

an unobstructed view of approaching traffic is necessary for the 

safety of pedestrians, bicyclists and drivers. A clear vision area is 

typically, but not exclusively, a triangular area at the 
intersection of two (2) streets, or a street and a driveway; 

however, clear vision areas may be required at other locations. 

B. Public streets. A clear vision area shall be maintained at all 

intersections. Nothing shall be located to cause a hazard to 
vehicular or pedestrian traffic by depriving the pedestrian or 

driver of a clear and unobstructed view of approaching, 

intersecting, or merging traffic. The clear vision standards of the 

Road Authority shall be satisfied where streets or drives intersect with public streets. 

86



December 2, 2023 

15 
 

C. Private streets. At the intersection of two (2) streets or the intersection of a private street and a 

driveway, the required clear vision area shall be established as follows: 

1. Street corners. For streets, twenty (20) feet along each lot line starting at the intersection of the 

lot lines, and connected by a straight line to form a triangular area. In the case of a rounded 

corner, the measurement shall be taken from the intersection of the front lot lines extended. 

2. Driveways. For driveways, ten (10) feet along the lot line and the driveway starting at the 
intersection of the lot line and the closest edge of the driveway and connected by a straight line 

to form a triangular area. 

3. Landscaping. No plantings, signs, fences, walls, or other structures exceeding thirty (30) inches 

in height shall be established or maintained in clear vision areas. 

4. New buildings or structures. The Public Works Director may require a reduction in the height or 

location of a new building or structure to ensure an adequate clear vision area for driveways and 

streets. The limitation shall only be required for that portion of the building or structure 

necessary to provide an adequate clear vision area.  

5. Administrative departure. A new building or structure may be located within a clear vision area 

on a private street, provided the Public Works Director concurs with the findings of an 

independent engineering study provided by the applicant that demonstrates that siting of the 

new building or structure allows proper stopping sight distance as defined in A Policy on 
Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, as amended, by the American Association of State 

Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 

D. Responsibility. Where any street intersection will involve earth banks or existing vegetation inside 

any lot or building site corner that would create a traffic hazard by limiting visibility, the property 
owner shall clear such ground and/or vegetation (including trees) in connection with the grading of 

the public or private right-of-way to the extent deemed necessary by the appropriate Road 

Authority. 

Section 3.08. Regulating Plan.  

A. Purpose and Intent. Oshtemo Township has an adopted Master Plan, comprised of multiple sub-area 
plans and documents which serve as its Regulating Plan. The Regulating Plan defines the location of 

planned future streets to ensure that the existing street network does not become overwhelmed 

from additional development that would cause excessive street widening, congestion, delay, and be 

counterproductive to creating a walkable community that is safe for vulnerable road users. The 
identification of future streets will ensure improved traffic flow, an enhanced street network, 

alternative traffic routing, access for emergency services, and comprehensive access 

management. 

1. Streets should be developed consistent with the locations shown on the Regulating Plan. The 
exact location of streets on a particular site may be varied from those shown on the Regulating 

Plan to account for site-specific factors such as natural or man-made features provided that the 

general layout and number of streets and connection points for the continuation of streets on 

adjacent parcels are consistent with the Regulating Plan.  

2. Additional streets that are not shown on the Regulating Plan may be developed as necessary to 

create the required block system, and to distribute vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  

87

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2079
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1913
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2042


December 2, 2023 

16 
 

3. To provide access to properties in conjunction with higher density development, a secondary 

street network may be developed to distribute traffic. The Regulating Plan will illustrate the 

street hierarchy and road purposes. 

4. Local streets may be removed with the approval of the Reviewing Body provided the proposed 

development plan continues to maintain the required block system and meets other required 

standards. Any variations to the location or layout of streets as shown on the Regulating Plan 

shall require the approval of the Reviewing Body. 

5. No land split or permit will be issued for, and no building or structure, or part thereof, shall be 
erected on any land located within proposed future street right-of-way. The Planning 
Commission may authorize the granting of a permit for the erection of a building or structure, 
or part thereof, within the defined area of the proposed public way, upon appeal by the 
owner of any affected land. Such appeal may be granted, based upon the following findings:  

a. The entire property of the appellant, located in whole or in part within the lines of such 
street or public way, cannot yield a reasonable return to the owner unless the permit is 
granted; and, 

b. Balancing the interest of the township in preserving the integrity of the Regulating Plan, and 
the interest of the owner of the property in the use and benefits of his property, the 
granting of the permit is required by considerations of justice and equity. 

c. An alternative plan has been provided, that is demonstrably feasible and identifies any 
potential benefits and challenges associated with the different approach. The alternative 
will solve for the reasons that necessitated the deviation from the Regulating Plan and 
describe why the new route is either equal or superior to the originally planned street. 

6. Before taking any such action, the Reviewing Body shall hold a public hearing, following not 
less than ten days' prior notice to the appellant by mail at the address specified by the 
appellant in his petition. The Reviewing Body shall have the power to specify the exact 
location, alignment, land area, and other details and conditions to be altered or permitted.  

Section 3.09. Traffic Impact Study. 

A. Intent. The intent of conducting a traffic impact study is to understand the potential impact of a 
proposed development project on the surrounding transportation network, which may include but 
is not limited to truck routes, emergency routes, State and County roads, non-motorized network(s), 
and public transit. Information gleaned from the impact study is to assist in determining what, if 
any, mitigation measures may be necessary to support mobility within the township and to better 
understand the choices the Planning Commission, Township staff, and Township Board may need to 
make as the community continues to develop and grow. 

B. Applicability. A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) will be required under one of the following circumstances: 

1. A development project is 20-acres or greater in size; 

2. More than 100 housing units are proposed; 

3. More than 100 peak hour trips will be generated;  

4. A drive-through use will generate more than 20 cars per hour;  

88



December 2, 2023 

17 
 

5. An assembly use will host 150 people or more for an event; 

6. A secondary access point is requested; or 

7. At the discretion of the Public Works Director for circumstances that resemble similar 
situations to the above given the characteristics of the proposed use, surrounding context, 
and/or anticipated types of traffic. 

C. Review. The TIS shall meet the requirements of the Road Authority’s guidelines for Traffic Impact 
Studies and Assessments Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies and be conducted by a licensed 
professional traffic operations engineer. 

D. Scope. Prior to commencing a TIS, the Public Works Director or Township-designated Traffic 
Engineer, in consultation with the Michigan Department of Transportation and Road Commission of 
Kalamazoo County, will coordinate with the applicant/developer to develop an understanding of the 
scope of work. Contents may include, but not be limited to, study area limits, existing and proposed 
traffic volumes, and crash data. Expectations for inputs of forecasted trips and volumes, which may 
include other approved and pending developments, will be defined.  The TIS shall consider the 
highest proposed use for each designated area within the development site plan. Development that 
is proximate to a major intersection or interchange shall also include movements into and/or 
through the intersection or interchange. 

E. Planning Commission. Formal review and approval from the Road Authority shall be provided to the 
Township prior to the formal Planning Commission review of a project request.  

F. Level of Service. Declines in the Level of Service (LOS) within the right-of-way shall be reasonably 
mitigated by proposed solutions during site design phase. LOS is typically defined as a qualitative 
measure describing operational conditions for vehicular traffic; described in terms of such factors as 
speed and travel time, traffic interruptions, convenience, and safety. The Township’s Complete 
Streets approach expands LOS to include “Quality” of service to include the LOS experienced by all 
users and all modes, not only that of motor vehicles. Slow traffic speeds, for example, may equate to 
a high-quality environment for pedestrians but may cause delays for cars – presenting as two 
different LOS scores. Service levels are given letter designations, from A to F, with LOS A 
representing the best operating conditions and LOS F the worst.   

1. A decline in vehicular LOS may be acceptable if improvement(s) to the non-motorized network 
is the direct cause and improved pedestrian LOS can be shown.  

2. Required operational changes and/or other mitigation measures shall be part of the MDOT and 
RCKC permit approval process. 

3. Mitigation efforts may be broken into phases tied directly to the corresponding phases of the 
comprehensive development plan. Phases must be clearly outlined within the phasing plan; 
item 10 within this Section. Preliminary designs shall be required. 

4. If the required traffic improvements identified within the TIS are already planned as part of an 
adopted comprehensive plan to be implemented by MDOT, the Kalamazoo County Road 
Commission, the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) or the Township, some or all of 
the mitigation requirements may be deferred or coordinated within a reasonable timeline. Any 
deferments or coordination shall require the support of the Public Works Director or 
representative. Short term or temporary efforts may be required to ensure the safety of the 
public during the deferment period. If the required mitigation efforts increase the scope of the 
already planned improvements by the local agency, the increase in cost to modify the plans 

89



December 2, 2023 

18 
 

and construct the improvements shall be collected from the applicant. A memorandum of 
understanding shall be executed and recorded. 

5. The Township will work with the developer/applicant in good faith effort to seek solutions and 
approvals necessary. This does not imply any financial commitment on the Township’s part. 

Section 3.10. Infrastructure and Service Needs. 

A. Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this Section is to permit development projects the ability to 
proceed at a faster pace than current Township resources are capable of constructing, installing, 
modifying, or improving existing infrastructure and/or service capacities to accommodate the 
development project. The project may itself be the sole reason for the infrastructure and service 
needs, or it may contribute to a heightened demand for infrastructure and services which are 
nearing or already at capacity. Inadequately sized infrastructure or insufficient service to the 
development project would result in one (1) or more declining levels of traffic safety, roadway 
capacity, reduced Level of Service (LOS) or water, sewer, energy, communications or other utility 
service reductions in the system. It is the intent of this Section to allow for development while 
ensuring that the project site and all customers that use and rely upon sufficient infrastructure and 
services within the community are properly accommodated.  

B. Basis for Project Denial. The inability of the Township to provide or enhance the available level of 
infrastructure or services to accommodate the development project may serve as the basis to deny 
a project request due to insufficient or increasingly insufficient infrastructure capacity if the project 
were to be constructed. Project denial due to insufficient infrastructure or services is not a desired 
outcome as development and redevelopment projects often improve the economic capacity of the 
community by increasing tax revenue, raising property values, and providing employment 
opportunities. Alternatives to improve infrastructure and/or service insufficiency are preferable to 
project denial. In these cases, the Township may offer an alternative to project denial by accepting 
the offer of voluntary support by the project's owners to undertake or contribute towards the cost 
of providing the needed infrastructure or service changes for future conditions created or 
contributed to as a result of the development project.  

C. Alternatives to Advance. In general, infrastructure or service changes are quantifiable in terms of 
capacity and cost. Needed changes may require study, planning, design, phasing or other efforts 
before being undertaken. In these situations, the Reviewing Body could, by contract with the 
project's owners, accept contributions to fund the work. The Reviewing Body would set aside the 
funds for use only to address the particular infrastructure and/or service changes associated with 
the development project. For example, when area streets and intersections are or will be 
functioning at low levels, undertaking or funding street and intersection improvements may be 
appropriate. Sometimes, however, street and intersection improvements may not be practical or 
may be insufficient to address the concerns. Due to topography, the impracticality of acquiring 
needed additional right-of-way, area-wide traffic patterns, jurisdictional issues or other limitations, 
different approaches such as non-motorized improvements, transit service extensions, remote 
parking, or other approaches may be the only feasible and reasonable alternatives to ameliorate 
anticipated infrastructure and service burdens imposed by the development upon the public. A 
particular project may provide the necessary impetus for these alternative approaches, particularly 
in relation to public health and safety, while itself providing insufficient support or justification. 
However, together with reasonably foreseeable additional projects, it may form the basis for 
addressing the need by these approaches.  

90



December 2, 2023 

19 
 

D. Existing and Future Conditions Evaluation. The applicant or property owner shall be informed of any 
inadequately sized infrastructure or insufficient services within the proposed project area that 
currently exists or that will be created or contributed to by the proposed development project. The 
Township will provide a basis for the determination that a development project, either by itself or in 
conjunction with other reasonably foreseeable projects, will:  

1. Overload infrastructure or municipal services;  

2. Measurably degrade the level of infrastructure or public services to levels that adversely affect 
public health, safety or quality of life; or  

3. Place additional strains on infrastructure or public services that already are at levels that 
adversely affect public health, safety or quality of life.  

E. Alternatives Evaluation. The applicant may be encouraged to propose particular designs or 
improvements, cost estimates and other related information to recommend or identify changes on 
the project site, in the immediate project area or in locations which would assist in supporting the 
necessary infrastructure or services to sustain the development.  

F. Determination. Upon review of the alternatives to support the needed infrastructure and/or 
services to support the development project, the applicant may:  

1. Appeal a determination made by Township staff to the Reviewing Body.  

2. Discontinue the project.  

3. Redesign the project to address the concerns. 

4. If it is acceptable to all Township and other governmental officials of competent jurisdiction, 
agree to:  

a. Undertake and construct the needed infrastructure improvements according to plans and 
specifications approved and overseen by the Township or applicable jurisdiction;  

b. Fund the needed infrastructure or service improvements pursuant to a written agreement 
approved by the Reviewing Body with the amount of the payment determined based on the 
actual costs of the improvements;  

c. Contribute to a fund to be used by the Township to address the infrastructure or service 
concerns pursuant to a written agreement approved by the Reviewing Body with the 
amount of that contribution determined based on what the Reviewing Body reasonably 
determines to be the applicant's proportionate share of the reasonably anticipated costs of 
the improvements.  

  

91



December 2, 2023 

20 
 

ARTICLE 4 – COMPLETE STREETS 

Section 4.01. Purpose and Intent. 

The purpose of this Article is to establish mobility and circulation standards that give equal treatment to 
all modes of travel. Improving connectivity between the current and future network of sidewalks, bike 
lanes, shared use paths, public transit routes, and roadways is important to ensure that Oshtemo 
Township serves all residents, regardless of age, ability, or income. A well-connected and well-designed 
network will provide safe access for all users, allow reasonable access to properties, promote healthy 
living, maintain and/or increase the capacity and efficiency of the roadway network, ensure safe access 
for emergency vehicles, and reduce negative environmental impacts. It is important that a well-
connected network include safe and convenient transitions from one mode of transportation to another 
and from one jurisdiction to another.  

Section 4.02. Applicability.  

A. Implementation. The Township shall endeavor to make complete streets practices a routine part of 
design, strive to make every street project accessible for all users, and coordinate efforts with other 
agencies and jurisdictions to achieve complete streets. The Township shall work in partnership with 
the Kalamazoo County Road Commission and Michigan Department of Transportation to facilitate 
implementation of Complete Streets to the extent feasible, pursuant to this Ordinance. 

B. Applicability. Any project involving the construction, reconstruction, capacity enhancement, or 
preservation of a roadway, bridge, public parking facility, or other transportation right-of-way within 
the Township, are subject to these provisions, except as provided in Part D of this section. All street 
projects requiring funding and/or approval by the Township Board shall:  

1. Evaluate the effect of the proposed project on safe travel by all users.  

2. Identify measures to mitigate potential adverse impacts on travel. Vehicular level of service is 
not considered to be the only measure for which mitigation would be required, quality of service 
for pedestrians and other non-motorized users is also important. 

3. Achieve implementation of Complete Street infrastructure to the extent feasible. 

C. Exclusions. Infrastructure that supports a Complete Streets approach may be excluded upon 
agreement of the Township Board and the applicable Road Authority, subject to each agency’s 
powers and duties, where documentation and data indicate that:  

1. An affected roadway prohibits a specified user by law, in which case a greater effort shall be 
made to accommodate those specified users elsewhere.  

2. An alternative route, such as a multi-use trail in the immediate vicinity provides an option for 
non-motorized transportation.  

3. A wide shared-shoulder designed to accommodate both bicycle and pedestrian use is available 
in the street right-of-way.  

4. There is insufficient right-of-way to accommodate an improvement at the time. The Township 
should attempt to acquire the right-of-way to accommodate the Complete Street element.  

5. The activities, such as spot repair or crack seal, are ordinary maintenance activities designed to 
keep assets in serviceable condition, which meet MDOT’s ADA upgrade exceptions.  

92



December 2, 2023 

21 
 

6. Inclusion of new facilities would be inappropriate when associated with capital preventive 
maintenance projects such as thin overlays (less than 1.5- inch), micro-seals, and chip seals.  

7. Safety projects which are funded only for specific safety features identified by crash patterns, 
due to the funding parameters of the program.  

8. The cost would be excessively disproportionate to the need or probable future use over the long 
term as documented in the adopted Future Use Plan, or other present and/or anticipated 
market conditions, indicating an absence of existing or future need (e.g. sparse population).  

9. Implementation of Complete Streets infrastructure is not possible due to physical contraints 
imposed by the project area, such as topography, historic building placement, etc. 

10. There will be an adverse impact on existing environmental resources such as wetlands, 
floodplains, creeks, or historic structures, or the presence of an environmental resource will add 
significant cost of a project.  

 

Section 4.03. Characteristics.  

Streets will be capable of accommodating multiple modes of transportation and will facilitate the 

creation of a public realm designed primarily for people, characterized by: 

A. Pedestrian-friendly design that places a high priority on walking, bicycling, and use of public transit; 

B. Streets and blocks arranged to allow for comfortable walking distances, to disperse traffic and to 
reduce the length of vehicle trips; 

C. A connection to, and enhancement of, the existing street network; 

D. A recognition of the role of buildings and landscaping that contributes to the physical definition of 
streets as civic places, and  

E. Residential and business uses that have convenient access to existing and future shared use paths 
and transit stops, where applicable. 

Section 4.04. Design Guidance.  

The design guidelines promulgated in State standards and guidelines, or as may be required by the 

funding source, shall be referred to and considered in the construction, rehabilitation, and maintenance 

of non-motorized transportation facilities and private streets in the township. Such sources include, but 

are not limited to, the Michigan Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD), MDOT Best 

Design Practices for Walking and Bicycling in Michigan, MDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Resources for 

Transportation Professionals (2016), NACTO Urban Bikeway Design Guide (2014), AASHTO Guide for the 

Development of Bicycle Facilities (2012), NACTO Urban Street Design Guide (2013), NACTO Transit Street 

Design Guide (2014), FHWA Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide (2015), FHWA Small Town 

and Rural Multimodal Networks (2016), NACTO Designing for All Ages and Abilities (2017), and FHWA 

Bikeway Selection Guide (2019). 

Section 4.05. Elements in Regulating Plan.  

The Regulating Plan of the Township’s Comprehensive Master Plan and the Non-Motorized Facilities Plan 
will include recognized and appropriate Complete Streets elements for implementation into the 
Township’s street and non-motorized trail network. Transportation improvements will include facilities 

93



December 2, 2023 

22 
 

and other amenities that are recognized as contributing to Complete Streets, which may include, but not 
necessarily limited to, one or more of the following:  

A. Sidewalks (new construction, gap construction, repair or replacement, and Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements).  

B. Pedestrian refuge islands or crosswalk improvements.  

C. Traffic calming measures, where appropriate.  

D. Street and/or sidewalk lighting.  

E. Multi-use trails.  

F. Accessibility improvements consistent with the ADA, particularly around transit.  

G. Metro Transit stop improvements. 

H. Bicycle facilities, including designated bike lanes, separated facilities, and widened travel lanes.  

Section 4.06. Reserved. 
 

Section 4.07. Widening. 

Any project that would widen an existing street or intersection shall be submitted to the Planning 
Commission for review and comment. The Planning Commission will review the proposed plans for 
compliance with this Ordinance and if any adverse impacts may be anticipated that would affect other 
legal road users such as pedestrians and bicyclists. If there will be negative effects arising from the 
widening, mitigation measures will be reviewed and discussed. The Planning Commission will then 
transmit a report to the Township Board. 

 

 

  

94



December 2, 2023 

23 
 

ARTICLE 5 – CONNECTIVITY 

Section 5.01. Purpose and Intent. 

The arrangement of streets shall be interconnected with each other and with streets on abutting 

properties in a systematic grid pattern. Street connectivity and continuity is necessary to circulate 

traffic, provide emergency service access, ensure network reliability and redundancy, develop a logical 

system to facilitate the movement of all transportation system modes and users, and sustainably and 

efficiently manage uses of land and the provision of utilities and public services. Connectivity, for the 

purposes of this Ordinance, refers to structure of the transportation network of Oshtemo Township 

consisting of blocks, intersections, and connecting points.  

Section 5.02. Applicability. 

Development shall occur using a combination of both the existing street network and new streets added 

to establish an improved circulation system. Streets may be public or private and be established in a 

manner consistent with the Township’s Master Plan and Regulating Plan. Where existing streets are 

being improved, these standards along with the other standards overseeing such road development shall 

guide the design of the improvements. 

Section 5.03. Blocks. 

Requirements. The following requirements shall apply to ensure that Oshtemo Township’s street network 

develops as an interconnected network of streets. 

A. The street network shall be laid out in defined blocks in an orthogonal manor to intersect as nearly 

as possible to 90 degrees.  

B. Where adjoining areas are not 

subdivided, the arrangement of streets 

shall be required to be extended to the 

boundary line of the project to make 
provision for the future projection of 

streets into adjoining areas.  

C. A minimum of one stub street shall be 

provided for each 660 feet or fraction 

thereof along such property lines. 

D. No block perimeter, measured along 

the block face at the public right-of-way 

or private road easement, shall exceed 

2,400 feet. 

E. Blocks should be designed so that at the terminus of street intersections, street alignment, or the 

curvature of a street produces "terminal vistas" of civic buildings, public art, play fields, meadows, 

wetlands, or other notable structures or natural features. 

F. Privately-held reserve strips controlling access to streets shall be prohibited. 

95

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=828
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=2089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1754


December 2, 2023 

24 
 

Section 5.04. Street Intersections. 

A. Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible to 90 degrees and in no case less than 80 degrees. 

Curved streets, intersecting with primary roads, will have a tangent section of centerline 50 feet in 
length, measured from the right-of-way line of the primary road.  

B. Not more than two streets can intersect at any one point unless specifically approved by the 

Township in cases of a traffic circle or roundabout. 

C. Where the proposed continuation of a street at an intersection is not in alignment with the existing 
street, it must not intersect such cross street closer than 200 feet from such opposite existing street, 

as measured from the centerline of said streets. 

D. Concrete curbing will be installed throughout the entirety of an intersection within the public right-

of-way or private street easement. Curb cuts and sidewalk ramps shall be integral to the 

construction of the concrete curb. 

Section 5.05. Connections. 

A. When a Collector or Local street will link different land ownerships or different public streets, either 

currently or in the future, it shall, regardless of whether it is public or private, be constructed and 

dedicated as a public street or, if approved by the Township, it may be a private street located upon 

a right-of-way or easement granted to the Township for public ingress and egress. 

B. Private roads shall not interconnect with the public street network in a manner that will preclude 

the logical, orderly, and efficient development of the overall public street network. In making such 

a determination, consideration shall be given to the circulation pattern and traffic volumes on 
nearby public streets, existing and proposed land uses in the general area, trend of development, 

and the recommendations contained within the Oshtemo Charter Township Comprehensive 

Master Plan, Regulating Plan, and other plans by Road Authorities, as applicable. 

C. Frontage streets, service drives, private shared driveways, and public or private streets shall 
connect to existing outlots in adjacent developments and shall provide outlots or other provisions 

for future connections to adjacent land that is presently undeveloped. This may necessitate the 

upgrading of a private shared driveway to a private street, per the process described in Article 9 of 

this Ordinance. 

D. Where adjoining areas are undeveloped and the street must temporarily dead-end, the right-of-way 

shall be extended to the property line to make provision for the future projection of street.  

Section 5.06. Dead-End Streets. 

A. A permanent dead-end street shall only be permitted where the topography of the area, lakes, 

streams, other natural features or existing adjacent development of the area causes practical 
difficulties or extreme hardship in connection and can be granted without creating any safety 

concerns. A supportive recommendation from the Public Works Department shall be required in 

order to be considered by the Reviewing Body. The applicant shall clearly provide evidence of 

hardship to be considered.  

B. A dead-end public right-of-way or private street easement (whether temporary or permanent) in 

excess of 660 feet in length, as measured from the nearest public right-of-way or private street 

easement to the dead-end street, shall be prohibited except upon recommendation from the Public 

96

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1042


December 2, 2023 

25 
 

Works Department and approval from the Reviewing Body for the reasons cited in 5.05.A., and an 

extension can be granted without creating a safety hazard. 

C. A cul-de-sac turnaround will be provided at the end of a permanent dead-end street or a temporary 

dead-end street (and associated temporary right-of-way). The Township may require an easement 

or a reservation of easement to accommodate drainage facilities, pedestrian access, or utilities. 

D. Where a public right-of-way or private street easement is not intended to extend beyond the 
boundaries of the subdivision/site condominium and its continuation is not required by the 

Township for access to adjoining properties, its terminus shall be at least 50 feet from such 

boundary.  

E. Administrative Departure. The Public Works Director may find a hammerhead “T” or a continuous 
loop layout acceptable to terminate a private dead-end street where public or private utilities are 

unaffected and sufficient space is provided for vehicle maneuvering. 

 

  

97

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=179
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1746


December 2, 2023 

26 
 

ARTICLE 6 – ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

Section 6.01. Purpose and Intent.  

Access management techniques increase traffic safety by directing traffic to appropriate turning 
locations, reduce accident frequency and/or severity, provide reasonable access, help maximize road 
capacity, lessen congestion, encourage orderly development, and protect non-motorized users by 
limiting driveway crossings. These regulations are based on considerable research in Michigan and 
nationally and were prepared concurrent with guidelines promoted by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT). The major elements of access management are driveway design (geometrics), 
limited number of driveways, driveway spacing, shared access, and side street access. This Article 
addresses the point where private property accesses a public or private road. 

Section 6.02. General. 

A. Access Management Plan. The Osthemo Charter Township Access Management Plan, as amended, 
should be referenced in conjunction with the provisions of this Ordinance. Where there is a conflict 
between the two, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply. 

B. Nonconforming driveways. In the case of expansion, alteration or redesign of an existing 
development where existing driveways do not comply with the requirements of this Ordinance, the 
closing, relocation, or redesign of the driveway may be required. 

C. Access agreement. A copy of a written and recorded agreement for shared access between two or 
more property owners shall be provided to the Township. 

D. Drainage. Driveways shall be constructed such that drainage is channeled away from the street 
right-of-way. 

E. Driveway approvals. A Driveway Permit shall be obtained prior to connecting a driveway to any 
public or private street. Driveways associated with site plan reviews per Article 64 of the Zoning 
Ordinance shall follow the Township’s site plan review process. An access determination letter from 
the corresponding road agency shall be provided to the Township prior to the formal consideration of 
the project by the Reviewing Body. 

F. Condo projects. Condominium developments and all associated units shall be serviced by an interior 
transportation network. Individual units shall not have direct access to an arterial or collector street, 
and must be served by a public or private local street, service drive, frontage road, or private shared 
driveway. 

G. Greater authority. The appropriate Road Authority may require a more restrictive standard than 
contained herein.  

Section 6.03. Private Driveway. 

A. One premises. A private driveway may serve only one premises, parcel, unit, or lot.  

B. Minimum width. The improved surface of the driveway shall have a total minimum width of ten 
feet. 

C. Approach. Driveway approaches shall only be installed in conjunction with approved curb cuts and 
access management spacing requirements. 

D. Administrative departures. A second driveway may be permitted under the following circumstances. 

98



December 2, 2023 

27 
 

1. Where a development has access to a signalized location, the approach volume of the driveway 

traffic should be double that shown for unsignalized locations to warrant consideration of a 

second access location. Warrants shall be based on trip generation calculations. 

2. For developments that can demonstrate that their combined driveway approach volumes 

(entering and existing) will exceed 3,000 during an average day (or will be used by 300 vehicle 

during the peak hour of traffic for either street or the use), and lacking access to a secondary 

street, a second driveway may be allowed along the major street provided that the additional 

driveway can meet the spacing requirements. 

Section 6.04. Shared Private Driveway. 

A. Number. One (1) shared private driveway is allowed for up to four (4) or fewer dwelling units, 
places of business, lots, parcels, or principal buildings. An “eyebrow” access is allowed as a shared 
private driveway. 

B. Right of Way. Thirty (30) feet of right-of-way shall be preserved for the shared driveway, with 
easements granted to all parties for access.  

C. Location. The shared private driveway shall be constructed along a joint property line and/or a 
written easement is provided which allows traffic to travel across parcels for access.  

D. Construction. An engineered drawing shall be prepared for the review of the Public Works Director 
that includes information on anticipated vehicle types, traffic volumes, adjacent land uses, stopping 
locations, and other pertinent information that would assist in determining if the plans as proposed 
will reasonably ensure a durable, long-lasting shared private driveway. 

E. Connections. Vehicular connections between parking lots and vacant sites for future development 
should be included in project design where practicable. 

F. Administrative Departures. A second shared private driveway may be permitted in accordance with 
Section 6.03.D, a second shared private driveway may be permitted under the following 
circumstances. 

1. Where a development has access to a signalized location, the approach volume of the driveway 
traffic should be double that shown for unsignalized locations to warrant consideration of a 
second access location. Warrants shall be based on trip generation calculations. 

2. For developments that can demonstrate that their combined driveway approach volumes 
(entering and existing) will exceed 3,000 during an average day (or will be used by 300 vehicle 
during the peak hour of traffic for either street or the use), and lacking access to a secondary 
street, a second driveway may be allowed along the major street provided that the additional 
driveway can meet the spacing requirements. 

Section 6.06. Access Points. 

A. Number. The number of access points shall be limited to the minimum needed to provide 
reasonable access. Access points shall be designed and located to minimize conflicts with traffic 
operations along the street and be placed as far from intersections as practical. Land divisions shall 
not be permitted that may prevent compliance with the access location standards of this Article.  

B. Adjoining lands. Where the subject site adjoins land that may be developed or redeveloped in the 
future, including adjacent lands or potential out lots, the access shall be located to ensure the 

99



December 2, 2023 

28 
 

adjacent site(s) can also meet the access location standards in the future. Site development shall be 
done to provide for future cross-access to adjacent lots. A cross access connection or cross-access 
easement may be required as part of development approval. 

C. Primary access. Where property has frontage or access on more than one roadway, access shall be 
provided from the lesser traveled street. Where spacing requirements can be met, high traffic 
volumes will be generated, or the subject side street is inappropriate for non-residential traffic, 
access onto the main roadway will be considered. 

D. Arterials. New access points on Arterials is to be minimized, with internal circulation pattens 
designed to channelize traffic flow via adjacent streets, frontage streets, or service roads, with 
dedicated access points and signalized intersections that function as gateways. 

E. 25 residential units or less. A private road cul-de-sac that has only one point of connection to a 
public road or another private road may provide vehicular access to a maximum of 25 dwelling units. 

F. Second access and/or emergency access. Any private street that will serve land uses generating a 
combined daily volume of traffic of 3,000 trips per day or more or exceeds a length of 1,500 feet 
shall have at least two means of direct access to public roads. The second means of access may be 
used for emergency access purposes only with approval from the Reviewing Body. Each access shall 
be built and maintained to the standards required for private streets. 

G. Parking facilities. Adequate ingress and egress to a parking facility shall be provided by clearly 
defined driveways. Driveway design and placement must be in harmony with internal circulation 
and parking design such that the entrance can reasonably absorb inbound traffic during a normal 
peak traffic period.  

H. Interference with public facilities. No access point shall interfere with municipal facilities such as 
streetlights, traffic signal poles, signs, fire hydrants, crosswalks, bus loading zones, utility poles, fire 
alarm supports, drainage structures, or other necessary street structures. The Township is 
authorized to order the removal or reconstruction of any driveway which is constructed in conflict 
with street structures. The cost of reconstructing or relocating such driveways shall be at the 
expense of the adjoining property owner.  

Section 6.07. Spacing. 

A. Access points. All spacing of access points shall comply with appropriate Road Authority standards 
and the provisions of this Article. Spacing will be based on posted speed limits along the property 
frontage in accordance with Table 6.07.A.  

Table 6.07.A. Required Driveway Spacing Distances 

Posted Speed Limit (MPH Driveway Spacing (feet) 

30 125 

35 150 

40 185 

45 230 

50 275 

55 350 

 

B. Street alignment. Where possible, the approaches of side roads from opposite sides of a through 
road should be in direct alignment. 

100



December 2, 2023 

29 
 

C. Driveway alignment. Driveways shall be aligned with those from opposite sides of the street. 
Where this is not possible, driveways shall be offset a minimum of 150 feet, measured from 
centerline to centerline, to minimize left turn conflicts. 

D. Crashes. In areas where accidents and congestion due to left turn movements have created a 
demonstrated crash pattern where public health and safety are at risk, designs to discourage left 
turn ingress and/or egress may be considered by the Public Works Director or Road Authority. 

E. Intersections. Minimum spacing of access points from intersections, shall comply with Township 
Public Works and Road Authority standards. Spacing shall be subject to the schedule outlined in 
Table 6.07.E. Distance is measured from the nearest edge of the driveway throat to the nearest 
edge of the intersection. 

Table 6.07.E. Required Driveway Spacing from Intersections 

 
Intersecting Street 

Full Movement 
Driveway (feet) 

Channelized for right-in/       
right-out turn only (feet) 

Driveways Along Arterials 

 Arterial 250 100 

 Signalized Non-Arterial 125 75 

 Other Street 100 75 

Driveways Along Side Streets Intersecting Arterials 

 Arterial 200 100 

 Signalized Non-Arterial 100 75 

 Other Street 75 75 

 

F. Administrative Departure. If the amount of street frontage is insufficient to meet these criteria, the 
driveway shall be constructed adjacent to the property line furthers from the intersection. 

Section 6.08. Emergency Access. 

A. Access and Occupancy. The private street shall be readily accessible to and usable by emergency 
vehicles in all weather. An occupancy permit required for a dwelling or other building, the primary 
access to which is to be provided by a private street, shall not be issued until the private street has 
been constructed with sufficient width, surface and grade to ensure the safe passage and 
maneuverability of emergency service vehicles.  

B. Gated Access. All gates blocking access to a private road shall have an access code determined by the 
fire department, and be equipped with a keyed switch which will keep the gate open. The keyed switch 
must use a Knox Box Key. 

  

101



December 2, 2023 

30 
 

ARTICLE 7 – INTERNAL CIRCULATION 

Section 7.01. Purpose and Intent. 

As the township continues to grow and develop, and large parcels are subdivided into smaller lots, it is 
within the public interest to ensure that development patterns are accomplished in an orderly and 
logical way, the function of internal circulation systems work well so as not to overburden the public 
road network, travel movements are predictable and consistent, and the road hierarchy works as 
intended. The large scale of modern development patterns requires purposeful intent to provide 
dignified and safe pathways for those who are too young, too old, physically unable, too poor, or simply 
choose not to drive a car if Oshtemo Township is to provide a high quality of life for all residents.  

Section 7.02. Applicability. 

Internal circulation systems are a component of the township’s street network. It is for this reason that 
frontage roads and service drives are classified as private Local streets, akin to alleys. Internal site 
circulation directs a resident, patron, guest, employee, and others literally to the front door of a 
commercial business, place of assembly, multi-family residential building, mixed-use complex, or other 
use or structure. All attached single-family and multiple family residential, non-residential, and mixed-
use developments shall comply with the following requirements.  

Section 7.03. Circulation Study. 

A. Intent. The intent of conducting a circulation study is to understand existing and/or future site 
operations and the ability of the public to travel to, from, and through any given location safely and 
efficiently, and how a location interacts with adjoining land uses, structures, and mobility 
infrastructure within a given context.  

B. Criteria. The internal circulation system of existing or proposed development may be reviewed by 
the Public Works Director and Planning Director under one of the following circumstances: 

1. Site plan submittal or an amendment thereto; 

2. Addition of a new driveway or access point; 

3. Increase in the intensity of a land use on the site or on a connecting site with shared access; 

4. When a new or amended cross-access agreement is enacted; 

5. Parking lot repaving/resurfacing; or 

6. Where a concern has been expressed by law enforcement, transit authority, Road Authority, or 
other entity responsible for public safety associated with vehicular operations. 

C. Scope. Prior to commencing an evaluation, the Public Works Director or Township-designated Traffic 
Engineer, will coordinate with the applicant/developer to develop an understanding of the scope of 
work. The scope shall consider the safety of all users (motorists, pedestrians, transit riders, 
bicyclists, persons with disabilities) and their ability to travel to/from the front door of the use or 
structure being served by the parking lot, frontage road, service drive, or other connecting 
component on the site to nearby uses and buildings, public or private right-of-way, and abutting 
properties. Direct routes, particularly for non-motorized users, will be considered. 

D. Improvements. The Public Works Director, upon reviewing the results of the circulation study, shall 
determine if improvements or modifications are needed to the internal circulation system, items 

102



December 2, 2023 

31 
 

may include but not be limited to: parking lot restriping to modify drive lane alignment or delineate 
pedestrian walking areas; the installation of a stop sign, sidewalks, or curb ramps; assignment of a 
left-hand turn-lane; and the addition or relocation of a bus stop or shelter, etc. 

Section 7.04. Frontage Roads and Service Drives. 

A. Applicability.  

1. In areas where frontage roads or service drives exist, access to individual properties shall be 
provided by these drives rather than direct access.  

2. The Reviewing Body may require a frontage road or rear service drive where such facilities can 
provide access to signalized locations, the number of driveways may be minimized, as a means 
to ensure that traffic is able to more efficiently, or provide a greater degree of safe ingress and 
egress.  

B. Placement. Frontage roads and service drives shall be set back as far as reasonably possible from the 
intersection of the access driveway with the public or private street. A minimum distance that 
equals the required front yard (setback) or the major road setback, whichever is a greater distance 
from the right-of-way, shall be maintained between the public street right-of-way and the pavement 
of the frontage road, with a minimum fifty (50) feet of throat depth provided at the access point. 
The Reviewing Body may extend throat length if modeled vehicle queues necessitate expansion.  

C. Alignment. The alignment of the service drive can be refined to meet the needs of the site and 
anticipated traffic conditions, provided the resulting terminus allows the drive to be extended 
through the adjacent site(s).  

D. Building arrangement. Each building or group of buildings used for non-residential purposes, and its 
parking or service area, shall be physically separated from public streets by a greenbelt, curb, or 
other suitable barrier against unchanneled motor vehicle access or egress, except for access ways 
authorized herein.  

E. Construction and design. Frontage roads and service drives shall be constructed and designed in 
accordance with private road standards for Urban Collector or Urban Local streets, as determined by 
the Public Works Director and Planning Director based upon the anticipated amount of traffic and its 
characteristics and in accordance with Article 8 Street Design.  

1. Streetscape. Major drive aisles and entry drives within and between significant developments 
and their parking facilities may be required by the Reviewing Body to be treated similarly as 
public roadways in terms of streetscape. Similar street trees and light fixtures shall be located 
on those routes designated to carry traffic in, out, and between large development areas and 
parking lots. This shall be included as part of the landscape plan.  

2. Delineation. Curbing, signage, islands, or some other means to guide the route of through traffic 
shall be provided. If a non-conforming situation exists, it shall be remedied when 50% or greater 
of the total surface area of the parking lot abutting the drive location is reconstructed over the 
course of the life of the parking lot. 

3. Driveway spacing. Minimum driveway spacing standards shall not apply to frontage roads and 
service drives. 

4. Parking. Parking may be allowed along a frontage road or service road so long as it is designed 
to meet on-street parking standards for urban collector streets.  

103



December 2, 2023 

32 
 

5. Administrative departure. In the case of expansion, alteration, or redesign of an existing 
development where it can be demonstrated that pre-existing conditions prohibit installation of 
a frontage road or service drive in accordance with this Ordinance, the Reviewing Body may 
allow alternative cross access between adjacent parking areas through the inter-connection of 
main circulation aisles.  

F. Temporary direct access. In cases where a frontage road or service drive will be used for access, but 
is not yet available, temporary direct access may be permitted, provided the plan is designed to 
accommodate the future service drive, and a written agreement is submitted that the temporary 
access will be removed by the property owner, when the alternative access system becomes 
available.  

1. The Township may require posting of a financial performance guarantee to ensure compliance.  

2. If the Township approves a provisional access, the developer shall provide an adequate surety 
bond or other guarantee deemed acceptable to the Township in an amount sufficient to cover 
construction costs associated with the closing of the provisional road access.  

3. The site plan shall show the proposed layout of the site when the provisional access drive is 
removed. 

G. Administrative departure. The Planning Department may reduce required lot size and road frontage 
requirements by up to ten (10) percent under one of the following conditions: 

1. A driveway is established to serve two or more parcels, and where such parcels are not served 
by any other access point. 

2. When a frontage road or service drive is created that serves two or more parcels. 

3. Evidence of a binding cross-access or shared parking agreement regarding two or properties is 
provided. 

Section 7.05. Vehicular Circulation. 

A. Access. Unobstructed vehicular access to and from a public street will be provided for all off-
street parking spaces. Vehicular access shall be provided in such manner as to protect the safety 
of persons using such access or traveling in the public or private street from which such access is 
obtained and in such manner as to protect the traffic-carrying capacity of the public or private 
street from which such access is obtained.  

B. Circulation routes. Parking lots shall provide well-defined circulation routes for vehicles, bicycles 
and pedestrians.  

C. Traffic control devices. Standard traffic control signs and devices shall be used to direct traffic 
where necessary within a parking lot.  

D. Orientation. Parking bays shall be perpendicular to the land uses they serve to the maximum 
extent feasible. Large parking lots shall include walkways that are located in places that are 
logical and convenient for pedestrians in accordance with Section 7.06.  

E. Landscape islands. To the maximum extent feasible, landscape islands with raised curbs shall be 
used to define parking lot entrances, the ends of all parking aisles and the location and pattern 
of primary internal access drives, and to provide pedestrian refuge areas and walkways.  

104



December 2, 2023 

33 
 

F. Points of Conflict. The lot layout shall specifically address the interrelation of pedestrian, 
vehicular and bicycle circulation in order to provide continuous, direct pedestrian access with a 
minimum of driveway and drive aisle crossings.   

G. User needs. Layout and design shall anticipate the needs of users and provide continuity 
between vehicular circulation, parking, pedestrian and bicycle circulation. Pedestrian drop-off 
areas shall be provided where needed, especially for land uses that serve children or the elderly. 

H. Pavement. All vehicle circulation and off-street parking areas will be surfaced with asphalt or 
concrete. 

I. Trucks. Truck access and circulation routes shall be designed to minimize potential traffic and 
noise conflicts with adjacent sites, walkways between sidewalks and principal building 
entrances, and internal circulation routes. 

J. Drive-through. Queuing and a by-pass lane shall be provided for drive-through establishments 
described in Table 7.05.A. Minimum Queuing Standards. 

1. Each queuing space shall be a minimum of ten feet by 20 feet, clearly defined and designed 
so as not to conflict or interfere with other traffic using the site.  

2. Queuing shall be measured from the front of the stopped vehicle located at the point of 
service to the rear of the queuing lane.  

3. One additional queuing space shall also be provided after the point of service for all uses.  

4. A by-pass lane a minimum of ten feet wide shall be provided before or around the point of 
service. 

 

Table 7.05.A Minimum Queuing Standards 

Drive-Through Use Number of Spaces Required By-Pass 

Financial institution 3 No 

Restaurant, low-volume (less than 10/hour) 3 No 

Restaurant, high-volume 7 Yes 

Carwash, automatic 5 No 

Carwash, self-service 3 Yes 

General retail 4 Yes 

 

K. Administrative departure.  A by-pass lane may not be required if the queuing lane is adjacent to 
a vehicular use area which functions as a by-pass lane.  
 

Section 7.06. Pedestrian Circulation. 

A. Purpose. Pedestrian access shall be required for all sites to improve the health, safety and welfare 
of the public by providing clear pedestrian pathways at perimeter and internal site locations to 
reduce pedestrian and vehicular conflicts, improve accessibility for persons with disabilities, and 
establish a multi-modal environment that is supportive of walking, biking and transit use. These 
requirements are also intended to promote healthier lifestyles by encouraging walking and 
bicycling over the use of a private vehicle for many daily activities, and to provide the means by 
which residents and visitor can be more engaged with their neighbors, coworkers, and fellow 
visitors. 

105



December 2, 2023 

34 
 

B. Walkways. Continuous pedestrian walkways shall be provided to connect off-street surface parking 
areas with the primary entrances of main buildings. To the maximum extent feasible, pedestrians 
and vehicles shall be separated through the provision of a sidewalk or walkway.  

1. The required walkway must be at least five (5) feet wide, shall not be within a driving aisle, and, 
where possible, shall be within a landscaped island running perpendicular to the primary 
building façade. If parking spaces are adjacent to a sidewalk, the sidewalk must be at least seven 
(7) feet to allow for vehicular overhang.  

2. Dedicated sidewalks will be raised above the surface of the parking lot, or, if at the same level as 
the parking lot, the walkway will be distinguished from driving surfaces through the use of 
durable, low-maintenance surface materials such as pavers, bricks, or scored/stamped concrete 
or asphalt.  

3. To minimize potential hazards and enhance safety, in addition to a change in materials other 
tactics should be employed such as clearly marked striping, tactile alerts, landscaping, bollards, 
lighting and other means to clearly delineate pedestrian areas. 

C. Network connections. At least one (1) pedestrian walkway with a minimum width of five (5) feet shall 
be provided from the internal pedestrian walkway network to the public sidewalk or trail system. In 
the case of corner lots, connections shall be made to the sidewalks of both streets. Where trails exist 
or are planned, paths or sidewalks shall connect building entries to the trail system.  

D. Additional. Each surface parking area that has fifty (50) or more parking spaces, or has any parking 
spaces more than three hundred fifty (350) feet from the front façade of the main building, shall 
have at least one (1) pedestrian walkway or sidewalk allowing pedestrians to pass from the row of 
parking furthest from the main building façade to the primary building entrance. 

Section 7.07. Transit Access and Amenities. 

A. Transit Stops. Where public transit service is available or planned, convenient access to transit stops 
shall be provided by means of public or private sidewalks or walkways. Any provided seating shall 
not obstruct a public sidewalk.  

B. Where transit shelters are provided, they shall be placed in highly visible and well lighted locations 
for purposes of safety, subject to review by The Rapid.  

C. Landscaping. Landscape and/or plaza areas are encouraged at transit stops.  

Section 7.08. Bicycle Facilities. 

A. Bicycle Parking. Bicycle parking shall be within fifty (50) feet of the nearest publicly accessible 
building entrance, in well-lit areas clearly visible from the front door, and on the same lot as the use 
being served. Facilities may be indoors or outdoors. If indoors, access shall be available to the public 
during business hours, at a minimum.  

1. Bicycle parking and access facilities may be placed in vehicle parking areas but shall not take the 
place of a required vehicle parking space or conflict with internal parking aisles.  

2. A minimum of five (5) bike parking spaces shall be provided. 

106



December 2, 2023 

35 
 

B. Connection to front door. A pedestrian-accessible walkway shall be available between the outdoor 
bicycle parking area and the primary building entrance. Public sidewalks may be used to meet this 
requirement. An aisle width of at least five (5) feet shall be provided adjacent to any bicycle parking 
facilities to allow for maneuvering. 

C. Bike racks. Designs of bicycle racks, docks, posts, and lockers are encouraged to be decorative, 
unique, and appropriate to the surrounding area or related to the use being served, and shall be 
maintained in good repair. They will allow a bicycle to be locked to a structure, attached to the 
pavement, building, or other permanent structure, with two (2) points of contact to an individual 
bicycle frame. 

D. Administrative Departure. Required bicycle parking may be reduced by an Administrative Departure 
when it is demonstrated that the level of bicycle activity at that location warrants a different 
amount. In no case shall fewer than two (2) spaces be provided.  

  

107



December 2, 2023 

36 
 

ARTICLE 8 – STREET DESIGN 

Section 8.01. Purpose and Intent. 

Land use and transportation are inextricably linked. Land uses generate the need for travel and 
connectivity, and their arrangement dictates travel choices. Compact settings, with a variety of 
proximate land uses connected by streets that accommodate a variety of modes, will have a higher 
portion of trips made by walking, biking or transit. Areas with more dispersed settlement patterns 
require longer trips and are more auto-dependent. The need to consider context in transportation 
design has long been recognized. The AASHTO “Green Book” includes two place types, rural and urban. 
 
Street design best practices acknowledge that many factors influence travel speed, crashes, and how a 
street can support, or conflict, with a community’s vision – affecting economic development, quality of 
place, and even residents’ physical activity. The Federal Highway Administration has developed “Proven 
Safety Countermeasures” to reduce roadway fatalities and serious injuries. These strategies support self-
regulating design, an approach focused on managing speed, which in turn improves safety. Tactics 
include reducing street width, carefully setting design speed, road diets, pavement markings and signs, 
street trees and landscaping, and other tactics that manage driver behavior and street operations.  
 
Oshtemo Township is committed to ensuring the transportation system which serves its residents, 
businesses, and visitors operates safely and efficiently. Due to the dramatic contrast in the township’s 
character from rural residential to intense commercial and residential at the edge of the City of 
Kalamazoo, we must consider context in street design. In addition, streets serve a variety of different 
purposes. Street classification allows for a clearer definition of street hierarchy and different modal types 
that we should be considered in design. 

Section 8.02. Context Zones. 

A. For the purposes of this Streets Ordinance, there are two (2) context zones: “Urban” and “Rural”. 

The Urban context zone is comprised of all portions of the township that are not classified as “Rural 

Residential” on the Oshtemo Township 2017 Future Land Use Map. All other lands identified as 

“Rural Residential” on the Future Land Use Map are in the Rural context zone.  

108



December 2, 2023 

37 
 

B. All streets shall meet the design requirements of this Ordinance within the Urban or Rural context 

zone as assigned, except as noted in Section 8.04.A. 

Section 8.03. Types of Streets. 

A. The street network shall consist of three main types of streets: Arterial, Collector, and Local Road. 

1. Arterials are the basis around which the circulation system is designed. Arterials are main 

streets with through movements. Delivery trucks, personal vehicles, transit, pedestrians, and 

bicyclists use Arterials. All Arterials shall be public. 

2. Collectors provide a connection between Arterials and Local Streets, carrying traffic with trips 

ending in a specific commercial or residential areas. Collectors may intersect with any street 

type. All modes of travel use Collectors to get to their destination. Collectors shall be public, 

unless the criteria in Section 8.06.C. is met. 

3. Local Streets provide direct property access to homes, businesses, parking, loading, or other 

service areas of a site. Local Streets may intersect with any street type, but most often 

Collectors. Intended to be slow-moving streets where the presence of pedestrians and bicyclists 

is expected. Local Streets may be public or private. 

 

Section 8.04. Reserved. 
 

Section 8.05. Public Streets. 

A. A public street under Road Authority jurisdiction shall follow the design requirements of that Road 
Authority (see Table 8.05 Public Streets Standards).  

B. Upon receipt of a developer’s preliminary conceptual plan, the Planning Director will ask if a public 
street is desired. If the answer is in the affirmative, then staff will determine if the project is in the 
Urban context zone. If it is, then Township staff shall do the following:  

1. Evaluate whether the conceptual plan and design requirements of the Road Authority align with 
Urban context characteristics, advance the stated purpose and intent of this Ordinance and its 
provisions, and support self-enforcing design. If it is determined that Road Authority standards 
support the Township’s desired outcomes, then no further action is required.  

2. If the Road Authority’s default design requirements do not support the Urban context then, with 
the consent of the developer, the Public Works Director will seek design exceptions in 
accordance with the Road Authority’s rules for those items that would advance the Intents of 
this Ordinance, the Oshtemo Township Comprehensive Master Plan, and Go! Green Oshtemo 
Plan. Costs associated with design exception review process will be at the Township’s expense. 

3. A report will be prepared at the conclusion of the design exception process by the Public Works 
Director and transmitted to the Township Board. The report shall contain information 
concerning the requested design exception(s), associated costs, whether exceptions were 
granted or denied, and if denied the justification for denial.  

  

109



December 2, 2023 

38 
 

 

Table 8.05 Public Streets Standards 

 Urban Rural 

RCKC Designation Commercial Commercial Commercial 
Commercial 

or 
Residential 

County 
Primary 

County 
Primary 

County 
Local 

Oshtemo Township Designation Arterial DDA Collector Local Arterial Collector Local 

Pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ROW width 100’ 66’ 66’ 66’ 100’ 100’ 66’ 

ROW w/boulevard 120’ n/a 100 – 120’ 100 – 120’ n/a n/a n/a 

Cul de sac ROW 140’ 140’ 140’ 140’ 140’ 140’ 140’ 

Target speed (mph) 25 – 55 mph 25 – 55 mph 25 – 55 25 – 55  25 – 55  

Surface paved paved paved paved paved paved paved 

Drainage curb & gutter curb & gutter curb & gutter c & g or valley ditches ditches ditches 

Grade See Section XX.XX 

St
re

et
 

Lane width w/valley 
gutter 

n/a 12’ n/a n/a 12’ 

Valley gutter n/a 2’ n/a n/a 2’ 

Shoulder n/a 2’ 

Lane width w/curb 16’ n/a 

Curb and pan 2’ n/a 

Vehicle lane width 16’ 11’ – 16’ 12’ 11’ 11’ 

Cul de sac radius 50’ 50’ 

G
re

en
 

In
fr

as
tr

. Median - 11’6” - 11’6” - - 11’6” 

Minimum parkway 10’ w/ sidewalk 6’ 6’ 12’ 10’ 6’ 

Tree placement n/a 6’ from curb  n/a 

Tree spacing n/a 

N
o

n
-

M
o

to
ri

ze
d

 Bike lanes n/a 

Shared use path 12’ n/a 12’ 12’ 

Sidewalk placement 1’ from ROW 1’ from ROW 

Sidewalk width 6’ 14’ 6’ 5’ 5’ 

Mid-block crossing n/a n/a 

St
re

et
sc

ap
e 

On-street parking n/a 8’ n/a 

Decorative crosswalk n/a red brick paint n/a 

Traffic calming n/a 

Street furniture n/a 6’ from curb n/a 

Outdoor dining n/a 

Curb extensions n/a allowed n/a 

Decorative lighting n/a 6’ from curb n/a 

Street art n/a 

 n/a - not applicable or not allowed by Road Authority 

 

 

 

  

110



December 2, 2023 

39 
 

Section 8.06. Private Streets. 

A. Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this section is to provide access to residential, nonresidential, 
and site condominium developments, and as tracts of land are divided, sold, and transferred. The 
Township determines it is in the best interest of the public health, safety and welfare to regulate the 
design, construction, improvement, extension, relocation, maintenance, and use of private streets to 
ensure they provide for the safe passage and maneuverability of emergency vehicles and multiple 
public and private users; and that such streets are constructed of suitable materials to ensure their 
durability. Private streets may also help preserve safe and efficient traffic movement by providing 
reasonable access to public roadways. 

B. Applicability. Private streets shall be permitted where there is limited or no opportunity or potential 
to establish a public street or plat the land, or where the design requirements for creating a public 
street are particularly incompatible and do not advance the vision and goals of the Oshtemo 
Township Master Plan and Regulating Plan. The provisions of this Article shall apply to: 

1. All private streets designated or constructed on and after the effective date of this Ordinance.  

2. Where access is provided to five (5) or more existing or proposed dwelling units, places of 
business, lots, parcels, or principal buildings. In commercial areas this may be a service drive or 
frontage road. 

3. An existing private street, including the portion thereof existing prior to the adoption of this 
Ordinance, when it is extended by an increase in its length, or if lots or parcels of land with 
access to the existing private street are added.  

C. Authorization. Private streets shall not be constructed, extended or relocated without express 
written approval by the Public Works Director and Planning Director as deemed necessary attesting 
that the proposed private street complies with all Township standards (see also Article 9 
Administration and Enforcement). If approved as a private street, the Township shall have no 
obligation or liability for the private street or maintenance thereof. 

D. Township agreement. All improvements installed or constructed as required under the terms of this 
Ordinance shall be made and maintained at the expense of the property owner(s) or developer. The 
Township may enter into an agreement with the owner/developer of the private street that would 
also benefit the public and the Township for reasons of additional access, connectivity, and mobility. 

E. Street Frontage. All lots and parcels of land with access to a private street shall have frontage on the 
approved private street right-of-way equal to the minimum lot width requirement of the Zone 
District in which the lot is located.  

1. A parcel with frontage on both a private and public street shall be considered a corner lot.  

2. The driveways for corner lots shall be constructed on the private road, except in the case of an 
existing lot or structure or where topography, such as wetlands or steep slopes make such 
access unfeasible or where prohibited by the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County. 

  

111



December 2, 2023 

40 
 

Section 8.07. Private Streets Standards. 

A. Purpose and Intent. Private streets offer an alternative to public street design standards . It is the 
intent of these regulations to offer a greater variety of design choices, provide safe facilities for all 
road users as appropriate, and allow opportunities for placemaking to encourage economic 
investment. 

B. Collector streets. A private Collector street shall meet the construction specifications of RCKC for 
public streets (base, asphalt mix, etc.) but may be designed in accordance with the standards 
provided in Table 8.07. for private streets if an easement is provided to the Township which grants 
public access within the private street right-of-way to ensure the intended function of the Collector 
is as represented in exchange for the additional design flexibility offered by these standards. 

C. Local streets. An engineered drawing shall be prepared for the review of the Public Works Director 
for a private Local street that includes information on anticipated traffic types and volumes, adjacent 
land uses, and other pertinent information that would assist in determining if the pavement plans as 
proposed meet professional standards and will reasonably ensure a durable private street. 

D. Radii. Turning radii shall be determined based on Fire Department standards. 

E. Design standards. A private street under Township jurisdiction shall follow the design requirements 
of this Ordinance, particularly Table 8.07 Required Private Streets Standards. However, the Public 
Works Director is granted the authority to exercise engineering judgement when appropriate to 
determine the best design approach for unique situations through the Administrative Departure 
process. 

 

Table 8.07 Required Private Streets Standards 
 Urban Rural Section 

Oshtemo Township 
Designation 

Collector - 
Commercial 

Collector - 
Residential 

Local  
Collector - 

Commercial 
Collector - 
Residential 

Local 
 

Pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ROW width 66’ 66’ 50’ 66’ 66’ 50’  

ROW w/boulevard 100’ 80’ 66’ 100’ 80’ 66’  

Cul de sac ROW 60’ 50’ 60’ 50’  

Target speed 30 mph 20 mph 35 mph 25 mph  

Surface 6” HMA 3” HMA 4” HMA 4” HMA 3” HMA  

Drainage curb & gutter gutter or ditch gutter or ditch ditch  

Grade Up to 5% Up to 8% Up to 7% Up to 10% Section 7.08 

St
re

et
 

Vehicle lane width 10’-11’ 9’-10’ 11’ 10’-11’ 9’-10’  

Curb and pan 18” 12” 18” 12”  

Valley gutter n/a n/a 2’ 2’ 2’ 2’  

Shoulder n/a n/a n/a 3’ 2’  

Cul de sac radius 40’ 30’ 50’ 40’  

G
re

en
 

In
fr

as
tr

. Median 10’ 8’ 6’ 12’ 10’ 6’  

Min. parkway 6’ 6’ 8’ 6’ 
Section 7.09 Tree placement 3’ 3’ 3’ 

Tree spacing 25’-40’ 25’-40’ 

N
o

n
-

M
o

to
ri

ze
d

 Bike lanes 6’ 6’  

Shared use path 12’ 12’  

Sidewalk placement Both sides, w/parkway (may be back of curb) w/parkway w/parkway 
Section 7.10 

Sidewalk width 6’-14’ 6’ 5’ 5’ 

Mid-block crossing allowed allowed allowed allowed  

S t r e e t s c a p e On-street parking allowed allowed allowed allowed  

112

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1927


December 2, 2023 

41 
 

Table 8.07 Required Private Streets Standards 
 Urban Rural Section 

Oshtemo Township 
Designation 

Collector - 
Commercial 

Collector - 
Residential 

Local  
Collector - 

Commercial 
Collector - 
Residential 

Local 
 

Decorative crosswalk allowed allowed allowed - -  

Traffic calming allowed allowed - - allowed  

Outdoor seating allowed - - - -  

Curb extensions allowed allowed - - -  

Decorative lighting allowed allowed - - -  

Street art allowed allowed - - -  

 

Section 8.08 Grading. 

A. Limits. It is desirable to work with the land to preserve natural features and slopes rather than cause 
extensive grading during the development process, while still ensuring safe travel and property 
access.  

1. The grade of private streets will be related appropriately to the original topography but will not 
exceed a maximum grade of six percent (6%), unless otherwise granted an exception under Part 
D of this Section. 

2. Any proposed street approaching an existing or proposed street shall be constructed with the 

approach profile grade between 0% and 2% for a minimum 50 feet in length, as measured from 
the edge of the through street. For proposed road grades of 6% to 7%, the 0% to 2% approach 

profile grade length shall be a minimum 100 feet in length.  

3. The minimum grade for any concrete curb and gutter street shall be 0.75%. The minimum grade 

for any HMA valley gutter street shall be 1.00%. 

4. A cul-de-sac turnaround shall be constructed to ensure a minimum grade of 1.25% along the 

flow line of the gutter.  

B. Curves. Private streets may curve to provide traffic calming measures so long as road width and 

other self-enforcing design techniques are used to ensure that travel speeds will remain slow.  

1. Ability to maintain the street for snow plowing, trash removal, deliveries, and access for 

emergencies services must be demonstrated during the design process.  

2. Horizontal and vertical curve alignment shall be equal to the highest standard that is compatible 

with topographical details and reasonable ROW width. Vertical curve K Values for sags and 
crests shall be designed according to AASHTO.  

C. Relationships. The interplay of the private street to other properties, facilities, buildings, and even 

door entries is important for a successful built environment. 

1. Site grading shall not preclude the ability to align with abutting properties for service roads, 
non-motorized facilities, or other aspects to facilitate the continued growth and development of 

the community. 

2. All streets shall be arranged to locate as many lots or building sites as possible at, or above, the 

grades of the streets. Lots or building sites with grades lower than the street may be allowed 
provided adequate drainage is demonstrated. 

113



December 2, 2023 

42 
 

3. Curb height and the finished floor of a building shall match where a building is located twenty 

(20) feet or less from the back of curb. 

D. Administrative Departure. Notwithstanding the preceding, the Public Works Director may allow a 

maximum grade of up to ten percent (10%) for a private street if it is reasonably determined that 

such increased grade meets all of the following standards: 

1. The private street will be safe; 

2. The increased grade will not hinder the ability of firefighting equipment, ambulances and other 

emergency vehicles and personnel to reach all portions of the development;  

3. The private road has a maximum grade of four percent (4%) for a minimum distance of thirty 

(30) feet from its intersection with a public right-of-way or another private road; and 

4. The developer demonstrates that automobile traffic will be able to easily and safely go up and 

down the grade at all times of the year, including when ice and snow are present. 

Section 8.09. Green Infrastructure. 

A. Purpose and Intent. Streetscape improvements are intended to mitigate the effect of the built 
environment on the natural environment and to support a healthy environment for people. Street 
trees, in particular, provide shade and visual relief, improve air quality, contribute to noise 
reduction, calm vehicular traffic, reduce stormwater effects, and improve property values.  

B. Applicability. Streetscape improvements shall be applicable to all private street construction or 
reconstruction projects (non-maintenance), development projects requiring a building permit, 
and/or where sidewalks or other facilities in the right-of-way are to be installed or replaced. 
Installation of streetscape improvements, particularly street trees, is highly encourage in the public 
right-of-way. 

C. The design of the storm water management and drainage facilities should seek to be comparable in 
function and appearance to common natural drainage systems and runoff patterns, including 
wetlands. The private street shall be constructed with such storm water drainage easements, storm 
water runoff, culverts, and drainage contours necessary to ensure adequate drainage and runoff. 

D. All areas disturbed by the construction of the private road shall be provided with topsoil, seeded 
with perennial grass and protected against erosion. 

E. Green Infrastructure. The following rules shall apply.  

1. At least one (1) small tree shall be planted for each twenty-five (25) feet of lot frontage or any 
fraction over twenty-five (25) feet. As an alternative, one (1) medium or large tree may be 
planted for each thirty-five (35) feet of lot frontage or for any fraction of forty (40) feet.  

2. Clustering of ornamental, medium, or large trees is permitted when utility conflicts or required 
clear vision areas prevent compliance with minimum spacing requirements. 

3. In addition to the required plantings within the right-of-way, the remainder of the tree lawn 
shall be landscaped with grass, ground cover, shrubs, and other organic landscape materials. 

4. A minimum 6-foot-wide parkway (tree lawn) shall be provided on Collector and Local streets. A 
minimum 10-foot-wide parkway will be provided on those properties fronting Arterial streets. 

114



December 2, 2023 

43 
 

5. Street trees located along the same street frontage shall be aligned in a consistent row along the 
street.  

6. Where space permits, cul-de-sacs shall be designed with a central island where vegetation can 

be preserved/established. 

7. Parking lots adjacent to street rights-of-way shall provide shrubs at a ratio of 1.5 shrubs for every 
one (1) parking space. Shrubs that reach a mature height of at least three (3) feet shall be 

utilized and they shall be in groupings spaced at least three (3) feet on center to screen the 

parking lot from the right-of-way. 

D. Soil. Topsoil per Table 8.07 Streetscape Planting Requirements shall be used for tree installation.       

Table 8.07 Streetscape Planting Requirements 

Plant Material Minimum Plant Size Spacing on Center (ft.) Soil Volume (cu. ft.) 

Canopy/Shade Trees Small 1.5 in caliper 25 ft. 250 

Medium 2.5 in caliper 35 ft. 500 

Large 2.5 in caliper 45 ft. 750 

Ornamental Trees 2.0 in caliper 15 ft. 200 

Evergreen Trees 5.0 ft height 15 ft. 200 

Shrubs 3.0 ft height 3 ft. N/A 

                                                                                                     

E. Root Barrier. Root barriers shall be installed within areas where there is less than seven (7) feet 
between the back of curb and the sidewalk to prevent root penetration and destruction of curbs and 
sidewalks.  

F. Maintenance and Replacement by Property Owner.  

1. The property owner shall be required to maintain street trees for two (2) years after the trees 
are planted and replace any tree which fails to survive or does not exhibit normal growth 
characteristics of health and vigor, as determined by the Planning Director. The two (2) year 
period after the approval of the Planning Director shall begin at each planting and shall 
recommence as trees are replaced.  

2. All street trees must be maintained with a minimum clearance height of 15 feet to the first 
branch at maturity. 

G. Administrative Departures. An Administrative Departure that reduces, modifies, or eliminates 
landscape improvements may be granted where:  

1. The tree lawn is too narrow or is otherwise not conducive to the planting of trees or other 
streetscape improvements; or 

2. If there are trees growing along but not within the right-of-way which are intended to be 
preserved and comply with the intent of these regulations; or 

3. The affected area is small in comparison to the overall project, which generally complies with 
the regulations of this Article, and the modification does not materially impair the public realm.  

115



December 2, 2023 

44 
 

Section 8.10. Sidewalks. 

A. Sidewalks required on all streets in the designated urban context zone on both sides of the street. 

B. Sidewalks will be a minimum of six (6) feet wide on arterials and urban commercial connectors and 
five (5) feet wide on residential or lower volume streets. 

C. Sidewalks shall be aligned horizontally and vertically with existing sidewalks on adjacent properties. 
and designed to maintain the existing direction and flow of storm water and to avoid damming or 
flooding and meet ADA requirements. Maximum allowable slope is two percent (2%). 

D. Sidewalks at driveway crossings. The appearance of the sidewalk shall be maintained across the 
driveway to indicate that the area traversed by a vehicle remains a part of the pedestrian zone and 
that pedestrians have the right-of-way. The driveway shall retain the elevation of the sidewalk. 

E. Detectable warning surfaces. Detectable warning surfaces shall be installed wherever a sidewalk or 
shared use path approaches an intersection with a street or driveway.  

F. In Rural areas, a widened-shoulder may substitute for sidewalks on Collector and Local streets.   

G. Shared use path. A twelve (12)-foot shared-use path, reflective of locations identified in the 
Regulating Plan contained in the Oshtemo Township Comprehensive Master Plan and the Non-
Motorized Facilities Plan, shall be installed within Arterial corridors and Collector streets. 

H. Residential development. Sidewalks not less than five feet in width shall be included within the 
dedicated non-pavement portion of the right-of-way on both sides of all roads within a subdivision, 
site condominium, or multi-family development. 

I. Petition. Existing residential neighborhoods without sidewalks, and for which public sidewalks are 
not planned under the Township Master Plan, may petition for sidewalks to be built within the 
neighborhood.  

1. The residents of the neighborhood will be responsible for initiating the petition and, if 
successful, present the petition to the Reviewing Body for approval.  

2. Upon Reviewing Body approval, the streets of the neighborhood will be added to the list of 
streets to receive sidewalks and the sidewalks will be built at Township expense according to the 
Township’s Prioritization Policy.  

3. Residents can petition to establish a special assessment district to pay for the sidewalk.  

J. Within commercial and industrial areas, non-motorized facilities deemed necessary may be installed 
upon the motion of the Board in accordance with Michigan law with or without the establishment of 
a special assessment district.  

K. The Township, on the motion of the Board, may, at its expense, proceed with sidewalk 
improvements to fill gaps in the existing sidewalk system as redevelopment and infill development 
occurs. 

116

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=959
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=267


December 2, 2023 

45 
 

L. The Board may, concurrent with capital improvement projects, construct the sidewalks, other non-
motorized facilities, and other appropriate safety improvements along primary pedestrian routes to 
schools, parks, or other activity destinations upon motion of the Board at the Township’s expense. 
The Township will host public meetings to obtain resident input before committing to the Complete 
Street elements with the capital improvement projects.  

M. Administrative departure. The width and location requirements may be adjusted upon finding that 
another location would be more appropriate because of the location of utilities, existing landscaping 
or trees, the location of connecting sidewalks or pathways on adjacent parcels, or other site 
considerations.  

 

  

117



December 2, 2023 

46 
 

ARTICLE 9 – ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT FOR PRIVATE STREETS 

Section 9.01. Administration and Interpretation. 

The Public Works Director and Planning Director will jointly perform or assign the following 
responsibilities and authorities: 

A. Administer the street standards; 

B. Interpret the provisions of the street standards; 

C. Modify the street standards where special conditions indicate that such modification will best meet 
the purpose and intent of this Ordinance and provide an adequate and safe street for all users. If 
there is a conflict between this Ordinance and the individual requirements, the Public Works 
Director and Planning Director shall determine which requirements control. Should the Public Works 
Director and Planning Director differ in their opinions, then the Township Supervisor shall make the 
final determination. 

Section 9.02. Fees.  

The Township shall, by resolution of the Township Board, adopt a fee schedule for Private Street Permits. 
The fees shall be imposed to cover Township administrative costs, as well as engineering review, field 
inspection, planning review, and legal and other professional services. The Township may also require 
escrow fees for field inspections. The balance of any escrow amount shall be refunded to the applicant 
upon final approval. Should the Township's costs exceed the fees submitted and/or the escrow amount, 
the applicant shall be responsible for payment of such amounts prior to the issuance of the certificate of 
completion. 

Section 9.03. Approval Process. 

A. Commencement. No construction shall be commenced on a street (or extension or addition thereto) 

until and unless all approvals under this Ordinance and any other applicable ordinance sections have 
been obtained from the Township through the Site Plan Review process as described in Article 65 of 

the Zoning Ordinance. 

B. Authority. Only the Township shall have the authority to approve or deny applications for permits 

for private street construction. Permits issued by other governmental entities shall not serve as a 

substitute.  

C. Existing private streets and permits. A Private Street Permit shall not be required for the issuance of 

a building permit for a principal dwelling on an existing lot or site condominium unit which derives 

its access from a private street existing as of the effective date of this ordinance. 

D. Process. Upon receiving plan approval, the applicant may file for a permit for the private street's 

construction. At such time, the following must be submitted to the Township Clerk:  

1. The applicant shall deposit with the Township Treasurer a sum of money, bank letter of credit or 
certified check in the amount sufficient to guarantee that the applicant shall perform the terms 
and conditions of the permit, including the payment of required fees. Upon issuance of 
certificate of completion any unused portion of the deposit shall be refunded to the applicant.  

2. Proof that the Road Authority and Drain Commission have reviewed the plan. Proof can be in the 
form of a letter or permit. 

118



December 2, 2023 

47 
 

3. Proof that an agreement, outlined in Part E, regarding the interconnection, access rights, 
maintenance and improvements of the right-of-way, has been recorded with the Kalamazoo 
County Register of Deeds. 

E. Agreement. An agreement regarding the interconnection, access rights, maintenance and 
improvements of the right-of-way and roadway shall be submitted to the Township for review. It will 
be in a form that will allow it to be recorded with the Kalamazoo County Register of Deeds. Such 
agreement will address the following:   

1. The agreement shall run with the land and specifically address the liability and responsibility of 
the parties to said agreement to maintain the private street pursuant to the specifications of this 
article. This shall include but is not limited to provisions for annual maintenance, snow removal, 
and the eventual repair or reconstruction of the street.  

2. The agreement shall include rules regarding voting rights and the responsibilities of parties to 
the agreement in relation to road maintenance and improvements.  

3. The agreement shall include detailed legal descriptions of the private street and all properties 
allowed to use the road.  

4. A method of initiating and financing such road and/or easements improvements in order to keep 
the road in a reasonably good and usable condition. 

5. A workable method of apportioning the costs of maintenance and improvements; including that 
required by an extension of the private street. 

6. Easements to the public for purposes of public and private utilities, emergency and other public 
vehicles for whatever public services are necessary. 

7. A notice that no public funds of Oshtemo Charter Township are to be used to build, repair, or 
maintain the private street, including road cuts, curbs and gutters that may be required at the 
entry of the private road onto a public street. 

8. A requirement that all future amendments to the maintenance agreement, easement 
agreement, master deed and/or deed restrictions shall be provided to the Township and 
recorded with the Kalamazoo County Register of Deeds. 

9. Parcel numbers and legal descriptions of all parcels that have legal access to the private road 
easement. 

10. The agreement shall state that "the private street system may be connected to future public or 
private street networks when stub streets are shown on the approved plan for private roads."  

11. The following statement shall be included in any deed or other instrument of conveyance 
recorded for any lots or other parcels of land served by a private street:  "This property does not 
abut or front upon a public street. If a public street does not abut or serve the property, the 
street abutting or serving the property is a private street, and it is therefore not required to be 
maintained by the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County or Oshtemo Charter Township."  

12. A notice that if repairs and maintenance are not made, the Township Board may bring the road 
up to the design standards specified in this ordinance and assess owners of parcels on the 
private street for the improvements, plus an administrative fee in the amount of 20% of the total 
cost of the improvements. 

119



December 2, 2023 

48 
 

13. A provision that the owners of any and all of the properties using the street shall not prohibit, 
restrict, limit, or in any manner interfere with normal ingress and egress and use by any of the 
other owners. Normal ingress and egress and use shall include use by family, guests, invitees, 
tradesmen, and others bound to or returning from any of the properties having a right to use the 
street. 

F. Review Standards. Township staff and/or consultants will review the plans and agreements to assure 

that the request is in keeping with construction standards of this and other Township ordinances, 

the Township Comprehensive Master Plan, the intent of this Ordinance, compliance with curb cuts 

and potential connections, street names, and other applicable provisions. The following review 

standards shall be applied: 

1. The private street will be safe for traffic and pedestrians and advances the Township’s priority 

of Complete Streets. 

2. The proposed development will not adversely affect adjacent uses of properties and shall be 
designed, constructed and maintained in a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent 

properties and the surrounding area. 

3. The private street will not place demands upon public services and facilities in excess of their 

current capacities. 

G. Issuance. Upon receipt of the required funds and information, the Township Clerk shall issue the 
permit pursuant to the terms established by the Approving Body’s resolution.  

H. Permit Duration. A permit for private street construction shall be valid for a period of one year, or 
such longer period as determined by the Approving Body, from the date of issuance of the required 
improvements. If the improvements have not been completed within the allotted time frame, then 
the permit shall be null and void and of no force and effect and all deposits shall be forfeited to 
Oshtemo Charter Township. 

I. Final drawings. Upon completion of construction of a private street (or addition or modification 
thereof), at least one complete set of record construction drawings signed by a licensed engineer or 
contractor shall be submitted to the Township indicating that construction of the private street was 
observed and found to be generally in compliance with the approved plans and other Township 
approvals. These drawings shall indicate any changes to the original private street plans previously 
approved by the Township, the correct location, size, etc. of both preexisting and new utilities shall 
also be specified. 

J. Building permits. A building permit shall not be issued for any building or structure that derives its 
access from a private street that is subject to this Ordinance unless one of the following has 
occurred:  

1. A Private Street Permit has been issued by the Township and the street has been fully 
completed in accordance with the approved permit; or 

2. The private street has been nearly completed in accordance with the approved permit with the 
exception of the wearing course of a depth deemed suitable by the Public Works Director, and 
the applicant has provided the Township with a performance guarantee, cash, or irrevocable 
letter of credit as described in Part 3, below; or 

3. The applicant for the building permit or owner(s) of the private street right-of-way have 
provided the Township with cash or irrevocable letter of credit in an amount determined by the 
Reviewing Body to insure construction of the private street in accordance with the approved 

120



December 2, 2023 

49 
 

private street permit within one (1) year from the issuance of the building permit. The letter of 
credit shall contain a provision that the Township shall have the right to access the letter of 
credit if such letter is not renewed 30 days before the expiration date of the letter.  

Section 9.04. Inspections. 

A. All required improvements shall be inspected by the Public Works Director or assignee at various 
stages of construction as part of the Private Street Permit.  

B. The applicant's engineer shall certify to the Public Works Director, before the final inspection and 
report thereon are made, that the required improvements were made in accordance with this article 
and all approved plans.  

C. Upon completion of construction of the leveling course the Public Works Director shall make a final 
inspection and shall report the results of the final inspection to the Township Clerk in writing. Upon 
favorable recommendation from the Public Works Director, the Township Clerk shall issue a tentative 
certificate of completion.  

D. No building permit shall be issued for any lot fronting on a private road unless a tentative certificate 
of completion has been issued by the Township.  

E. Upon completion of construction of the wearing course the Public Works Director shall make a final 
inspection and shall report the results of the final inspection to the Township Clerk in writing. Upon 
favorable recommendation from the Public Works Director, the Township Clerk shall issue a final 
certificate of completion.  

 

Section 9.05. Maintenance.  

A. Responsibilities. A private street shall be continuously maintained in a manner that it does not 

constitute a danger to public health, safety and welfare. All costs associated with the repair of a 
private street shall be the responsibility of the individuals and/or the property owners association(s) 

comprised of land owners served by the street. Maintenance activities shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

1. Road surfaces are to be graded and graveled or paved to assure vehicle transit at all times of the 
year. 

2. Drainage facilities shall be maintained to be open and freely draining. 

3. A clear, unobstructed envelope shall be maintained at a minimum height of at least fourteen 
(14) feet above the entire minimum required road surface. 

4. Road signs and traffic control signs, etc. shall be maintained and replaced by the owners/s of the 
private road. 

B. Snow Removal. The individuals and/or the property owners association(s) comprised of land owners 
served by the street shall be responsible for plowing snow when there is two or more inches of 
accumulation. The private street shall be kept free of ice so that firefighting and emergency vehicles 
can access all portions of the private street at all times.  

1. Snow and ice must be removed on any sidewalk adjacent to a lot or parcel owned by the 
landowners within 24 hours after the ice and/or snow has formed or fallen.  

2. Snow and ice shall be removed from the entire constructed width and length of the sidewalk .  

121



December 2, 2023 

50 
 

3. Failure to comply can result in a municipal civil infraction citation and any associated costs or 
fines. 

C. Agreement. The developer, individuals, and/or the property owners association(s) comprised of land 
owners served by the street shall produce enforceable documents that the Township may call upon 
at its option. These documents shall provide that, if the private street is not maintained to the 
requirements of this Section, all owners shall be deemed to have consented to a special assessment 
district being created by the Township to maintain or upgrade the private street. The agreement 
shall also provide that, alternately, the Reviewing Body, at its option, can improve and maintain the 
private street so that it meets the requirements of this Section, and the Township can charge 
owners for the reasonable costs thereof, and such costs shall be secured by either placing a property 
lien or by placing the costs thereof on the tax roll. 

Section 9.06. Deviations. 

A. When there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict 
letter of this Ordinance, such as topographical and other physical characteristics that cause unusual 
difficulty, the Planning Commission shall have the power to vary or modify the application of the 
provisions of this Ordinance when it finds that two or more of the following criteria apply: 

1. A proposed private road extension or improvement is of a very modest scale affecting not more 
than three parcels such that full compliance with construction, design and development 
standards of this Ordinance would be inordinately burdensome as to be unwarranted. 

2. Construction of a new private street or the extension or improvement of an existing private road 
in conformance with the standards of this section would result in severe degradation to 
important natural features that may be preserved and protected with a lessening of the 
standards. Provided, that a safe alternative design will still result from such reduced standards. 

3. That the condition or situation of the specific piece of property for which the variance is sought 
is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formation of a 
general regulation for such conditions or situations. 

4. That by reason of exceptional narrowness in width, breadth, length or shape of a specific piece 
of property, or by reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations 
or conditions of the land, or of property immediately adjoining the property in question the 
literal enforcement of the requirements of this Ordinance would involve practical difficulties or 
would cause undue hardship. 

5. That authorizing such a variance would not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property and 
would not materially impair the intent and purposes of this Ordinance or the public interest. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient cause for 
authorizing a variance. 

6. That practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships would occur if the strict letter of this Chapter 
is observed, provided that public safety is secured. 

7. The granting of such waiver will not adversely affect the purpose or intent of the Oshtemo 
Comprehensive Master Plan or the provisions of this Ordinance. 

B. The Planning Commission may attach reasonable conditions in granting any deviation from any 
provision of this article, and the breach of any conditions or the failure of any applicant to comply 
with the conditions shall void the deviation.  

122



December 2, 2023 

51 
 

C. If construction of the road has not commenced within two years from the date that a deviation was 
granted, then the deviation shall be null and void. The Planning Commission may grant a longer time 
frame and may grant an extension when so requested by the applicant.  

Section 9.07. Administrative Departures. 

A. Purpose. Administrative Departures are provided to permit access and/or the development of lots or 
properties that generally fall within the requirements of this Ordinance, but, due to minor site 
characteristics or other related conditions, a limited degree of flexibility to meet the spirit and 
purpose of this Ordinance is appropriate.  

B. It is not intended to be a general waiver or lessening of regulations. Rather, the procedure permits a 
site-specific plan that is equal to or better than the strict application of a design standard. It is not 
intended as a substitute for a variance or as a means for relief from requirements of this Ordinance.  

C. Applicability. Only those Administrative Departures that are specifically noted may be requested and 
approved.  

D. Application Procedure. Requests for Administrative Departures shall be submitted with the 
applicable application and shall include the following:  

1. Information and materials, as listed in the application form, in sufficient detail to indicate the 
nature and necessity of the request, and a scaled drawing, if appropriate. Requested 
Administrative Departures shall be separately listed and clearly noted on the proposed plan.  

2. The applicable fee established by resolution of the Approving Body.  

E. Review Standards. The Public Works Director shall consider whether the proposed alternative meets 
the following standards.  

1. Streets Ordinance. The proposed Departure is consistent with the purpose and intent of the 
Ordinance, Article, and Section, and the specific requirements and conditions of the 
Administrative Departure approval criteria,  

2. Area. The proposed Departure will be compatible with adjacent properties and the 
neighborhood,  

3. Environment. The proposed Departure will retain as many natural features of the landscape as 
possible and/or cause lesser intrusion into the landscape,  

4. Public Facilities. The proposed Departure will not place a burden on existing infrastructure and 
services, and  

5. Other. The Departure request is necessitated by a condition of the site or structure, and not as a 
means to reduce costs or inconvenience.  

F. Decision. The Public Works Director may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request. If 
the Public Works Director determines that the extent of the requested Departure(s) requires 
additional community review and input, the Engineer may refer the application to the Planning 
Commission for a public hearing. The fee for the Administrative Departure shall then be applied to 
the costs of application to the Planning Commission.  

G. Prior to Other Approval. Decisions on Administrative Departures shall be made prior to consideration 
of other approvals required by this Chapter.  

123



December 2, 2023 

52 
 

H. Appeal. A decision regarding an Administrative Departure may be appealed to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. Individual conditions imposed as part of an Administrative Departure approval cannot be 
separately appealed.  

 

Section 9.08. Nonconforming Situations. 

Private roads, legally constructed prior to the adoption of this article may continue in use subject to the 
following:  

A. No such road shall be enlarged or extended unless the entire road is brought into compliance with 
the standards of this Ordinance.  

B. No additional lots or home sites shall be created which are accessed by a nonconforming private 
road unless the entire road is brought into compliance with the standards of this Ordinance.  

C. Lots lawfully created prior to the adoption of this Streets Ordinance, which are accessed by a 
nonconforming private road may be used in accordance with the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  

Section 9.09. Violation and penalties. 

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment in the 

county jail for a period not to exceed 90 days or by both such fine and imprisonment. Any access which is 

used in violation of the terms of this article may be abated, restrained, enjoined and prohibited upon the 

commencement of an appropriate action in the Circuit Court.  

  

124



December 2, 2023 

53 
 

Applicable Sections 
 

• Village Form-Based Code Overlay Zone (34.70) 

• 9th Street and West Main Overlay Zone (35.50) 

• Planned Unit Development (41.80) 

• Residential Condominium Development Standards (42.30) 

• Open Space Community (43.50)  

• Open Space Preservation Residential Development Option (44.50) 

• Conditions for Specified Permitted User (48.100) 

• Special Uses (49.200 NOTE: It should be Section 49.180) 

• C-R: Local Commercial District, Restricted (21.50) 

• Access Management Guidelines Section 51.10 

• Definition Of A Private Street Or Road Section 2.20 

• Subdivision, Site Condominium, And Land Division Ordinance Section 29.000 

• Regulation For The Use Of Public Rights-Of-Way By Telecommunications Providers Section 125.000 

• Truck Route Ordinance Section 153.000 

• Landscaping Section Section 53.60 

• Access Management Plan 

• Complete Streets Policy 

Goals 
 

1. Define road types 
2. Clear standard for the design, construction, and maintenance of private roads and private streets 
3. Clear and distinct construction standards for properly scaled rural and urban contexts, in commercial and 

residential districts 
4. Connectivity  
5. Access management standards  
6. Complete Streets for all users and all modes, equal access for all users 

Desired Outcomes 
1. Network optimization (efficient, effective, and provides ROI) 
2. Ensure public health (promote health and well-being), safety (appropriate facilities, lower speed, reduce 

points of conflict), and welfare (a well-functioning community that provides a high quality of life and 
serves the common good) 

3. Self-enforcing design that prioritizes safety for all users 

Supporting Documents 
 
2003 Access Management Plan 
2018 Complete Streets Policy (Multi-modal, Context Sensitive, Network Connectivity) 
2019 Go! Green Oshtemo  
2011 Oshtemo Township Master Plan (see Chapter 5 Transportation & Community Services) 
2022 Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Ordinance 
 

 

125

https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/planning/documents/oshtemo-township-access-management-plan.pdf
https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/about/documents/appendix-m-complete-streets-policy.pdf
https://www.oshtemo.org/Officials-Departments/Departments/Planning-Zoning-Department/Go-Green-Oshtemo
https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/planning/documents/master-plan-10262012.pdf
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/oshtemo-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-914

	1. 12-14-2023 PC Agenda
	2. Public Comment Policy_Back of Agenda
	3. DRAFT PC Minutes 11 27 2023
	3.5 blank page
	4. Rezoning 9177 W. G Ave
	1. 9177 West G Ave rezoning staff report
	2. 9177 West G Avenue P&Z application
	3. Survey
	4. Article 4 - AG Agricultural District
	5. Article 5 - RR Residence District

	4.5 blank page
	5. Special Use and Site Plan - LJS
	1) Final Staff Report - LJS
	2) P&Z Application
	3) environmental-permits-checklist
	4) hazardous substance checklist
	5) Architectural Drawings & Site Plan
	23-017 - LJS Kalamazoo Revision T-1-0 - Title Sheet 112023
	Sheets
	T-1.0 - Title Sheet


	23-017 - LJS Kalamazoo Revision Arch Set 112023
	Sheets
	A-1.0 - Proposed Floor Plan
	A-6.0 - Exterior Elevations
	AS-1 - Site Amenities Plan
	AS-2 - Site Amenities Details
	AS-3 - Dumpster Enclosure Details
	T-2 - General Notes


	Long John Silvers Oshtemo Township - Civil Set
	C-100-23134.00-Layout1
	C-300-23134.00-Layout1
	C-301-23134.00-Layout1
	C-400-23134.00-Layout1
	C-401-23134.00-Layout1
	C-402-23134.00-Layout1
	C-403-23134.00-Layout1
	C-800-23134.00-Layout1
	C-801-23134.00-Layout1

	2313400 - Exterior Photometrics

	6) Cut Sheets
	0099_001

	7) CROSS PARKING AGREEMENT

	5.5 blank page
	6. Ord Amendment - Livestock and Honeybees
	1. memo PC PH 12-14-2023
	2. Proposed Ordinance amendment
	57.80 KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK AND HONEY BEES


	6.5 blank page
	7. Work Session - Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance
	1. memo Private Street Ordinance
	2. Oshtemo Streets and Mobility Ordinance 12 02 2023




